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ingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp. (the “Company”), and
Tits subsidiaries (the “Group”) specialise in the production and
distribution of instant noodles, beverages and instant food products
in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC"”). The Group started its
instant noodle business in 1992, and expanded into the instant food
business and beverage business in 1996. In March 2012, the Group
further expanded its beverage business, the strategic alliance between
the Company and PepsiCo in the beverage business in the PRC was
established. The Company is exclusively manufacture, bottle, package,
distribute and sell PepsiCo non-alcoholic drinks in the PRC. The Group's
three main business segments have established leading market shares
in the PRC’s food industry. According to AC Nielsen SCAN TRACK
EXPRESS, based on sales volume, year-to-date December 2014, the
Group was the market leader in instant noodles, ready-to-drink teas,
bottled water and egg rolls, gained 46.8%, 53.9%, 20.8% and 18.3%
market shares respectively. In the overall juice drink market, the Group
gained 23.9% market share, ranked No. 2 in the market. According
to Canadean December 2014 data, based on sales volume, Pepsi
carbonated drinks gained 30.3% market share and held a second
position. After years of hard work and accumulation, “Master Kong”
has become one of the best known brands among consumers in the
PRC.

The Group distributed its products throughout the PRC through
its extensive sales network consisting of 582 sales offices and 77
warehouses serving 36,837 wholesalers and 118,359 direct retailers
as of 31 December 2014. This extensive sales network is a significant
contributor to the Group's leading market position and it enables the
Group to introduce new products rapidly and effectively.

The Company was listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
in February 1996. Market capitalisation as at 31 December 2014 was
US$12.8 billion. The Company is a constituent stock of British's FTSE All-
World Asia Pacific Ex-Japan Index, Morgan Stanley Capital International
(MSCI) Hong Kong Index and a component stock of Hong Kong's
benchmark Hang Seng Index. For six consecutive years from 2008, Tingyi
was named one of the 50 best listed companies in Asia by Forbes for its
solid financial track record, excellent management and entrepreneurial
skills.

Focused on food manufacture, sales and circulation business, the Group
will continue to strengthen its logistics and sales network in the PRC
with target of becoming “The largest Group for Chinese Instant Food &
Beverage in the World".

HetiizERAT TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.
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Financial Summary

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

BEt-A=1t—-HLEE

For the years ended 31 December

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
(EEF)
(Restated)
FET FETL FETL FETL FETL
US$’000  US$'000  US$'000  US$000  US$000
EEE Turnover 10,237,982 10,940,996 9,211,852 7,866,580 6,681,482
BT A A Profit before taxation 693,569 722,990 832,482 662,976 746,774
A Taxation (208,820)  (228,679)  (227,763)  (163,272) (134,200
AEE T Profit for the year 484,749 494,311 604,719 499,704 612,574
i fapagl Profit attributable to:
EA/NETT Owners of the Company 400,482 408,544 458,622 419,545 476,787
DRI Non-controlling interests 84,267 85,767 146,097 80,159 135,787
KEERF Profit for the year 484,749 494,311 604,719 499,704 612,574
sy Dividends 200,054 204,269 180,091 209,629 238,556
EJ ES ES ES ES
US cents US cents US cents US cents US cents
SN Earnings per share
HA Basic 7.15 7.30 8.20 7.51 8.53
e Diluted 7.13 7.28 8.17 7.47 8.50
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Financial Summary

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
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As at 31 December
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
(&s5)) (EEF)
(Restated)  (Restated)

FET FET FET FET FET

Uss$'000  US$'000  US$000  US$'000  US$'000

MmE - HERE Property, plant and equipment 5,859,905 5485100 5001736 4,029,872 2,922,936

THBRLOEE Prepaid lease payments 737,387 318,961 284,040 186,276 117,799

e NTFER Interests in associates 31,973 29,050 21,324 — —

AE DR Interests in joint ventures 74,153 80,276 63,114 — —

EVEE Intangible asset 27,305 28,058 28,811 — —

HivJpnaEE Other non-current assets 132,061 72,788 105,806 156,598 163,110

FRBat Net current liabilities (1,293,211) (1,215366)  (826,079)  (991,942) (612,947

FRBEE Non-current liabilities (1,473,909)  (872,480) (1,189,567)  (714,204)  (294,312)

DEEBEHEEE  Assets classified as held for sale — — — — 75,221
PREARBELE Liabilities associated

BEZHBERE with assets classified

as held for sale — — — — (2,620)

FAE Net assets 4,095,664 3926387 3,489,185 2,666,000 2,369,187

BATRA Issued capital 28,019 27,982 27,964 27,951 27,934

Gz Reserves 3,005,538 2,852,310 2,516,186 2,056,198 1,793,324

DR R Non-controlling interests 1,062,107 1,046,095 945,035 582,451 547,929

BhE: d Total equity 4,095,664 3926387 3,489,185 2,666,000 2,369,187

etz ERAT TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.
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COST SAVING, EFFICIENCY ENHANCING, INNOVATION

In 2014, the growth of economy in China as a whole slowed down.
Competition in the market had been intense. Under the circumstances
with changes in consumer behavior and sales channels, the operation
of the enterprise as a whole faced more challenges and difficulties.
During the past year, other than tackling the challenges from different
aspects, the Group had never ceased to prepare itself in strengthening
the competitiveness in the long-term. The food business and beverage
business were consolidated into an integrated business entity. For the
instant noodle business, the Group was ahead of peers to upgrade the
rich ingredients of bowl noodles which drove the increase in price, and
had modified its marketing strategies, which led to healthy competition
within the industry with profitable return. We believe that the
contribution to the Group from the above strategies will be gradually
demonstrated in the foreseeable future.

Moreover, we also continued to increase our investment in branding,
R&D and food safety. At the same time the operation of our
organization was optimized with operation efficiency enhanced. We will
continue to launch more innovative products, so as to provide quality
and affordable choices to consumers. In terms of operation, we also
maintained a steady financial structure.

In 2014 the Group's turnover was US$10.238 billion, dropped by 6.43%
year-on-year. Profit attributable to owners of the Company was US$400
million, decreased 1.97% when compared to last year, earnings per
share was US7.15 cents. During the year, we continue to implement
structural consolidation for beverage business, which incurred
US$73.017 million integration cost. After deducting this cost, the profit
attributable to owners of the Company increased by 6.52%

The board will recommend the payment of a final dividend of US3.57
cents per share. Total amount of final dividend for the year 2014 will be
US$200 million.

2014 Annual Report £3§
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According to the latest report published by AC Nielsen, year-to-date
December 2014, the Group's market share, in terms of sales volume
for instant noodles, RTD tea, and bottled water ranked first in the PRC
market, which accounted for 46.8%, 53.9% and 20.8% respectively.
The Group's juice drink gained 23.9% market share and ranked number
2 in the overall juice market. According to Canadean December 2014
data, in 2014 Pepsi's cola favor and Mirinda juice favor carbonated
drinks also ranked No.1 in the favor sector, accounting for 48.3% and
38.7% of the market share respectively.

In 2014, Master Kong was being listed in the World’s Most Innovative
Companies published by Forbes. In March 2014, Master Kong received
the “Best Product Brand Award” and the “Best Food & Beverage Brand
Award” from The German Brands Association. And being recognized
the honor of the “Most Favorite Brand of University Student” for nine
consecutive years. Master Kong was awarded the honor of the “2014
‘Food Safety Cup’ Most Popular Best Ten Food Safety Enterprise”. By
obtaining these honors, the brand power and competitiveness of Master
Kong were recognized, what's more, we are encouraged to constantly
endeavor, trying to provide consumers with more varieties of delicious
and safe products.

etz ERAT TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.
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During the year, we use different ways to help the people in need, such
as sponsoring education, fighting floods, relieving earthquakes, relieving
poverty, environmental protection and supporting sports activities. In
2014, we continued to allocate resources to take our corporate social
responsibility to enable the concurrent healthy development of the
enterprise and the society. We actively supported the concept of total
quality control “from farm to table” and strictly abided by the consumer
food safety principles. While improving production efficiency, we also
continuously implemented energy saving and emission reduction. We
continued to initiate the world elite universities scholarship program
to support outstanding students across the Strait to further their
studies and held “Master Kong Creative Challenges” to allow more
young people with an innovative quality have the opportunity to go to
university to further their studies.

In 2015, there is still pressure in the growth of economy in China. It
is expected that in 2015, the target for growth in GDP is 7% and the
overall development will be maintained in the new state of normal
mode. However the new development in urbanization will bring growth.
We are still confident in the potential of the long-term development in
China and remain prudently optimistic to the prospects in 2015.

In January 2015, our operational center in Shanghai began to operate.
The Board also appointed Mr. James Wei as the Chief Executive Officer
of Tingyi (Cayman lIslands) Holding Corp. on 1 January 2015, who is
responsible for the overall operation of the Group and supervising the
daily businesses of the Group. The Board believes that this will further
consolidate the development of the Group on the basis of the existing
solid foundation.

2014 Annual Report 58 9



EERI/E Chairman Statement

10

2015 FASEEBRLREHEER RS
REGHEBEMIGME - R - 183K - Al

BB ERERLE  SEEAN
S RAEBE R WmE KBkE - Al
201543 A 1sSHEMEEREEZRERE
BARRERE  EREARTEGEAE S
WA MEEDTNAEGE

— S L ERMELEFTETIEHREER

e KMABRRMEEESRKAEL M
g EREMBEREEENER - LBKE

Bﬂkﬁﬁﬁlﬁf‘“%ﬁéﬁéﬁ’ﬁbﬁ

Rims s kS M2014F - FMEA
BEHEE  PHEHAMNEIRESEEE
ENEE - AANBREUEE  HEESR
C EBEBEREEINRANUREREN
EEMIZE  BUARLHE -

MM
BEER

RS
201543 A23H

In 2015, the overall operation strategy of the Group will switch to cost
saving, efficiency enhancing, and innovation as a result of the sluggish
economy and the nature of the consumer market. We will maintain
a steady operation, exercise sound control of capital expenditures,
improve team skills, tackle enormous challenges and create synergies.

On 18 March 2015, Tingyi Holding signed agreement with US Starbucks
Coffee Company to expand China’s RTD coffee market. The cooperation
with Starbucks will further expand Tingyi's beverage product portfolio
and enables us to provide consumers with more high-quality and
convenient product options and experiences.

Notwithstanding the competition and challenges we faced in 2014, the
wisdom and creativity, hard work and loyalty of Master Kong's staff are
the valuable asset of the Group. | would like to take this opportunity
to express my heartfelt appreciation to all fellows of the Board, the
management and all staff for their efforts made and the trusts and
supports from the shareholders.

Wei Ing-Chou
Chairman

Shanghai, the PRC
23 March 2015

etz ERAT TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.



Sales Network
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Instant Noodles J5{EXEEE 3£ ' ' ' ' ' ' ' / 7 24
Instant Food FERMEE H H £
20/0 201/ 20/2 20/3 2014
Number of Number of Number of Number of Number of
e e g e e
Sales Office =EJ 548 555 571 566 582
Warehouse BiE 89 91 95 75 77
Wholesaler Fagizr] 6,155 6,188 32,424 33,504 36,837
Direct Retailer BETER 73,282 86,755 107,131 110,355 118,359
Employee BT AE 64,436 64,309 79,419 80,541 79,003
Production Line SER 457 510 607 654 697
Production Centre FSEEH 53 65 108 119 129
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Group Structure
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Master Kong Instant Foods (BVI) Co., Ltd. Master Kong Bakery (BVI) Co., Ltd.
MEAERBABV)ERAA BT ERS(BV)ERAF
100% 100%

Master Kong Instant Noodle Investment (China) Co., Ltd.
iﬁiﬂﬁ!ﬁi&‘ﬁ);ﬂ*i) BRAF

|

Master Kong Instant Foods Investment (China) Co., Ltd.
!ﬁ{!?ﬂ!ﬁun&ﬁ (hE) BRAF

/L
A

Harbin Tingyi Food Co., Ltd.
BERRERRARAR
100%

Xianyang Fumanduo Food Co., Ltd.*
BRBERZRRAERAT
100%

Tianjin Tingyi Food Co., Ltd.
RERBRRERAA
100%

Qingdao Tingyi Food Co., Ltd.
& HZRRERAF
100%

Zhengzhou Tingyi Food Co., Ltd.
BHEERRERAT
100%

N N N N N N E B
CECEUEIEEUEUENVNRNNT

* Direct translation of registered name in Chinese

FRARZEXEBRRET X EWERDE

=

Master Kong [Chongging] Convenient Food Co., Ltd. Chengdu Tingyi Food Co., Ltd.* Tianjin Tingyuan Food Co., Ltd.
B (EB) FERRERARA BHEERRERAR RRERARERAE
100% 75% 100%
Chongging Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. f Xinjiang Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. Hangzhou Tingyuan Food Co., Ltd.

EREERRARAE HBERRRERAF HNEERRERAT

100% 75% 25% 100%
iy Eood CO;\LM Master Kong (Shenyang) Convenient Food Co., Ltd.

BERESZRRERAF B (BB AERRERAE

100% 75% 25%
Shenyang Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. Nanjing Tingyi Food Co., Ltd.

EREXRRERAR ERERRRERAR

100% 5% 25%
Guangzhou Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. Hangzhou Tingyi Food Co., Ltd.

RNESRRERA B & AR S

100% 69.4% 30.6%
Fujian Tingyi Food Co., Ltd.

BREZRRAARAF

100%
‘Wuhan Tingyi Food Co., Ltd.

REESRERERAT

100%

12
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100%

Kong (Tianjin) Beverage Co.
] (i%) RRAERAR

ERREARBRAT
100%

(Hangzhou) Beverage
EW{@ (’ﬁﬂﬂ) Rnnﬁlﬁ’l}ﬁ
HM]!Etnn’E Iﬁ"ﬁ
ingzhou Tingjin Food Co., Ltd
BNRRAERAF
100%
(Shenyang) Beverage Co
W{l (ﬁll) ﬁ'nnﬁﬁﬂ

BE

ngzhou .,
ERRRERAR
100%
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100%

psi-Cola Beverage
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100%

ola Beverage
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Pepsi Beverage Co
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100%

ingyi (BVI) INT'L Co., Ltd.
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na Dingya Holding Limite
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100%
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=P8 ERFTMENR o EE LG ADKE
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TE%E B FEBTEBEES UL
EREFEEEER - SERAVBIZRNE
M) 2014 FRIFEERIBRIE20134F

REBR2014FHEEBREFRPT
#£6.43% £ 10,237,982 F E st H @
MEHONEEESIREFRAARR
4.49% 2 7.46% c FNXEBEXZREME
BETURRIBEEEFEEX  SEEBER
KR EA02TEAE DB ZE3046%  F
A REEFRAELPBETISMNEERE
EEMA KR L IHE MR RR - RS
BESEER  NEENESMSRE
WO EK AR REEENLLAH2013F
#921.14% T 025 M E D EARFE W
20.89% : B & BB R LLIE 37,920
FET FEREREBBEBRAME
EWMER MBEREREAS 79,800
FETLEA7ISNFET  FEREERHA
SATSIRITERAY c FRAAKBET K
ERENRERE  #RANBELRE -
20145 HBRFE - BB - TEREEA
Z F|(EBITDA) A 1,149,346 T £ 71 AR
AP R B E ) & 400,482 T3 - &

During 2014, the Gross Domestic Product (GDP) of the PRC increased
by 7.4% year-on-year, with the growth rate hitting a record low in 24
years. The Consumer Price Index (CPI) increased by 2.0%. Food prices
increased by 3.1%. Total retail sales of social consumer goods increased
by 12.0%. The Producer Price Index (PPI) decreased by 1.9% vyear-
on-year. According to the National Bureau of Statistics, the national
economy achieved progress while maintaining stability and achieved
quality improvement while making progress amidst the new normal in
2014. The domestic and international environments remained complex
and economic development was still faced with many difficulties and
challenges.

During the year, the economic growth continued to slow down.
However, market competition was still intense. The acceleration of
the change in the consumption pattern, together with the impact of
the climate factor, led to business fluctuations. Being confronted with
such a challenging year, we did not forget to make preparations for
more efficient operations in the future and implemented structural
consolidation for the beverage business. The performance of Tingyi in
the difficult year of 2014 was slightly inferior to that in 2013.

In 2014, the Group’s turnover was US$10,237.982 million, a decrease
of 6.43% compared to that of 2013. Turnover of instant noodle and
beverages dropped by 4.49% and 7.46% respectively. During the
year, the Group’s gross margin increased by 0.21 ppt. to 30.46%
year-on-year, benefiting from the drop in cost of main raw materials
and refining operations in production. In 2014, the Group effectively
controlled its marketing and distribution expenses by means of strategic
advertisement that strengthened its brand as the leader in the PRC
market, together with timely adjustment of marketing strategic, the
Group's distribution costs as a percentage of total sales, decreased by
0.25 ppt. to 20.89% as compared to 21.14% in 2013. Other operating
expense increased by US$37.920 million was mainly due to the cost
incurred for the Master Kong-Pepsi alliance structural consolidation.
Finance costs increased by US$9.800 million to US$47.151 million
mainly due to the increased bank borrowings for capital expenditure.
During the year, the Group maintained a stable and healthy financial
structure with strong cash flows. In 2014, earnings before interest, tax,
depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) was US$1,149.346 million and
the profit attributable to owners of the Company was US$400.482
million, a decrease by 1.02% and 1.97% respectively when compared
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to the previous year, earnings per share was US7.15 cents, a drop
of USO.15 cents year-on-year, after excluding the cost of structural
consolidation of US$73.017 million, the profit attributable to owners of
the Company increased 6.52% when compared to the previous year.

FOOD BUSINESS

Instant Noodle Business

In 2014, the sales volume of the China instant noodle market dropped
7% when compared to 2013. The Group’s turnover of instant noodle
business amounted to US$4,137.736 million, a decrease by 4.49% from
previous year, and represented 40.42% of the Group's total turnover.
In the third quarter, the Group was ahead of peers and upgraded the
rich ingredients of bowl noodles which drove the increase in price, and
the marketing strategies, as a result, leading the industry towards the
direction of benign competition with healthy profits and gross margin
in the second half has been improved. Back to the first half of the year,
slight increase in price of certain raw materials and additional costs
spending on the enhancement of quality and size of products, as a
result, gross margin for instant noodle business for the year dropped
by 0.91 ppt. to 28.33%. Profit margin decreased by 7.49%. The profit
attributable to owners of the Company for the instant noodle business
was US$360.388 million, grew by 7.01% when compared to same
period last year mainly due to the timely adjustment on marketing

strategy and well control operating expenses.
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According to AC Nielsen's latest survey, in terms of sales volume and
value, year-to-date December 2014, the Group’s instant noodles gained
46.8% and 56.4% market share. respectively, remained as the leader in
the market. The economic downturn and a change in the consumption
market have led to a decrease in the original quantity of instant noodle
consumers. It is expected that the instant noodle market will level off
in the coming year. However, an increase in the demand for high-end
products will facilitate the entire product category to gradually enhance
its image. The Group will expedite the launch of innovative product
offerings and high end products to satisfy the market in a timely
manner.

By leveraging the influence of “Yu e Quan”,”Master Kong Braised Beef
Noodle” constantly communicated the brand proposition of “Persisting
in Dreams, Supporting You All the Way" and jointly sponsored the
“Sound of China Dream”, a variety show program of Dragon TV, to
support the music dreams of young people. It also initiated the activity
of releasing sky lanterns and expanded the dissemination effectiveness
by means of networks and terminals so as to make the brand younger.
In cooperation with CUBA, it strengthened campus promotion among
university students to cultivate the concept of healthy branding. “Braised
Ribs Noodle"”, a brother flavor of the classical braised beef noodle, had

been sought after by consumers and networks since its launch.
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Master Kong's Pickled Mustard series continued to refine its flavors.
While the ingredients were enriched by adding both meat and egg,
market competitiveness was continuously reinforced to dominate market
topics. We engaged Xu Zheng and Wang Baogiang as ambassadors to
strengthen the dissemination of the product differentiation theme of
“It is cool to have the sour flavor but it is even cooler to have Master
Kong's Pickled Mustard Beef Noodle"”, thus suppressing the growth
space of major competing products and constantly seizing market
shares.

We fully developed sales regions for popular flavors. The Pickled
Chilli series developed the northern region with two flavors and
developed the southern region with gravy noodle with tomato and egg.
Meanwhile, new flavors were actively launched to enrich the product
line. Old vinegar sour and spicy noodle with shredded meat (ZFRES Bk
BRA44HE), gravy noodle with fresh mushroom and egg (B & HEEST
KI4H), gravy noodle with hot sour and spicy egg (B3R5 % & 4T K4M),
rich soup product seafood pork bone noodle (2H55 A 54,8 i B 4H)
were launched in succession during the year.

A fried noodle combo product was newly launched in late October
with the unique product design of “fried noodle + soup” to attract
consumers who prefer fried noodle with a rich taste. The thoughtful
design of tasty soup was added to stimulate new demand. To develop
the innovative product market, the focus was put on the product
. Both Mian Ba and
vermicelli achieved good results after re-adjusting their product

advantage of “having both noodle and soup”

positioning.
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“Fresh Banquet”, a new product category, was launched in April, the
findings of a tracking survey revealed that its most attractive factors to
consumers were the three core benefits of “steamed noodles”, “free
of MSG" and “rich ingredients”, and the principal customer group
was consistent with the target set at the time of launching. The largest
portion of growth in sales came from non-eaters or seldom eaters of
instant noodles and consumers with demand for high-end noodles.
Its rate of repeated purchases was notably higher than other high-end
noodles, reflecting its potential in driving growth for the whole product
category of instant noodles. By leveraging on the influence of the movie
“But Always” ( {—H—t) ) in interactive communication over the
internet, complemented with local high quality offline promotional
events and operation over Weibo, publicity over the internet soar
notably.

The RMB 0.5 “Xiang Bao Cui” snack noodle continued organizing the
campaign of “Grab a dream gift and Win one more pack” and the
RMB 1 Prestige Pack was launched this year, sales of which focusing
on core urban areas rose at steady pace, and took over the traditional
premium price snack noodle market. “Cui Xuan Feng” and “Crispy
Fatty” developed more regular packs, expanded the channels of direct
marketing or e-commerce, and complemented with online activities to
increase its brand energy.

To cater for the dual development of the no-frills and high-end
consumer market segments, while more tastes and varieties of products
under existing brands were launched in the market during 2014,
innovative new products, such as “Fresh Banquet”, “Mian Ba Cooked
Noodle”, “Fried Noodle Combo” and “Crispy Fatty”, were streaming
onto the market one after the other, bringing diversified choices and
good value for money for consumers.
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In production management, enhancement in the mechanism of
production determined by sales forecast and improvement in logistics
increased the benefits resulting from coordinated production and sales.
Continuous quality improvement programs were organized for staff
and the manufacturing process was optimized to reduce quantitative
deviation in order to elevate the gross profit margin of products.
Production techniques for new product categories were actively
developed and introduced to make better preparations for the smooth
launching of products. The second generation plant was completed
and commenced operation during the year, standardized operation
was implemented persistently for providing consumers with super
quality products. Food safety inspection commenced rapidly, source
management was strengthened, corporate image enhancement was
actively pursued, all the plants of our Group presented flawless safety
testing results during the visits of the inspection authorities, ensuring
safe quality for consumers.

In 2015, further development of high-end and diversified products will
continue to benefit the consumers in general. With ongoing adjustments
to the economic structure of China, great potential for development
in Tier 3 and Tier 4 cities still exists with inflows of population. We will
continue optimizing the management system, collaborate with channel
partners, implement end-user service and reinforce growth in our results
performance. In response to an economic downturn and conservative
consumer sentiment, personnel will be streamlined in business
segments, indirect and direct efforts will be made to ensure profitability,

and mobile sales tool (e-CRC) will be utilized to improve efficiency.
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Instant Food

According to AC Nielsen, the overall cracker market remained in the
doldrums throughout 2014. Overall market sales volume of crackers
declined by 2.7% year-on-year. Due to the economic downturn and
the slow down of cracker market, turnover of the instant food business
amounted to US$178.729 million, representing a drop of 11.88%
year-on-year, and 1.75% of the Group’s total turnover. Gross margin
dropped by 1.91 ppt. to 36.18% mainly due to the increase of main
raw material price and processing cost, the sales decline from the bakery
business and the sales from new business have not been stable. Owing
to the expenses spending on establishing markets and advertising
and propaganda activities for the new product development of new
business, the instant food business recorded a loss of US$17.449
million.

According to the latest AC Nielsen's survey result, in terms of sales
value, year-to-date December 2014, Master Kong's egg rolls gained
a market share of 23.8% and ranked No. 1 in the market. Sandwich
cracker gained 16.3% market share and ranked No. 2 in the market.
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During the period, Master Kong's bakery business in the 3+2 sandwich
crackers organized competition at six universities in five major cities
across China through integrated thematic activities online and offline
and an activity area was designated for singing in the mobile phone
APP, and the new theme of “a piece of 3+2, more joyful together”
(—H83+2 —HRE EEE) was launched in the second half of the year,
enhancing the positive branding influence effectively. The promotion
activity “Ah Li brings you a surprising delightful treasure hunt” (Fi2
HIREZ5%) was organized in the first half of the year for Master
Kong's muffin cakes, enthusiastic participation from consumers were
attracted through online lucky draws, offline promotion bazaar and
cross-industry promotions at animated cartoon exhibitions. In the
second half of the year, the “wonderful way of eating, love to share”
(2 3k, 5 =) campaign was fully launched to call for consumers’
participation in many innovative ways of eating muffins. Master Kong's
eqgg rolls collaborate with mousse sandwich balls, cheerful balls ($43<ZK)
and 3+2 sandwich rolls to launch the promotion campaign of “100%
prize winning, joyful sharing with friends and relatives” (5 2£100%, %
R —#%F), branding promotion and offline sales were perfectly blended,
interactive communication with consumers were also organized through
combining the official campaign website, Weibo and Weixin platforms
and e-commerce platform to enhance branding recognition and
awareness.

In the Calbee leisure food business, the strategy was focused on Calbee
potato while puffing food was developed as a sideline, striving to
create an image of leisure food expert. Seaweed flavor potato chips in
cup packs and the twin-flavor potato chip packs were additional new
products, competitiveness was increased through launching the 15%
extra volume big cups in August of 2014, and a series of consumer
promotion activities including the “Green Storm”, “Transformers”,
“World Cup”, and “Animated Cartoon — One Piece” were planned to
enhance the branding awareness as well as cumulating branding assets
to drive sales. According to AC Nielsen data, Calbee potato was ranking
No.1 in the potato fries category in 2014. In 2015, the shaping and
publicity focus will be on DNA, the “popular commodity in Taiwan,
Hong Kong and Japan” (&% H AR m), and online promotions
through social groups of both Weibo and Weixin will be launched at the
same time to consolidate and attain growth in market shares.
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Kongquan (Hangzhou) Food Co., Ltd., a company jointly set up by
the Group and Asahi Food & Healthcare Co., Ltd., launched the new
product of sugar-free mint candy “MINTIA Cool Life” (MINTIAESE),
through the branding slogan of “good breath in a flash, faster than
you think” (B#fE4f O &, R EIZEAE]), with core focus on Shanghai and
convenient channels, samples were distributed in office buildings and
road shows were organized for launching the new product to facilitate
verbal publicity for the product and enhance the branding awareness
of consumers. Currently, it has been included on the Top 10 list of mint
candies marketed through family convenient channels and received
initial recognition in the market, setting the foundation for a full-scale
sales promotion in 2015.

The instant food business continued to optimize its organization
structure, system and operation process and engaged in the production
and operations of various categories of food products in China, such as
cake snacks, potato made leisure food, cool candies, infant milk powder
and materials, dried meat floss, etc. In future, the instant food business
will continue to develop along the line of diversification, innovation
and internationalization in operations, and will accelerate the structural
adjustment of new business channel on the basis of re-shaping the core
bakery business to control loss within a reasonable extent.

Looking ahead in 2015, the instant food business will continue the
overall strategy of “reducing loss, adjusting structure and stabilizing
growth”. The product strategies will focus on re-shaping the core
bakery products, the market share of the core product line will be
expanded through innovations in products and marketing to consolidate
its leading position as a category leader. New businesses will focus on
post-branding differentiated operations by capturing the consumption
trend accurately to increase the satisfaction level of consumers
effectively. The sales strategies of instant noodle business will continue
to adjust the Go To Market Model by strengthening indirect and direct
efforts and channel innovations to focus on key regional operations. In
production and quality management, automation of production and
manufacturing processes will be improved and production costs will be
strictly controlled to enhance the gross profit margin of products, while
inspection of the sources of raw materials will be reinforce and customer
complaint handling process will be improved to ensure food safety.
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BEVERAGE BUSINESS

In 2014, the beverage industry in China grew at a slower rate. Impact of
factors, such as economic downturn and unstable weather conditions,
resulted in lower than expected growth in consumption, sales volume in
the overall beverage market increased by 2.6% year-on-year, lower than
the growth rate at 6.9% in 2013, and the operating environment was
full of challenges.

In 2014, turnover for beverage business decreased by 7.46% to
US$5,801.005 million year on year, representing 56.66% of the Group's
total turnover. During the year, gross margin of beverage business
increased by 1.17 ppt. to 31.92% due to the decrease in costs of raw
materials such as PET resin and sugar. Confronted with such a severe
market environment, we improved our control over distribution costs
on one hand, while implementing Master Kong-Pepsi alliance structural
consolidation during the year for more efficient operations in future
resulting in an impact on profit growth. Profit attributable to owners of
the Company from the beverage business was US$71.956 million, year-
on-year grew by 1.35%. Excluding the structural consolidation cost, the
profit grew by 50.21% year-on-year.
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According to AC Nielsen data, in terms of sales volume, year-to-date
December 2014, the Group’s RTD tea (include milk tea) gained 53.9%
market share, grew by 2.1 ppt. when compared to same period last
year, continued to rank No. 1 in the market. The market share of the
Group's RTD tea with milk was 19.4%. In the bottled water market, the
Group gained 20.8% market share and ranked No.1. By leveraging on
the fruit juice brands under Master Kong (Master Kong juice, Fresh Daily
C, New Taste for Traditional Drink, Crystal Sugar Series and Traditional
Fruit Mix) and Pepsi's Tropicana, the market share of the Group in the
overall fruit juice market in China was 23.9%, ranking No. 2. According
to the Canadean data base, in terms of sales volume, year-to-date
December 2014, the market share of the Group's carbonated soft drink
was 30.3%. While for Cola flavor and fruit flavor market segments,
the Group gained 48.3% and 38.7% market share respectively, both
remain a leading market position.

The beverage business of Tingyi followed the market consumption trend
and fulfilled consumers’ beverage needs in all scenarios, continued to
develop new flavor, new formula and new packing, adopt marketing
strategies integrated with digital marketing tools and disseminated the
ideas of a new, healthy and tasty lifestyle to share excellent products
combining healthy and tasty flavors with consumers in general.

The RTD tea product series, such as iced tea and green tea, continued
to capitalize on the concept of positive young and vigorous energy
by following the trendy line to capture the young consumer group
tightly. The jasmine tea series discovered a new drinking season under
the theme of romance, beverages of sugar-free tea series focused on
original flavor to satisfy the needs of health curious consumers. Milk tea
and hot sugar-free tea drinks were promoted through capturing the
winter drinking season and warmed up the consumers with aromatic

strong milky taste and strong tea fragrance.
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Fruit juice products are clearly divided into two main categories of
traditional Chinese fruit juices and western fruit juices to cover more
preferences in consumer tastes. The traditional Chinese fruit juice series,
New Taste for Traditional Drink (f&tt#78X) and Traditional Fruit Mix
(EERE), developed along the themes of Chinese traditional classic
taste and health preservation and nourishment, respectively, to further
improve their formulae. Master Kong's fruit juices and Fresh Daily C
under the western fruit juice category provide tasty fruit juices rich in
vitamins and nourishing ingredients for good health and continuous
innovations for enhanced products will be pursued.

For bottled water, the Youyue Mineral Water (215 %) 7K) continued
to provide better services to customers and consumers through more
production facilities and efficient distribution networks. Moreover, by
launching natural mineral water flowing from its source in Changbai
Mountain, there will be more production bases at quality water sources
in future to satisfy more extensive needs in the consumer market.
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For carbonated drinks, the promotional activities of PepsiCo, “Bring
home ‘la’" (IBZEFEEIZK) and the “UTC event of turning into local
rich persons together” (—#2%& +UTC/EE)) as well as the annual
campaign of Mirinda, the “Most Popular Fruit Flavor Drink” (KA
SE), were warmly received by young people. Pepsi Cola drinks has
been the No.1 brand in the cola drink market of China since 2005. The
development of non-carbonated beverages was critical to the long-

term development of the Pepsi beverage business. In 2014, a focused
strategy was adopted. In 2014, the operation of Gatorade in China
had been stable. Focuses were placed in communicating and educating
consumers in Southern and Eastern China. Apart from stabilizing the
penetration rate of the products we also proactively deploy the “sports
facilities” channels with an aim to lock Gatorade as the No. 1 brand
of professional sports drinks. During the year, Tropicana launched
innovative flavors successively to enrich the product line and revitalize its
brand, its subordinate brand of fresh fruit crumbs was launched in May
with a brand new apple flavor, the sales volume increased rapidly so far.
A new mango-apricot flavor was launched under the fruit cocktail brand
and its unique blended flavor won overwhelming popularity among
young consumers in general! During the period, Aquafina Pure Water
drove sales growth through using new shape and design of bottles.
And through the densely distributed production facilities established by
Tingyi, costs were reduced by sufficiently exploiting the economies of
scale effect, and the advantages of a Master Kong — Pepsi alliance were
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fully revealed to fulfill various needs of customers from all channels to
achieve the ultimate objectives of strengthening core competitiveness
and creating competitive edges.

Tingyi, through the development of its effective energy and water saving
and consumption reduction measures, improvements in production
process and equipment and optimization in workflow process,
outstanding performance has been achieved in energy saving, emission
reduction and enhancement of production efficiency. Through the
establishment of the beverage and food safety system and continuous
strengthening of the supplier source management system, it strives to
lead the industry into a healthy and sustainable development direction.

The Shanghai Disney Resort will open by the end of 2015. Tingyi-Asahi
Beverages Holding Co., Ltd. and PepsiCo Inc. are strategic cooperation
partners, they will continue to plan marketing activities with special
features and influences. It is expected worldwide consumers will
experience the Chinese tea beverage culture at the Shanghai Disney
Resort for further promotion internationally.

In 2015, the Chinese economy enters a new normal state, the market
is expected to transform under the central government policies.
Tingyi will continue to capitalize on the organization advantages and
integrated marketing effectiveness of the Master Kong — Pepsi alliance.
Through the use of new media and new technologies, continuous
refined development of electronic channels, reducing costs by energy
saving and low carbon measures, strengthening product category
management, responding to market changes accurately and rapidly
and the development of innovative products, more differentiated
business opportunities will be captured. In the area of brand building
and consumer communication, a healthy, sportive and new lifestyle is
encouraged, persistent innovations in production process are pursued
and food safety will be strictly guarded, in order to provide healthy,
nourishing, safe and tasty quality products and for delivering healthy,
touching and positive energies to peer enterprises, community and the
public.
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FINANCING

The Group continued to maintain a stable and healthy finance structure
through the effective control of trade receivables, trade payables,
cash and inventories. The Group believes it to be appropriate to
maintain sufficient cash balances. At 31 December 2014, the Group's
cash and bank deposits totaled US$1,183.103 million, a decrease
of US$66.787 million from the previous year. The Group’s total
assets and total liabilities amounted to approximately US$9,206.057
million and US$5,110.393 million respectively, representing increases
of US$781.736 million and US$612.459 million respectively when
compared to 31 December 2013. The debt ratio increased by 2.12 ppt.
t0 55.51% as compared with the same period in 2013.

At the end of 2014, the Group’s total borrowings increased by
US$952.475 million to US$2,628.754 million. The borrowings were
mainly used for acquisition of properties for the Group’s Shanghai
operation center and production facilities and general working capital.
The Group has further adjusted the structure of borrowings by
increasing the proportion of borrowings in Renminbi. As a result, the
proportion of the total borrowings denominated in foreign currencies
and Renminbi was 82% and 18%, last year was 88% and 12%
respectively. The proportion between long-term loans and short-term
loans was 47%: 53%, as compared with 39%: 61% in 2013. The
Group's transactions were mainly denominated in Renminbi. During
the year, the depreciation in Renminbi against the US Dollar of 2.27%
brought an exchange loss in aggregate of US$117.740 million, the
exchange loss of US$15.742 million and US$101.998 million have been
included in the income statement and exchange translation reserve
respectively.
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During the reporting period, the Group announced a voluntary
retirement plan (the “Plan”) for its employees as a result of an
integration programme of its Pepsi beverage business. The Group has
made an offer of the Plan to the affected employees who can decide
to accept the offer of benefits in exchange for the termination of their
employments.

The termination benefits of US$73,017,000 have been recognised as
expenses during the reporting period. The estimated possible obligation
of termination benefits is about US$70,000,000 which is expected to
be settled between 2015 and 2016 if all the offers are accepted by
qualified employees.

Bt R Financial Ratio

BZE12A3181L

For the year ended
31 December

20145 20134
BUPK on B ¥ A Finished goods turnover 11.73 Days/H  12.90 Days/H
JRE L R KB $E B Trade receivables turnover 8.89 Days/H 8.23 Days/H
mEhtE = Current ratio 0.64 Times/f%  0.66 Times/f%
FAGFEEEARLE (FEEMEER Gearing ratio (Net debt to equity

ﬁiﬂﬁj%%%%\tt%) attributable to owners of the Company) 0.48 Times/f&  0.15 Times/f&

BELE (LBEHRYNEEE) Debt ratio (Total liabilities to total assets) 55.51% 53.39%
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HUMAN RESOURCES

Human Resource Division has been continuously dedicated in carving
the keystone for the Group with human resource management and
development while upholding the corporate mission and vision of
“Promoting Chinese Food Culture” and “Establishing as a Prestigious
Company”. Aiming to achieve corporate goals and missions with a
lean organization and efficient management, the employee number of
the Group as at 31 December 2014 was 79,003, slightly adjusted from
80,541 as at the same time the previous year. In addition to improving
and polishing fundamental HR practices in recruiting, employment,
training, and compensation, the center of HR focus and activities in
2014 was to identify, nourish, and develop potential talents, aspiring to
maintaining current HR competitive strengths, reinforcing talent pool
excellences, as well as endowing the Group with innovative capacity for
sustainable growth and prosperity in the coming decade.

The first priority of Human Resource Management projects in 2014
were high potential development program, critical-talent pipeline
management, continual promotion of successor program, and
implementation of talent development roadmap. As an example of
outstanding achievements, 51% members of high level critical-talent
pipeline program were promoted as regional general managers in
2014. High potential development program was aiming for elevating
leadership and management skills of current and future managers,
and to coordinate with organization reengineering to equip the Group
with corporate core competence for sustainable growth. Tasks included
talent core competence identification, introducing high potential
evaluation system, and initiating training courses for all level employees.

Corresponding to the Group’s development strategy: New Mindset for
the next decade demonstrated as the relocation at the New Landmark,
W Square, in Shanghai in early 2015, and preparing for the next giant
leap on the New Stage, the HR objectives were set to contribute to the
continual and flourishing success of the Group.
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PRODUCTION SCALE

In order to boost the production efficiency, Master Kong will continue
to expand the production scale of products with potentials in
development, while optimizing production equipment, so as to support
the leading position of the Group in the food industry in China in terms
of production efficiency. As at 31 December 2014, the Group had 129
production plants and 697 production lines in operation.

With respect to the instant noodle business, as the world’s single
largest instant noodle factory, Tianjin and Hangzhou have already
commenced production and being supported with advanced computer
logistics and warehousing facilities. The development strategy deployed
by the production operation of the beverage business is still focused
on accelerating the supply of water station. At the same time the
supply network of product will further improve by targeting at the
market demand and increasing the production capacity as appropriate.
The creation of Master Kong & PepsiCo alliance brought synergies,
which gradually increased the production capacity of carbonated
drinks in 2014, making the production bases for Pepsi carbonated
beverage continued to expand. At the same time, by leveraging on the
advantages of the allocation of the bottled water factories of Master
Kong, the OEM sites for Pepsi’s bottled water were added in the Master
Kong drinking water factories network. This had effectively improved
availability of products at new markets and reduced the logistics costs.
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QUALITY MANAGEMENT

It is a corporate responsibility to provide food that is safe, nutritious
and of high quality, which is also a basis for sustainable growth. Master
Kong is not only the leader in the instant noodle industry, but also plays
an important role in the beverage and pastry industries. By adhering
to continuous improvement in the technologies for the management
of food safety, it is the most solid protection for providing satisfaction
to consumers. With the support of international food safety team,
enhancement for the food safety management system, supply chain
assessment systems, food defense and environmental monitoring
programs were facilitated. We cooperate with experts in food safety to
evaluate raw materials and the risks of food safety in the production
processes. We will prepare from different aspects in building our own
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R - FEHDRBPESREEIER R laboratory of international standards to inspect unknown contaminant

AEDRBHEN £ REEIEERIZE detection, identify adulterated adulteration, and basic research in
Z 2NN BERA - REBERM processing by-product of doing basic research. We will continue to
BELZE - 2EHERENRMG - promote the construction of information system with retrospective

tracing ability so as to enhance the tracing ability of products from a
retrospective aspect. We will combine source management and process
monitoring, and devote our best endeavours to improve and enhance
on an ongoing basis, so as to provide consumers with food that is most

safe, nutritious and healthy.
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In 2014, facing difficulties and challenges in the operating environment
in general, despite the Group's results were below expectation, all
products were able to maintain a leadership position in the market.
Amid changing business environments such as continuous decrease
in growth rate of the economy, rapid structural change of consumer
markets and rising operating costs, in order to enhance the Group's
overall performance and achieve future sustainable development
to enable steady growth of results, the Group consolidated the
management of positions with headquarters staff functions for its
previous food business and beverage business on 1 November 2014
and progressively streamlined its organizational structure in the fourth
quarter to cope with the rapidly changing environmental and achieve
the three major milestones of cost cutting, efficiency enhancement
and innovation. In January 2015, the Shanghai operational centre has
commenced operation and the top management with training and
development for years are successively in place, coupled with enhanced
performance of modern office equipment and system, the Group will be
able to realize efficient use of resources and more effective operation.

It is expected the operating environment in 2015 will still bring
enormous challenges. Facing the sluggish economy and the rapid
change in the consumer market, the overall operation of the Group
will sustain a steady operation, exercise sound control over costs and
capital expenditures, and innovate new segments/products. At the
same time we have to strengthen our adaptability so as to improve
team skills, tackle enormous challenges and create synergies, which will
bring sustainable growth in the results of the Group. We will leverage
on the solid and rich infrastructure, well-established sales network and
favourable market advantages to enhance brand value continuously,
invest in product innovation capabilities to enrich product items and
categories, further develop sales channels to increase penetration ability,
maintain communication with consumers to strengthen the system on
rapid response to market to stimulate per capita consumption in order
to increase growth of sales, and in turn enhance the market leading
position of the Group in all product categories. Meanwhile, production
efficiency will be refined, quality management will be strictly controlled,
food safety will be ensured, organization structure and training for
talents will be strengthened in order to enhance the overall operation
efficiency. Strong and sound financial conditions will be maintained to
be well-prepared for capturing future business expansion opportunities.

AediziERAa TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.
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With respect to the food business, we will focus on the innovation
in the type of instant noodles and launch high-end products. At the
same time we will consolidate the operation with modern channels
and electricity appliance vendors’ channels. With respect to the instant
food business, we will focus on the operation of core products and
will proactively research and develop new products. Through the
innovation of products and brands, we will provide more exuberant,
safe and delicious food to the consumers. As to the beverage business,
we will continue to consolidate the market share of leading products,
whilst the innovation of new segments and products will speed up.
Services with terminals will be optimized and the operation skills with
the new channels will enhance. Emphasis will be placed on enhancing
the synergies, optimizing the channel structure and perfecting the
management system of supply chain for Pepsi beverages.

Under the joint efforts of its excellent operation teams and all
employees, and the support from consumers and network partners, the
Group will constantly strengthen the recognition and reputation of the
“Master Kong” brand, and expand the influence of the brand to further
strengthen its leadership in the China market in terms of each products
and to drive sustainable and solid growth in the future so as to bring

returns to the society and its shareholders with better performance.
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CONSISTENT INTERPRETATION OF CHINESE CULINARY
CULTURE

Let everyone tasting delicious dishes is Master Kong's belief. We studied
the traditional Chinese culinary culture in-depth in different aspects:
color, smell and taste to modernize the traditional taste.

Tasty dishes — Instant noodles

Through modern production technique, Master Kong uses “Tasty
dishes” strategy to absorb the Chinese extensive culinary tradition and
profound culinary culture, which integrates different Chinese cooking
skill into instant noodles and subtly transforms into various products
that well-received by the market.

In addition to Braised Beef Noodle, Spicy Beef Noodle, Mushroom and
Braised Chicken Noodle, Seafood and Fish Pan Noodle, Pickled Mustard
Beef Noodle and Sour and Spicy Beef Noodle launched nationwide,
Master Kong also designs regional or characterized brands such as
“Northeastern Braised”, “Scented Sauce Tradition”, “JiangNan Delicious
Food”, “Chili Oil”, “Sour Smell Family”, “Daily Soup” and “Asian Hot
Picks” according to various distinguished food styles of different regions,
which creates over 200 tastes of instant noodles “Manchu Han Imperial

Feast”.

Thrilling enjoy — Beverage

Inherited the mission to further develop Chinese culinary culture, Master
Kong steps into beverage from food and unveils another chapter of our
business development process by virtue of understanding of tea culture.

Master Kong's tea products are diverse and rich, which covers cool iced
black tea, healthy green tea, heritably oolong tea and Ti Kian Yin, as
well as Jasmine tea series symbolized great tenderness of youth. “New
Taste for Traditional Drink” series is a new attempt launched by Master
Kong based on the fertile soil of Chinese culinary culture after our tea
drinks recognized by consumers. Regardless of sour plum soup or jujube
juice originated from the imperial secret recipe, or crystal sugar pear
suitable for healthy habit in cold seasons, our products are often well-
received by the market.




¥ EEE Corporate Social Responsibility Report

LEHEENSRUETRKEEMEBE —HIA
RHERFS - Bk - AR T HREKBZIN
HAERNBEBRBRT - BRKAKR
KR - WBEEEN TR - REF
RENER  FEGEAEQFE2012
FEK M - ERmAIR B B2 B R
BOEE  E—ShREMBENELE
BXBE A B M BEME SR - R BB B & B 8K
HEMNEETERE - NHZHEE -

PERE-TERREX
HEEKENER HEEHRKROR

HHEBERE EaRZIN BERES
—HREB o RMEASPERR LN

REFFBERNHEIMITRT - #EHER
- PRARI+2BIRL RS - RHRERHE
BENGR RANEEBERER O
fERE o

—IREEE

RTEEHHEERRTINER  FEE
HEMBBRER BEITEAENEE
HAERENSERE  £REEERE
MERT  BE—EAHLAAEE - &
HEERD - ZEAEEEEE 0 A
BREPFERREANEEEA -

FEE-—BERHEERALERCE - K
BREEL2EENRMERRRER - —
DRREME AR ERERERIERER
IR | 2REERHESNES  BA
EEBRIERELZE FEZELFHE
- BEEERHMEER -

AR HREREESBATAGRRENE
ERE ROEEMNIGZA  RAEIER
PERITENEECEREAERML SN
LERENEESEMT - BERETEBEEN
FEE1S0220000 EIREE XK - A R TER
EERY  BERRRLTENEHAES -
BREREERT S -

Master Kong has been insisted to enrich diversified demands of
consumers, thus, apart from tea drinks, we extends product lines to
cover juice, bottled water and milky drinks, in order to satisfy various
preferences of consumers. Uphold the same philosophy, Master Kong
reached an agreement with PepsiCo in 2012, pursuant to which, we
built a relationship of strategic alliance in beverage to further develop
our products offerings to carbonated and energy drinks, and constantly
to strive sophisticatedly to satisfy consumer’s comprehensive demand
for beverage products.

Sharing happiness - Instant food

Along with takeoff of economy, consumers’ preferences for food have
been diversified, which needs more funs in addition to satiety. Master
Kong launched egg rolls, Muffin and 3+2 biscuit series combined with
Chinese culinary culture and Western modern pastries baking technique,
which are also well-received by consumers and become the best choice
of sharing every enjoyable moment.

ALL FOR THE CUSTOMERS

In order to produce responsible products for consumers, Master Kong
strictly manages raw materials, concerns about staff hygiene and various
cycles of production processes and controls every detail under the goal
of accurate controlled quality. Master Kong commits to bring consumers
peace-of-mind, it is also the cornerstone of our thriving growth.

Master Kong has always upheld customer food safety as its
responsibility, which targets to build a positive cycle of quality and safety
management. All thanks to Master Kong's dedicated support for the
guiding principle of total quality control “from farm to table” . Master
Kong invested heavily to control food safety from the source and closely
monitored the upstream supply chain through tight management of the
raw materials and suppliers.

Food safety and product quality have been the top priority related to
life and health, and also the foundation of enterprises. Being a leading
enterprise in the fast moving consumer goods industry, Master Kong
holds the important responsibility of food safety and quality guarantee.
Master Kong constantly builds and improves ISO220000 management
system, establishes risk prevention management system, implements
entire control over food safety and ensures product quality and safety.
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Improving food safety risk prevention management system

Master Kong has reasonable plant layout and scientific process
design ensuring sound production foundation conditions; ensures
food safety throughout the production process by control over
various cycles such as staff hygiene/water safety/pest control/
waste treatment/chemicals control; manages different cycles such
as strengthening food prevention, regulating seal of raw materials,
product tracing and video surveillance device; constantly conducts
hazard analysis of every product processes and implements
dynamic control over key points;

Establishing efficient food safety tracing system

Master Kong has completed the establishment of tracing system
demonstration factory, which realizing end to end product batches
tracing. Tracking marks for turnover and processing of every raw
material and every production processes and “record” of tracking
information during the process of stocking of raw materials to
stocking of finished goods. Flow of finished goods/raw materials
can be enquired immediately, and tracing can be finished within 4
hours; launching batches management, systemizing the material
receiving/material sending/stratification/stock-taking batches
information in the warehouse to enhance management level.

Strengthening supplier tracing management

Master Kong systematically establishes and regulates raw material,
including the development of food contact surfaces spare parts
of spare parts suppliers, supplier evaluation and reward and
punishment, food safety signal testing management and annual
revaluation of supplier’s operation process. We adopt various risk
control methods according to the quantification analysis result of
supplier evaluation. Possessing sources of raw material of supplier,
supplier’'s management of supply chain, establishing complete
information files and information platform, realizing efficient
management of raw material tracing, which enables management
to make various decisions based on facts;
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Strictly control process quality and safety

Master Kong systematically formulated the process flow for
collection and update of applicable laws and regulations from
the intake of raw materials to the factory to the despatch of
finished goods, such as labeling and additives, HACCP analysis,
establishment of CCP and OPRP, set up of key limits, monitoring
and verification method, implementation of rectification/
rectification measures, disqualified products treatment
standard and crisis management. Strict finished product testing
management system, establishes testing benchmarks stricter than
national standard to reduce the risk of food safety; implements
shipping examination for every batches, ensures product quality;
implements annual finished product model testing system and
guarantees product complied with the regulations;

Applying advance food safety testing method

Master Kong's laboratory equips with professional testing
equipments such as gas chromatography—mass spectrometry
device, liquid chromatography device and ion chromatography
device, which can test food safety indicators such as preservative,
plasticizer and pesticide residue; equips with microplate reader
for testing mycotoxins in flour, equips with Rancimat testing
device for testing oil quality; Master Kong is developing BioLumix
microorganism real-time fluorescence optical testing system,
which microorganism testing time can be dramatically shortened
to 24 hours.

“Food is No. 1 need and food safety is the first consideration”.
Food safety is the key variable of future development of
enterprise. Establishing food safety and maintaining food quality is
a heavy responsibility and long way to go. Being a leading brand
in the fast moving consumer goods industry, Master Kong has no
doubt to hold the industry responsibility of food safety and quality
guarantee. Master Kong will constantly strive for product quality
and food safety, as well as provide consumers with safe, tasty and
healthy food.

2014 Annual Rey
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Food safety has always been the core concern for Master Kong
through the combined efforts on energy-saving and environmental
protection, social charities, talent development and cross-strait
cultural exchanges. Also, Master Kong was awarded the honor of
the “2014 “Food Safety Cup” Most Popular Best Ten Food Safety
Enterprise” jointly organized by Chinese Food Safety Publicity
Web and Food Safety Mall, Daily, as well as being recognized and
acclaimed at the important annual conference on food safety for
six consecutive years, and being recognized the honor of the “Most
Favorite Brand of University Student” for nine consecutive years.
Besides, Master Kong was being awarded “2014 Asia Brand 500",
being listed in the World’s Most Innovative Companies published
by Forbes, being listed in the top of 2014 Top 50 Chinese FMCG
Brands Footprint of 2014 Global Brand Footprint published by
Kantar Worldpanel, a research institute. Master Kong's instant
noodle/tea drinks/bottled water was being awarded Top Brand
in 2014 C-BPI published by Ministry of Industry and Information
Technology for four consecutive years. Master Kong also won
the “Best Product Brand Award” and the “Best Food & Beverage
Brand Award"” granted by the German Brands Association in
March 2014.

ALL FOR THE PARTNERS

Master Kong treats “people” as the core, committed to develop the
maximum value of people-oriented. With well-developed policies
regarding talents selection, development, allocation and retention,
Master Kong continues to develop and retain talents.

Externally, we implement the recruitment and training mechanism, in
order to retain manpower to cope with business growth; internally, we
actively take care of employees’ daily living, organize a wide range of
management training courses and concept training course to improve
their professional quality to tackle various challenges. We offer market-
competitive salary for staff, and a fair and impartial appraisal system
to encourage employees for self-challenge. In order to cultivate next-
generation, Master Kong also provides employees’ children scholarship,
for the children of employees interested in further studies to expand
their horizons. Taking into account the development and retention
of employees, talent is not only one of the core competitivenesses of
Master Kong's rapid growth, but also the cornerstone of sustainable
development of enterprise.

AediziERAT TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.
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Excellent partners not only include internal professional staff with
team spirit, but also include external upstream and downstream raw
materials, network supply chain, third-party providers and business
partners. Master Kong's robust growth comes from close collaboration
with partners. Such symbiotic relationship also provides partners with
vision of sustainable development, as well as the opportunity for mutual
growth.

ALL FOR THE INVESTORS

Shareholder is one of the important momentums to drive business
growth. Master Kong shoulders the expectations from investors, in
addition to improving products, also enhancing the requirements
of corporate governance. In the hierarchy of the Board, we have
independent non-executive directors, who review enterprise’s major
decisions whether aligns with interest of shareholders from the with
independent view; and implement internal control system through
various committees and inter audit unit, as well as engage external
independent auditor to ensure transparency of enterprise information.

Master Kong not only complies with Listing Company requirements,
but also strive to reward support from investors with sustainable real
growth.

ALL FOR THE SOCIETY — CONTRIBUTION TO THE
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Master Kong upholds the principle of leading the industry development
in a healthy and orderly manner, and contributes to the sustainable
development of society and environment. By following and continuing
those measures in 2013, Master Kong will further implement energy-
saving and emission-reduction while improving production efficiency:

Instant noodle business uses steam as main energy. We generates social
impacts step by step through following measures: improving vapor heat
efficiency by introducing oversea advanced heating kettle technology;
constantly improving steam system with stable pressure and stable
flow to enhance the steam productivity, as well as launching a energy
saving and stable flow of steamer gas-distribution cylinder project;
as for adapting production process requirements, separately building
special stream pipes with different pressures to reduce damages; using
the residual heat of air compressor to conduct circulating water heat;
using professional testing device to regularly check and maintain valve
of stream system and devices.
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For the usage of water and electricity, reduce usage of water by using
new technology; using reclaimed water to maintain lawn; optimizing
electrical equipment configuration portfolio and driving inverter energy
saving technology, Master Kong implements factory internal energy
strengthening management, establishes energy saving measures and
implements energy evaluation system of job responsibility. In 2014,
the annual conservation of resources amounted to 32,700 tonnes of
steam, 314,100 tons of water and 4,915,300 units of electricity, and
waste water discharge was reduced by 197,400 cubic meters, which
were equivalent to a reduction of carbon dioxide emissions by 29,900
tonnes, a reduction of carbon emissions by 8,200 tonnes. In 2014, our
products’ stream BOM, electricity BOM, water BOM dropped 4.12%,
5.03% and 6.42%, respectively, which generated direct efficiency of
US$ 1.44million (RMB 9million).

In the beverage business, a total of 36 plants (complex plants and
water plants) in 2014 were awarded the title of Outstanding Enterprise
on Energy Saving after passing the examination for qualifying as an
Outstanding Enterprise on Energy Saving organized by China Beverage
Industry Association (hereinafter referred to as “CBIA"). 28 plants were
awarded the title of Outstanding Enterprise on Water Saving upon
passing the relevant examination organized by CBIA. In 2014, a total
investment of US$4.675 million (RMB29.22 million) was invested in
new/reformed sewage treatment plants, including Hefei, Yinchuan,
Shijiazhuang, Yangzhou, Lanzhou and Hangzhou.

Through the sewage treatment projects, a total volume of 47,500 —
58,500 tonnes/day of sewage water was treated, of which all new
sewage treatment design met the second grade of national discharging
standard.

Through enhancing the management and recycling of concentrated
water, variable frequency and energy saving, recycling of condensed
water and other energy and water saving measures, Master Kong
achieved an annual saving of 1.07 million tons of water, 64 million units
of electricity and 64,000 tons of steam. In 2014, the consumption of tap
water per box of products was 9.85 kg, representing a decrease of 0.67
kg as compared to 2013; consumption of electricity per box of products
was 0.60 units, representing a decrease of 0.04 unit as compared to
2013; and consumption of steam per box of products was 1.16 kg,
representing a decrease of 0.04 kg as compared to 2013.

AediziERAT TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.
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An internal management system of energy consumption at the
production plants was set up through the establishment and
construction of effective energy-saving and consumption-reduction
measures, such as setting energy saving targets, appraisal on energy
consumption, establishment of energy saving management mechanism
as well as the implementation and improvement of various energy
saving items; model selection and purchases (energy saving models)
for production lines and auxiliary equipment; recycling of RO and
ultra-filtrated concentrated water, recycling of bottle washing water,
as well as the adjusted uses of RO first and second grade water;
energy saving solutions such as addition of variable frequency and
automation on auxiliary equipment, reduction in pressure for bottle
and air blowing, replacement of iced water by water from public water
tower during winter season for saving energy, and the retrieval of
steam and condensed water for use were adopted. In 2014, overall
water, electricity and stream consumption of beverage per box dropped
by 4-6% when compared with 2013 through various energy saving
management measures and energy saving renovation.

Pepsi Shanghai Asia Research and Development Centre is the largest
top-tier R&D centre outside North America, and also the centre of all
new products, packaging and innovating equipment of PepsiCo.’s
entire Asian business, which adopts advanced technology, materials
and processes to protect natural resources and decrease operating cost.
It uses water saving devices to recycle rain water and uses innovative
sewage treatment system and reclaimed water reuse, which saving
water 80% more than non LEED recognized construction.

The instant food business has explicitly proposed the energy saving and
discharge reduction targets in 2014 to boost green and low-carbon
developments by establishing a responsibility and appraisal system for
energy saving targets based on the principles of “explicit objective, clear
responsibility, grade-on-grade supervision, grade-on-grade appraisal”.
Fixed asset investment proposals, energy saving appraisal and review
system will be strictly implemented and promoted the more extensive
use of energy efficiency labels on three phase asynchronous motors,
inverter air-conditioners and lighting products. Natural gas ovens
with looped hot air compensation system were selected for the newly
invested biscuit production line, which could save 38% of standard coal
when compared with electric ovens. Waste water from production was
treated by the sewage station for re-use in production, sprinkling the
green belt and carpet cleaning. In 2014, approximately 10,000 tons of
water used for production was saved, and electricity and natural gas
saved during the full year were equivalent to a reduction of carbon
emissions by 5,400 tons.

2014 Annual
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ALL FOR THE SOCIETY — PLANTING HOPE FOR THE FUTURE

Based on the society needs and its own needs of sustainable
development, Master Kong has started the world elite universities
scholarship program, and combined with the resources of Waseda
University, a prestigious university in Japan with over 100 years of
history, and co-operated with seven universities in the cross-strait,
namely Fudan University, Shanghai Jiao Tong University, Tongji
University, Zhejiang University, Shanghai University of Finance and
Economics, National Taiwan University and National Chengchi University,
will support outstanding students between the cross-strait to further
studies.

In the past decade, nearly 10,000 students in total students overseas
further studied in Waseda University, and actively contributed to society.
On the ground of such exchanges, Master Kong decided to co-operate
with Waseda University of the scholarship program. As of the end of
2014 many students, around 314 studied in Waseda University though
this scholarship program, we expect that totally over 400 outstanding
students will further study in Waseda University in the future.

In order to provide more opportunities to outstanding youths dedicated
to study, in align with the world elite universities scholarship program,
Master Kong synchronously launched the “Master Kong Creative
Challenges” (FEATEAIFTPKELER) activity, in addition to such seven co-
operated universities, which also offers a special selection opportunity
to the youths with the characteristic of creativity to further study in
Waseda University.

(EZRD{B BT kB &) beyond

the restriction of academic results, but invite youths to raise more

“Master Kong Creative Challenges”

creative ideas about the daily events which we should concern. After
the recognition from the adjudication panel which comprises with
professionals, such youth can be entitled to the special selection
qualification to compete for the opportunity of further study in Waseda
University. The “Master Kong Creative Challenges” program has
penetrated into nearly a hundred schools on both sides of the Taiwan
Straits since 2010 and the number of persons involved through the

online platform also reached 170 million.
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From 2010 to 2014, the “New generation with creativity and sound
bite” Master Kong Creative Challenge has been successfully organized
for five years. The program has become a branded and alluring
annual charitable event for youths. In 2014, “Master Kong Creative
Challenges” (EZRM{H &I PkELE) used “Big Change with Small Charity”
(NAZE KRB as its theme. Master Kong held school speech tours in
22 cities and 33 high schools on both sides of the Taiwan Straits, which
shared charitable enthusiasm, and totally collected 1,679 charitable
proposals from both sides of the Taiwan Straits, involving various areas,
including environmental protection, education, caring for the weak and
poor, cultural protecting. At the same time, in order to assist candidates
to understand charity and realize charity and to further promote their
chartable thinking, Master Kong has arranged a charity training camp
for a period of three days with the selected theme “a teaching of
fishing skills” as the starting point. As for winners, such challenges
also provided a valuable opportunity to undergo a charity exchange in
America, which established a connected world platform to outstanding
candidates in the challenges.

On 22 January 2015, the 4th China Charity Festival promoted by mass
media was held in Beijing, which “Master Kong Creative Challenges”
won “2014 Best Charity Project Award” in the 4th China Charity Festival
by virtue of its outstanding project planning and implementation,
arousing general media concern and warm feedback from the public.
This is another Corporate Social Responsibility Communication Award
won by The Master Kong Creative Challenge program after it has
been confirmed of winning the “Charity Communication Award in the
Best Public Relations Case Competition in China” and “ The Best CSR
Communication Prize”. Such award represents a fully reorganization
and affirmation from community to the efforts and contributions in
respect of charity area made by Master Kong.
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FOR THE COMMUNITY - CARING THE SOCIAL VULNERABLE
GROUPS

Salvation and helping the poverty is one of the traditional virtues.
Master Kong has always committed to develop the maximum value of
people oriented activities. Salvation and helping the underprivileged
is one of the traditional virtues. Upholding the operation philosophy
of “obtaining from the people, using on the people and repaying the
society for a sustainable operation”, Master Kong has contributed
an aggregated amount of RMB500 million for social charitable work
such as sponsoring education, fighting floods, relieving earthquakes,
relieving poverty, supporting sports activities during past years. Master
Kong always upholds the philosophy of empathy, feeling how others
feel, by gathering all the power of subsidiaries and proactively devoting
to various social charities, so as to fulfill more social responsibilities in
education, cross-strait cultural exchange and poverty relief and disaster
relief work.

When flood, earthquake, typhoon, blizzard struck, the local people
would suffer from disaster, but relentless disaster with enthusiastic
people! Being a responsible corporate citizen, Master Kong has been
contributed its humble effort to property relief, disaster relief and
charity, as well as actively rewarded the society, more importantly,
Master Kong wishes to motivate and bring more enthusiastic people
to join, in order to jointly support charity and lend a helping hand
to people in disaster area and help them to get through in the most
difficult time.

On 3 August 2014, Ludian, Yunnan stuck by earthquake with a moment
magnitude of 6.1, Master Kong started rescue immediately. First batch
of supplies was delivered to receive counter Ludian County Civil Affairs
Bureau on 4 August at 17:00, which successively donated 8,100 boxes
of Master Kong instant noodle, 4150 boxes of mineral water, 2000
boxes of Pepsi Aquafina and 1,000 quilts, and upfront emergency relief
supplies value amounted approximately RMB780,000.
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We have, throughout the period ended 31 December 2014, complied
with the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”), except for the deviations from code provisions A.2.1 and A.4.1.
The reasons for these deviations are explained below.

Code provision A.2.1

Code provision A.2.1 provides that the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed by the
same person. For the year ended 31 December 2014, Mr. Wei Ing-Chou
assumed the role of both the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer
of the Company. Mr. Wei Ing-Chou had been in charge of the overall
management of the Company since the listing of the Company in 1996
and the Company considered that such arrangement would promote
the efficient formulation and implementation of the Company's
strategies which would enable the Group to further develop its
businesses effectively. In order to comply with the requirements of the
CG Code, the Company has gradually adopted appropriate measures to
separate the roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer. Since 1
January 2013, food and beverage business units have been established
with executive officer appointed to monitor and be responsible for the
strategic planning and operations of these two business units. In this
respect, on 1 January 2015, the Group has appointed Mr. James Chun-
Hsien Wei as the Chief Executive Officer of the Group. Mr. James Wei
was the former Chief Executive Officer of the Food Business Division
of the Group. With the appointment of Mr. James Wei as the Chief
Executive Officer, the Company has fully complied with code provision
A2.1.
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Code provision A.4.1

Code provision A.4.1 provides that non-executive directors should be
appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. Our Company
deviates from this provision because the independent non-executive
Directors of our Company do not currently have specific terms of
appointment. However, the articles of association of our Company
provide that all the Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years and at each annual general meeting, one-
third of the Directors for the time being or, if the number is not a
multiple of three, then, the number nearest to but not less than one-
third, shall retire from office by rotation and may offer themselves for
re-election. As such, the Board considers that sufficient measures have
been put in place to ensure our Company’s corporate governance
practice in this aspect provides sufficient protection for the interests of
shareholders to a standard commensurate with that of the CG code.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Responsibilities

The overall management of the Company's business is vested in the
Board, which assumes the responsibility for the leadership and control
of the Group and is collectively responsible for promoting the business
of the Group by directing and supervising the Group's affairs. All the
Directors should make decisions objectively in the best interests of the
Company.

The functions of the Board are carried out either directly or through
the Board committees. To ensure the Board is in a position to exercise
its powers in an informed manner, management provides monthly
management accounts and updates to the Directors who also have full
and timely access to all relevant information and may take independent
professional advice if necessary.
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Board composition

The composition of the Board reflects the necessary balance of skills
and experience desirable for effective leadership of the Company and
independence in decision making.

The Board currently comprises 8 Directors in total, with 5 Executive
Directors and 3 Independent Non-executive Directors whose
biographical details are set out in “Directors’ profile” section on pages
58 to 60 of this report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties with its written terms of reference as set out below:

(@ to develop and review the Company's policies and practices on
corporate governance and to make recommendations thereof;

(b)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

(©)  to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors;
and

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

During the year under review, the Board has reviewed the Company’s
corporate governance practices and the compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

We will periodically review and improve our corporate governance
practices with reference to the latest corporate governance
developments.
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The Board has scheduled quarterly meetings per year and meets more
frequently as and when required. During the financial year ended 31
December 2014, six Board meetings were held. The attendance of
individual director to the Board meetings in year 2014 is summarised
below:

HE BTEERSERH
Number of Board

Directors Meetings Attended/Held

Executive Directors

Mr. Wei Ing-Chou 5/6
Mr. Junichiro Ida 6/6
Mr. Ryo Yoshizawa (passed away on

8 March 2015) 6/6
Mr. Wu Chung-Yi 5/6
Mr. Wei Ying-Chiao (Resigned on

4 February 2015) 5/6
Mr. Teruo Nagano 6/6

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Hsu Shin-Chun 6/6
Mr. Lee Tiong-Hock 6/6
Mr. Hiromu Fukada 6/6

The Company Secretary keeps the Board Minutes of the Company for
inspection by the Directors.

Apart from its statutory responsibilities, the Board of Directors approves
the Group's strategic plan, annual budget, key operational initiatives,
major investments and funding decisions. It also reviews the Group's
financial performance, identifies principal risks of the Group’s business
and ensures appropriate implementation of measures to manage these
risks.

The Board of Directors has delegated decisions regarding the daily
operation and administration of the Group to the management, under
the supervision of the Chief Executive Officer.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Group. With the assistance of the Finance
and Accounting Department which is under the supervision of the
Chief Financial Officer of the Company, the Directors ensure that the
preparation of the financial statements of the Group is in accordance
with statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards. The
Directors also ensure that the publication of the financial statements of
the Group is in a timely manner.

The Company’s auditor’s reporting responsibilities on the financial
statements has been set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on
pages 79 to 80.

INDUCTION AND CONTINUING DEVELOPMENT OF
DIRECTORS

Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a director of the
Company and of the conduct, business activities and development
of the Company.

Each newly appointed director receives induction on the first
occasion of his appointment, so as to ensure that he has
appropriate understanding of the business and operations of
the Company and that he is fully aware of his responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory
requirements. Such induction is normally supplemented with visits
to the Group’s key business sites and/or meetings with the senior
management of the Company.

Under code provision A.6.5, directors should participate in
appropriate continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution
to the Board remains informed and relevant. Internally-facilitated
briefings for directors will be arranged and reading material on
relevant topics will be issued to directors where appropriate. All
directors are encouraged to attend relevant training courses at the
Company’s expenses.
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During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company organized
briefings conducted by the Company Secretary for all its directors,
on corporate governance and update on the Listing Rules
amendments and provided reading materials on regulatory update
to all the directors for their reference and studying.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of
potential legal actions against its Directors and officers.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Audit Committee in September 1999
and currently has three Independent Non-executive Directors, Mr. Lee
Tiong-Hock, Mr. Hsu Shin-Chun and Mr. Hiromu Fukada. Mr. Lee Tiong-
Hock acts as Chairman of the Audit Committee.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include the review and
supervision of the Group's financial reporting system, the preperation of
financial statements and internal control procedures. It also acts as an
important link between the Board and the Company’s auditor in matters
within the scope of the group audit. Four meetings were held during
the financial year ended 31 December 2014. Details of the attendance
of the audit committee meetings are as follows:

HEBITERRY
Members Number of meetings Attended/Hold
Mr. Lee Tiong-Hock 4/4
Mr. Hsu Shin-Chun 4/4
Mr. Hiromu Fukada 4/4

The latest meeting of the Committee was held to review the results of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014.
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REMUNERATION AND NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration and Nomination Committee was established on
11 August 2005. This Committee now comprises three Independent
Non-executive Directors, Mr. Hsu Shin-Chun, Mr. Lee Tiong-Hock and
Mr. Hiromu Fukada. Mr. Hsu Shin-Chun acts as the Chairman of the
Committee. One meeting was held during the financial year ended 31
December 2014.

HEBITERRE

Number of meetings

Members Attended/Hold
Mr. Lee Tiong-Hock 11
Mr. Hsu Shin-Chun 1Al
Mr. Hiromu Fukada 11

The Committee was set up review the structure, size and diversity of the
Board, identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members,
assess the independence of the independent non-executive directors
and consider and approve the remuneration packages of the Directors
and senior management of the Group, including the terms of salary and
bonus schemes and other long-term incentive schemes. The Committee
also reviews the structure, size and composition of the Board from time
to time and recommends to the Board on appointments of Directors
and the succession planning for Directors. Details of the Directors’ and
senior management’'s emoluments of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2014 are set out in note 10 to the financial statements.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse
Board to enhance the quality of its performance. Selection of candidates
will be based on a range of diversity perspectives, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The
ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that the
selected candidates will bring to the Board.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining a sound and
effective internal control system of the Group. The Group's internal
control system includes a well defined management structure with
limit of authority which is designed for the achievement of business
objectives, to safeguard assets against unauthorised use or disposition,
to ensure proper maintenance of books and records for the provision
of reliable financial information for internal use or publication, and to
ensure compliance with relevant legislations and regulations.
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The Board and the Audit Committee have delegated the Group's
internal audit department to conduct annual review of the effectiveness
of the internal control systems of the Group. During the year
ended 31 December 2014, the review covered all material controls
including financial, operational and compliance controls as well as
risk management functions. No material deficiencies on the internal
control came to the attention of the internal audit department during
the annual review for the year ended 31 December 2014. The Board
and the Audit Committee therefore considered that the internal control
systems of the Group are effective.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

Mazars CPA Limited has been re-appointed as the Indpendent Auditor
of the Company by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting held
on 14 May 2014. For the year ended 31 December 2014, total fees
paid/payable in connection with the provision of audit and non-audit
services to Mazars CPA Limited amounted to US$1,460,000 and US$Nil
respectively.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Ip Pui Sum of Sum, Arthur & Co., Certified Public Accountants,
an external service provider, has been engaged by the Company as its
company secretary. Mr. Ip’s primary contact person at the Company is
Mr. Liu Kuo Wei, the Chief Financial Officer of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, Mr. Ip has taken no less
than 23 hours of relevant professional trainings to update his skills and
knowledge.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

The Company has only one class of shares. All shares have the same
voting rights and are entitled to the dividend declared. Details of
shareholders’ rights have been set out in the Company's article of
association.




EERIRE Corporate Governance Report

BRIRRAE A5

EANERFRKAFAME AR RBREK
ENRERNBREARRFEH AN
DPR2SNBRBEEARNRBAEETGRER
EHFR  BREZGRRARERFS7
GRFBFRREREARE  ABEEEESK
AR EIE - ZEEE AL LBRLHER
ERENEREARRAZMEHAL o 40
REERXFKRANNRAEZGLABES
& RRAERRBARERESTRBESR
BIBRRAE °

FRIRRAGNE@MB REBAINEXER
AETELE MM ARNERE  TELKE
WEHEERNRFERN [REMEL] o
jL\L o

BRBEERL N

EZgREEEAN  2E RS -PH
WEAMF AT A AR R E B8
BEFEIHER < I HEESESR
BAREER [REAEM] REAERER
Rt - EESHEIBRRE QRS EFIRE
HEREER  AYEBHM2NRRES
EEXRMMAHESEREEENER

B8 B tb A] LA E B BB 2 R AU
www.masterkong.com.cni& & A iR 2
{E{] A RE ©

ARERNRE

HIEE2014F12 A3 BEE - AR HEE
SEWEE XEH -

CONVENING EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING OF THE
COMPANY

Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than 25% of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company shall all time have the
right, by written requisition to the Board to require an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition pursuant to Article 57 of the
Company's articles of association. Such requisition must be signed
by the requisitionists and deposited at the office of the Company. If
within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene
such meeting, the shareholder(s) making the requisition may do so in
accordance with the provision of Article 57 of the Company’s articles of
association.

The written requisition requiring an extraordinary general meeting called
can be sent to the principal place of business of the Company as set
out in the “Corporate Information” section of this annual report for the
attention of the Company Secretary.

SHAREHOLDERS' COMMUNICATION POLICY

The Board is committed to providing clear and full information
of the Group to shareholders through the publication of notices,
announcements, circulars, interim and annual reports. Moreover,
additional information is also available to shareholders through the
Investor Relations section on the Company’s website. The Board also
welcomes the views of shareholders on matters affecting the Group and
encourages them to attend shareholder’s meetings to communicate any
concerns they might have with the Board or management directly.

Shareholders could also send email directly through the Investors section
in the Company’s website www.masterkong.com.cn for any enquiries.

CHANGES IN THE COMPANY’S CONSTITUTIONAL
DOCUMENTS

There was no significant change in the Company’s constitutional
documents for the year ended 31 December 2014.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Group disseminates the latest information to investors and the
public in strict compliance with the Securities and Futures Ordinance and
the Listing Rules in an open, fair and transparent manner. To facilitate
communication between senior management and the public, the Group
regularly hosts shareholder meetings, investor and analyst briefings and
company visits. In addition, the Group organises road show and attends
investor conferences to meet with global Investors and shareholders
in an effort to gather suggestions and comments. In 2014, the Group
conducted more than 370 meetings with approximately 1,680 analysts
and fund managers. Investors can also obtain useful information and
updates on the Group’s business development from our websites. The
Group is committed to enhance corporate transparency and the quality
of disclosures.

The Group is a constituent stock of British's FTSE All-World Asia Pacific
Ex-Japan Index, Morgan Stanley Capital International (MSCI) Hong Kong
Index and Hong Kong's benchmark Hang Seng Index, which are widely
used International equity benchmarks by institutional investors. In July,
Institutional Investor magazine released the results of the 2014 All-Asia
Executive Team rankings. Mr. Wei Ing-Chou and Ms. Debbie Ho were
awarded one of the top three of the Best CEO and the Best IRO in the
consumer sector respectively. Being recognized by the international
investors, in addition to providing confirmation to the investor relations
work of the Company, it also provides a lot of encouragement to
the investor relations team of the Company. The Group is currently
covered by 30 investment banks and securities firms, which shows our
investment and development potential.

MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code"”) as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules. All Directors have confirmed, following specific
enquiry by the Company, that they fully complied with the required
standards as set out in the Model Code throughout the review period.
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

WEI Ing-Chou, aged 61, Chairman of the Group, elder brother of
Mr. Wei Ying-Chiao, joined the Group in 1991 and is responsible
for the supervision and the management of the Group as well as
the formulation of the overall strategy of the Group. He has over 30
years' experience in factory construction, production management
and research in relation to food production. In September 2010, Mr.
Wei Ing-chou, was awarded an honorary doctorate degree by Waseda
University of Japan in recognition of his outstanding contributions in
areas such as business operations and corporate social responsibility
over the years. Mr. Wei appointed as the Chairman of the World Instant
Noodle Association in May 2012. Mr. Wei resigned his role as the CEO
of the Group on 1 January 2015.

Junichiro IDA, aged 53, was appointed as Vice-Chairman of the Group
on 15 November 2013 and appointed as a Director of the Group in May
2002, is the President of Sanyo Foods Co., Ltd. After graduating from
Rikkyo University in 1985, he joined Fuji Bank and worked there for six
years. In 1992, he joined Sanyo Foods Co., Ltd.

WU Chung-Yi, aged 59, was appointed as a Director of the Group in
1996, is the CEO of GSK Group. He attended the University of California
in Los Angeles in the United States and has experience in corporate
management.
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

Teruo NAGANO, aged 66, was appointed as a Director of the Group
on 19 September 2013. Mr. Nagano has been employed by Sanyo Foods
Co., Ltd. (“Sanyo Foods") since February 2000 and joined the Company
in March 2000 as the Senior Advisor to the office of the Chief Financial
Officer. In July 2007 he returned to Sanyo Foods as the Deputy General
Manager of the Oversea Division and then joined the Company again in
November 2010 as the Senior Advisor to the office of the Chief Financial
Officer. He is currently Senior General Manager of Overseas Business
Division of Sanyo Foods. After graduating from Hitotsubashi University
of Economics in 1972, he worked in Fuji Bank for over 29 years. He
has substantial working experience in the financial industry and has
comprehensive knowledge of the international financial markets.

WEI Hong-Ming, aged 37, was appointed as a Director of the Group
on 4 February 2015. Mr. Wei joined the Group as project manager of
the CEQ's office in 2006. From 2007 to 2014, he was appointed as a
director of Wei Chuan Foods Corporation in Taiwan. He is currently a
director of Calbee Inc. in Japan. Mr. Wei holds a Bachelor of Science
degree in Mathematics from King's College, the University of London, a
Master of Science degree in Mathematics from Brunel University in the
UK, and a Master of Science degree in Management from the Graduate
School of Business at Stanford University in the USA. Mr. Wei is the son
of Mr. Wei Ing-Chou, the Chairman of the Group.

Independent Non-executive Directors

HSU Shin-Chun, aged 59, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Group in October 1999. He received a
bachelor degree in Business Administration and EMBA degree from
National Taiwan University in 1979 and 2006 respectively. He has more
than 17 years working experience in the financial industry and has
comprehensive knowledge in securities investments, corporate finance
and financial engineering. He is also a Certified Financial Analyst in
Taiwan.
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

LEE Tiong-Hock, aged 75, has been appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Group since September 2004. Mr. Lee
has over 28 years of experience in commercial and investment banking.
From 1977 to 1987, he served as the senior manager of marketing
department of an international bank in Hong Kong and, concurrently,
as general manager of its two deposit-taking subsidiaries. During 1989
to 1997, he was engaged in corporate finance advisory business, and
since then in private financial consultancy business in Hong Kong. He
is a member of Hong Kong Institute of Bankers and the Hong Kong
Securities Institute and fellow member of Hong Kong Institute of
Director.

Hiromu FUKADA, aged 86, has been appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Group since 3 January 2012. After
graduation from University of Tokyo, he went to University of Oxford,
and specialized in politics and economics. He held important positions
in Japanese Ministry of Foreign Affairs from 1951. He had worked as
counselor of America Bureau, ambassador in OECD, Singapore and
Australia, and director of Economic Affairs Bureau. Mr.Fukada has been
the Auditor of Ueno Fine Chemicals Industry Ltd. since 2006.

COMPANY SECRETARY

IP Pui-Sum, aged 55, graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic with
a Higher Diploma in Accountancy in 1982. He is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants (United Kingdom) and
an associate of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
the Society of Chinese Accountants & Auditors, the Chartered Institute
of Management Accountants, the Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators and the ordinary member of Hong Kong Institute
of Chartered Secretaries. He also obtained a Master Degree in Business
Administration in 1996. Mr. Ip has over 20 years of experience in public
accounting and company secretarial practices. He is also a certified
public accountant (practising) in Hong Kong. He joined the Group in
September 1995.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

James Chun-Hsien WEI, aged 57, was appointed as the Chief Executive
Officer of the Group on 1 January 2015. Mr. Wei joined the Group on 1
January 2013 as the Chief Executive Officer of the Food Business Division.
Prior to joining the Group, he was the senior advisor of CVC Capital Asia
Pacific and Beiersdorf Aktiengesellschaft. From 2009 to 2011, he was a
member of the Executive Board and the president of the Asian region of
Beiersdorf Aktiengesellschaft Group. From 2003 to 2009, he served as
the president of Asia Pacific region of Avon Products Inc., where he was
responsible for the operations in 10 markets, including Japan, Taiwan,
Australia, the Philippines and India. Prior to that, Mr. Wei spent 19 years at
Procter & Gamble and in his last four years with Procter & Gamble, he was
the vice president and general manager of Greater China, overseeing the
Group's health and beauty care business in that region. Mr. Wei holds a
B.S.E.E from National Taiwan University and an M.B.A from the University
of Chicago Booth School of Business in the U.S.A.

Wilson WU, aged 58, joined the Group in May 1994 and is the Chief
Auditor. He graduated from the Management Science Institute, Tam
Kang University in Taiwan in 1983, majoring in accounting, taxation and
financial management.

KuoWei LIU, aged 44, is the Chief Financial Officer of the Group.
He joined the Group in 2006, has been the Manager, Assistant Vice
President and Vice President of Finance and Accounting Department.
Prior to joining the Group, he was the Assistant Manager of Finance
Department, General Manager's Office of Taiwan Mobile Co., Ltd. Mr.
Liu holds a Bachelor of Science in Mechanical Engineering of Taiwan
National Cheng Kung University, Master of Computer Science of
Imperial College, University of London and an M.B.A. from Wharton
School at the University of Pennsylvania. During his study in Wharton
School, he was awarded the Fulbright Scholarship, Mr. Felix Chang's
Memorial Scholarship, Dr. CF Koo's Scholarship, Wharton MBA
Graduate Grant and First Year Honor.
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Jammy XU, aged 56, is the Chief of Staff, joined the Group in March
1997. Mr. Xu used to be the executive of IT Department and SM&A
Department. He graduated from Applied Mathematics Department of
Chinese Culture University in Taiwan. Prior to joining the Group, he
worked for Rongdian Company, Qiaoju Trading Company, Nanchow
Chemical Industrial Company. Mr Xu is familiar with IT business, good
at communication and coordination. And skilled in organization and
management.

Walt WU, aged 54, Chief Human Resources Officer. He graduated
from the Institute of Human Resource Management, National San
Yat Sen University (Taiwan). Mr. Wu joined the Group in November
2005 as the Senior Assistant Vice President and Senior Vice President
of Beverages Business. He was the Chief of Staff of CEO office in
September 2014 and in November 2014 was appointed as the Chief of
Human Resources. Prior to joining the Group, he worked in Twinhead
International Corp. as an Assistant Manager of Human Resources, Tsrc
Corporation and The Home World Group as an Vice President of Human
Resources. Mr. Wu has 24 years of experience in human resources
management, with expertise in strategic human resource management,
human development, and strive to create the Group's succession
echelon talent, to maximize human resources benefits.

Richard CHEN, Chief R&D Officer, aged 52, joined the Group
in February 2013. He graduated from the Chemical Engineering
Department, National Taiwan University. Prior to joining the Group, he
had 25 years of global R&D experience in Procter & Gamble. Mr. Chen
is trilingual and worked in Taiwan, US, Japan and China for leading
Consumer Product Innovation and R&D Capability Building.

Alex LIN, aged 59, is the Executive President of the Group’s Instant
Noodle Business. He graduated from Chung Yuan Christian University
in Taiwan. Mr. Lin's working experiences, including served for Boshang
Market Research Company; Nanchow Chemical Industrial Company,
which he worked as head of planning and business and logistics
management for lotion daily necessities, industrial oils, edible oils and
fats, at room temperature, chilled and frozen food departments; and he
worked as general manager for Wei Chuan Foods Corporation for 19
years. Mr. Lin joined the Group in October 2000, and has over 35 years
extensive management experience in sales and marketing.
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George HUANG, aged 57, is the Executive President of the Group's
Beverage Business. He joined the Group in June 2001 as Head of
Sales Department of the Group's Instant Noodle Business, General
Manager of Hangzhou Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. in April 2002 and was the
President of the Group'’s Beverage Business in January 2005. Mr. Huang
graduated from Tourism Department of Chinese Culture University
in Taiwan. Prior to joining the Group, he worked for a British Trading
Company TAIT CO. and was the Sales Director of Swire Coca-Cola,
Taiwan. Mr. Huang is particularly familiar in sales & marketing and
business strategy, familiar with the China market. And especially skilled
in figure sense, detailed management and strong executive force.

Vincent LIU, aged 55, was appointed as the President of the Pepsi
Beverage Business in December 2014. He joined the Group in 2000
and has served as General Manager or Regional General Manager of
Chong Qing Tingyi, Chong Qing Tingjin, Wuhan Tingjin and Hangzhou
Tingjin. Prior to joining the group, he has worked for British Trading
Company TAIT CO. Mr.Liu is particularly familiar management in sales
and marketing, and has over 20 years extensive experience.

Bob CHEN, aged 56, is the Executive Vice President of the Group’s
Instant Food Business . Mr. Chen holds a BBA from Fu Jen Catholic
University and an EMBA from National Taiwan University. He joined the
Group in August 2014. Mr. Chen has an intensive experience of more
than 30 years in the field of marketing and strategic management. He
worked for NamChow Chemical Industrial Co., Modern Home Products
(@ JV of P&G and NamChow), P&G Singapore/Malaysia, P&G Taiwan,
Great Wall Co., Hwa Wei & Grey Advertising Agency (a subsidiary of
WPP group), Nirvana Brand Consulting Group and DaChan Foods (Asia)
Limited.
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The directors submit their report together with the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 45 to the
financial statements.

The principal activities of the Group are the manufacture and sale of
instant noodles, beverages and instant food in the PRC.

An analysis of the Group’s turnover and profit (loss) attributable to
owners of the Company by major segments is set out below:

BREGRER (EE)
Profit (loss)
=E 3 attributable to
Turnover owners of the Company

2014 2013 2014 2013

FET FET FET FET

USs$’000 Us$'000 Uss’000 US$°000

i {EH Instant noodles 4,137,736 4,332,210 360,388 336,781
Kn Beverages 5,801,005 6,268,472 71,956 70,995
FERM Instant food 178,729 202,819 (17,449) (14,029)
HAth Others 120,512 137,495 (14,413) 14,797
AFF Total 10,237,982 10,940,996 400,482 408,544

—— ——
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RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
income statement on page 81.

The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of US3.57
cents per ordinary share, totalling US$200 million.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set out in
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 88 to 90.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment are set out
in note 15 to the financial statements.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on pages 3 and 4.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

There were no purchases, sales or redemptions of the Company's shares

by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the year.
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At the extraordinary general meeting held on 20 March 2008, the
shareholders approved the adoption of the Share Option Scheme. Detail
arrangement for the share option scheme is shown below:

BHFE M
RERE TEE BERERHE
Number of (#7t) Number of share
s l=p share options  1TfEH) Exercise granted to
Date of grant granted Exercisable period price (HK$) Wei Ing-Chou
2008 3 H20H 11,760,000 20133 H21HZE2018F3 H20H $9.28 2,000,000
20 March 2008 21 March 2013 to 20 March 2018
200944 H22H 26,688,000 2014F 4 A23H=20199F4 A 22 H $9.38 2,816,000
22 April 2009 23 April 2014 to 22 April 2019
201064 H1H 15,044,000 20154 A1 HE2020F3 A31H $18.57 2,200,000
1 April 2010 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2020
20114 H12H 17,702,000 201654 12HE2021 544111 $19.96 2,264,000
12 April 2011 12 April 2016 to 11 April 2021
201244 H26 1 9,700,000 2017 4 H26 HE 20224 251 $20.54 1,368,000
26 April 2012 26 April 2017 to 25 April 2022
20134 5H27H 11,492,000 20184 5 H27HZE202345 H 26 H $20.16 1,390,000
27 May 2013 27 May 2018 to 26 May 2023
201454 H17 A 12,718,500 201964 17H%E20245 4716 R $22.38 1,486,000
17 April 2014 17 April 2019 to 16 April 2024

HE2014F12831BIET=@AR - &
£B 8 T H17{#7,354,000 8% © MNEFH
1T{EEA9.78 8 TC » 171 B Z RIRY INHEF

B THEAE21.8287T °

AEEZ RITERZFBERY B HREMN

F32

For the period of twelve months ended 31 December 2014, 7,354,000
options had been exercised under the Share Option Scheme. Weighted
average exercise price was HK$9.78 and the weighted average market

closing price before the date of exercise was HK$21.82.

statements.

AediziERAT TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

Details of bank loans of the Group are set out in note 32 to the financial
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DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The directors and chief executive officer of the Company during the year
and up to the date of this report are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wei Ing-Chou

Mr. Junichiro Ida

Mr. Ryo Yoshizawa (passed away on 8 March 2015)
Mr. Wu Chung-Yi

Mr. Wei Ying-Chiao (resigned on 4 February 2015)
Mr. Teruo Nagano

Mr. Wei Hong-Ming (appointed on 4 February 2015)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Hsu Shin-Chun
Mr. Lee Tiong-Hock
Mr. Hiromu Fukada

Chief Executive Officer
Mr. James Chun-Hsien Wei (appointed on 1 January 2015)

On 4 February 2015, Mr. Wei Ying-Chiao resigned. Mr. Wei Hong-
Ming was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company on the
same day. In accordance with Acticle 91 of the Company's Articles
of Association, Mr. Wei Hong-Ming will retire and, being eligible, will
offer himself for re-election as a director of the Company at the annual
general meeting to be held on 27 May 2015. In accordance with Article
99 of the Company'’s Articles of Association, Mr. Wu Chung-Yi, Mr. Lee
Tiong-Hock and Mr. Hirome Fukada will retire by rotation and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.

None of the directors have a service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without the payment
of compensation.

The Company received confirmation of independence from the
Independent Non-executive Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Company considered all the Independent Non-
executive Directors are independent.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior management are set
out on pages 58 to 63.

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2014, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and Chief Executive Officer in the Shares, underlying Shares
or debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFQ")) which are required (a) to be notified to the Company and The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO); or (b) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered
in the register referred to therein; or (c) pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies relating to
securities transactions by Directors to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange were as follows:

() REBEOREBRONER (@) Long position in the shares and the underlying Shares
RIBBRE
EHEE
RO EE LR D42 RHEE
Number of Shares BoO Number of
PN 5 EEER Percentage underlying
Personal Corporate of the issued Shares held
i Name interests interests share capital under options
(Krzt 1) (Hiat2)
(see note 1) (see note 2)

BEE Directors
ZEM Wei Ing-Chou 13,242,000 1,854,827,866 33.58% 13,524,000
BRIEAZ Wei Ying-Chiao — 1,854,827,866 33.10% —
ﬁ&am;ﬂzﬁrsﬁf\j TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING-;; e ——— —— —
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(b) BEZEROZRR (b) Long position in shares of associated corporation
R B2
BREE
(K1t 3) i IR A7 48 B
Number of Aok
shares of Percentage ERME
EENE BELBER the associated  of theissued  Nature of
Name of Directors Name of associated Corporation corporation share capital interest
(Note 3)
)N RV E SR mERAR QA 180,008 17.10% EHE
Wei Ing-Chou Tingyi-Asahi Beverages Holding Co., Ltd. 180,008 Corporate
e AN B R mIERER A 180,008 17.10% EE
Wei Ying-Chiao Tingyi-Asahi Beverages Holding Co., Ltd. 180,008 Corporate
Htat - Note:

1.

%% 1,854,827,866 A% 17 FRTEFTHE A K LA
HEZERD IE%EEEW@"T(WM*J)A
WA K44.08% « BELEITERBREA
(T84 1)FEH3024% - EET?}E%FE\PEﬁ%
R 4t 23R B EE IR = = 4t R A
China Foods Investment Corp. {E/&7857 5
=H#HE2500% RBYE=EFFEH
#90.68% ° F1E K& & 4% J5 & Profit Surplus
Holdings Limited ([ Profit Surplus]) 100% #
A ° Profit Surplus =B EFEMZFEA
i 88037 {5 7F Rl 5 PO B9 5 1= 5T 3R AE 25 L
#5748 ° HSBC International Trustee Limited
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1.

These 1,854,827,866 shares are held by and registered under the name
of Ting Hsin. Ting Hsin is beneficially owned as to approximately 44.08%
by Ho Te Investments Limited (“Ho Te"), as to approximately 30.24% by
Rich Cheer Holdings Limited (“Rich Cheer”), as to 25.00% by China Foods
Investment Corp., an independent third party which was incorporated
by Itochu Corporation and Asahi Breweries, Ltd. and as to the remaining
0.68% by unrelated third parties. Ho Te and Rich Cheer were owned as to
100% by Profit Surplus Holdings Limited (“Profit Surplus”). Profit Surplus is
the trustee of a unit trust, which is in turn held by four discretionary trusts
in equal proportions. HSBC International Trustee Limited is the trustee of
each of the above four discretionary trusts, the settlors and discretionary
objects of the above four discretionary trusts are as follows:

—  Wei Chang Lu-Yun is the settlor of one of the above discretionary
trusts with Wei Chang Lu-Yun and Wei Ing Chou as discretionary
objects;

— Lin Li-Mien is the settlor of one of the above discretionary trusts
with Lin Li-Mien and Wei Ying-Chiao as discretionary objects;

—  Wei Hsu Hsiu-Mien is the settlor of one of the above discretionary
trusts with Wei Hsu Hsiu-Mien and Wei Yin-Chun as discretionary
objects; and

—  Wei Tu Miao is the settlor of one of the above discretionary trusts
with Wei Tu Miao and Wei Yin-Heng as discretionary objects.
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Wei Ing-Chou is also personally interested in 13,242,000 shares and holds
13,524,000 share options (2,000,000 share options are exercisable for
the period from 21 March 2013 to 20 March 2018 at an exercise price of
HK$9.28 per share, 2,816,000 share options are exercisable for the period
from 23 April 2014 to 22 April 2019 at an exercise price of HK$9.38
per share, 2,200,000 share options are exercisable for the period from 1
April 2015 to 31 March 2020 at an exercise price of HK$18.57 per share,
2,264,000 share options are exercisable for the period from 12 April 2016
to 11 April 2021 at an exercise price of HK$19.96 per share, 1,368,000
share options are exercisable for the period from 26 April 2017 to 25
April 2022 at an exercise price of HK$20.54 per share, 1,390,000 share
options are exercisable for the period from 27 May 2018 to 26 May 2023
at an exercise price of HK$20.16 per share, and 1,486,000 share options
are exercisable for the period from 17 April 2019 to 16 April 2024 at an
exercise price of HK$22.38 per share) under the share option scheme of
the Company passed by an extraordinary general meeting of the Company
held on 20 March 2008. Wei Chang Lu-Yun, being the spouse of Wei Ing-
Chou, is also deemed to be interested in the shares and the underlying
shares held by Wei Ing-Chou.

These 180,008 shares are held by and registered under the name of Ting
Hsin. Please refer to note 1 for the shareholding structure of Ting Hsin.
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Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year ended 31 December
2014 there were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any Directors or
their respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, or were any
such rights exercised by them; or was Company or any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such
rights in or any other body corporate.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, none of the Directors
and Chief Executive Officer had interests in any securities of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) which are required (a) to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they
are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or
(b) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein; or (c) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies relating to securities
transactions by Directors to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER PERSONS’
INTERESTS IN SHARES

So far as was known to any Directors or Chief Executive Officer of the
Company, as at 31 December 2014, the interests or short positions
of substantial shareholders and other persons of the Company, in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to the kept under section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company, were as follows:
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REOREBRONRE

BRER

Name of shareholder

BRI (R 1)A

Ting Hsin (see note 1)A
MEAR(ZHaE1)4

Ho Te Investments Limited (see note 1)4

LR AR RRI(ZM 1)

Rich Cheer Holdings Limited (see note 1)

Profit Surplus Holdings Limited( 2 /72 1)A
Profit Surplus Holdings Limited (see note 7)4
HSBC International Trustee Limited( 24752 1)4
HSBC International Trustee Limited (see note 1)4

RER (2T 1)

Wei Yin-Chun (see note 1)~

WIETT (2T 1)

Wei Yin-Heng (see note 1)4
RRGE(ZMH1R2)A

Wei Chang Lu-Yun (see notes 1 & 2)4

MBIR(Z ML 1)4

Lin Li-Mien (see note 1)»

RABROEML )

Wei Hsu Hsiu-Mien (see note 1)A

WRE(ZHZ 1)L

Wei Tu Miao (see note 1)~

ZEFERmMA g
Sanyo Foods Co., Ltd.

o MisE1 R2 BN AFRE6I K70 E

A

Notes 1 & 2 are set out on pages 69 to 70

Long position in the Shares and the underlying Shares

54
Capacity

ESBEBA

Beneficial owner
REBENAER

Interest of controlled company
XERAER

Interest of controlled company
BREFEXTA

Trustee of a unit trust
HEGEEXTEA

Trustee of discretionary trusts
BEEIXEA

Beneficiary of a discretionary trust
HEGETEXHEA

Beneficiary of a discretionary trust

BECTEAEREARZ BN/ EBER

Settlor and beneficiary of a
discretionary trust/Interest of spouse

BECTEAEREARZBA /KBRS

Settlor and beneficiary of a
discretionary trust/Interest of spouse

BECTEAEREARZBA /KBRS

Settlor and beneficiary of a
discretionary trust/Interest of spouse

BEETEEREARREA T BER

Settlor and beneficiary of a
discretionary trust/Interest of spouse
EREBA

Beneficial owner

etz ERAT TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

BERMEA
Number of
shares held

1,854,827,866

1,854,827,866

1,854,827,866

1,854,827,866

1,854,827,866

1,854,827,866

1,854,827,866

1,881,593,866

1,854,827,866

1,854,827,866

1,854,827,866

1,854,827,866

HERITRE
ZBAL %
% of the
issued share

33.10

33.10

33.10

33.10

33.10

33.10

33.10

33.58

33.10

33.10

33.10

33.10
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Apart from the above, no other interest or short position in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company were recorded in register required
to be kept under section 336 of the SFO as at 31 December 2014.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of its Directors, as at the latest practicable
date prior to the printing of this report, the Company has maintained
sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the Company’s issued
shares as required under the Listing Rules.

INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Except for the related party transactions as disclosed in the financial
statements, no other contracts of significance in relation to the
Company'’s business to which the Company or its subsidiaries was a
party and in which a director had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

DONATIONS

Donation made by the Group during the year amounted to US$2.332
million.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the Group purchased less than 30% of its goods and
services from its 5 largest suppliers and sold less than 30% of its goods

to its 5 largest customers.
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On 15 November 2013, the Company entered into (1) TZCl Supply
Agreement, pursuant to which, Tingzheng (Cayman Islands) Holding
Corp. (“TZCl") supplies the TZCI materials (plastics and flexible
packaging materials) to the Group for a term commencing from 1
January 2014 until 31 December 2016. (2) TFS Supply Agreement,
pursuant to which, Tianjin Ting Fung Starch Development Co., Ltd.
(“TFS™) will supply the TFS products (modified potato starch and
seasoning flavor products) to the Group for a term commencing from 1
January 2014 until 31 December 2016. Greater System Holdings Limited
(owned by Mr. Wei Ing-Chou, an executive director, and Mr. Wei Ying-
Chiao, an executive director at that time, and their associates) holds
40.8% TZCl shares and 51.0% TFS shares respectively. The ordinary
resolution approving the continuing connected transactions were duly
passed at the Extraordinary General Meeting held on 30 December
2013. Details for these transactions may be found at the Company'’s
announcements and circular dated 18 November 2013, 6 December
2013 and 30 December 2013 respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the amounts totaling
US$404.202 million under the category of purchases of goods from
TZCl of US$391.594 million and TFS of US$12.608 million as disclosed
in note 38 to the financial statements fall under the definition of
continuing connected transaction in the Listing Rules.

On 25 October 2013, the Company entered into the Supply Agreement
with Ting Chuan (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp. (“Ting Chuan”) for
the supply by the subsidiaries of the Group of the Products to Ting
Chuan and its subsidiaries for a term commencing from the date of the
Supply Agreement until 31 December 2015. Ting Chuan operates the
Family Mart. It is a wholly owned subsidiary of Ting Hsin. Ting Hsin held
approximately 33.16% of the issued share capital of the Company as
at the date of the agreement date. Details for the transaction may be
found at the Company’s announcement dated 25 October 2013.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the amounts totaling US$9.733
million under the category of sales of goods to Ting Chuan as disclosed
in note 38 to the financial statements fall under the definition of
continuing connected transaction in the Listing Rules.
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On 7 September 2012, Master Kong Instant Noodle Investment (China)
Co., Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into the
Supply Agreement with Shandong Weizhen Food Co., Ltd. (“Shandong
Weizhen") in relation to the Group’s purchase of frozen and dried
food materials and other meat products from Shandong Weizhen for
a term commencing from the date of the Supply Agreement until 31
December 2014. Mr. Wei Ing-Chou, an executive director, and Mr.
Wei Ying-Chiao, an executive director at that time, own 37.5% of
Shandong Weizhen shares. Details for the transaction may be found at
the Company’s announcement dated 10 September 2012.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the amounts totaling US$72.548
million under the category of purchases of goods from Shandong
Weizhen as disclosed in note 38 to the financial statements fall under
the definition of continuing connected transaction in the Listing Rules.

On 31 December 2014, the Company entered into the Food Supply
Agreement with Shandong Weizhen in relation to the Group’s
purchase of frozen and dried food materials, other meat products,
dried meat floss and processing services from Shandong Weizhen for
a term commencing from 1 January 2015 until 31 December 2017.
Shandong Weizhen is beneficially owned as to 75% by Great System, a
company which is owned by Mr. Wei Ing-Chou, an executive director,
and Mr. Wei Ying-Chiao, an executive director at that time, and their
associates, and as to 25% by Sanyo, a substantial shareholder of the
Company. Details for the transaction may be found at the Company’s
announcement dated 31 December 2014.

On 5 November 2012, Pepsi (China) Investment Co., Ltd. (“Pepsi
China Investment”), a subsidiary of the Group, entered into the Supply
Agreement with Tianjin Ting Qiao F&B Advisory Service Co., Ltd. (“Ting
Qiao”) for the supply of beverage products by the Group's bottlers to
the fast food outlets of Dicos for a term commencing from the date
of the Supply Agreement until 31 December 2014.Ting Qiao operates
the Dicos fast food restaurant chain in the PRC and is beneficially
owned as to 88% by Ting Hsin, which is a substaintial shareholder of
the Company holding approximately 33.2% of the issued share capital
of the Company as at the date of the agreement date. Details for the
transaction may be found at the Company’s announcement dated 5
November 2012.

2014 Annual Rey
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For the year ended 31 December 2014, the amounts totaling
US$10.060 million under the category of sales of goods to Ting Qiao as
disclosed in note 38 to the financial statements fall under the definition
of continuing connected transaction in the Listing Rules.

The above agreement has been expired on 31 December 2014. On 31
December 2014, Pepsi China Investment entered into the Beverages
Supply Agreement with Ting Qiao for the supply of beverage products
by the Group's bottlers to the fast food outlets of Dicos for a term
commencing from 1 January 2015 until 31 December 2017. Details for
the transaction may be found at the Company’s announcement dated
31 December 2014.

On 2 April 2014, China Dingya Holding Limited (“China Dingya”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into the Agreement
with Victory Ascent International Limited (”Victory Ascent”) pursuant to
which China Dingya has agreed to acquire the entire issued share capital
of Wealth City Investment Limited (“Wealth City”) (the “Acquisition”),
from Victory Ascent at a consideration of RMB2,483,016,850. Upon
completion of the Acquisition, Wealth City will become a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group. The sole asset of Wealth City is the entire equity
interest in _E/8 %3k 5FEMESR A (Shanghai Jingiu Minghao Real
Estate Co., Ltd.) (“Shanghai Jingiu Minghao”). Shanghai Jingiu Minghao
is the developer of a property project situated at Wuzhong Road,
Minhang District of Shanghai, the PRC. Victory Ascent is beneficially
owned by Mr. Wei Ying-Chiao, a former executive Director of the
Company. The ordinary resolution approving the connected transaction
was duly passed at the Extraordinary General Meeting held on 14 May
2014. Details for this transaction may be found at the Company's
announcements and circular dated 2 April 2014, 17 April 2014 and 14
May 2014 respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, as disclosed in note 38 under
the category of acquisition of property, plant and equipment and
prepaid lease payments, the Group had paid US$281,847,000 out of
total consideration of RMB2,483,016,850 (equivalent to approximately
US$402,740,000). At the end of the reporting period, the consideration
payables of US$173,185,000 was included in other payables and
deposits received under current liabilities.
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The Directors (including the Independent Non-Executive Directors),
have reviewed and confirmed that the above continuing connected
transactions regarding the purchases of goods from TZCl, TFS and
Shandong Weizhen, the sales of goods to Ting Qiao and Ting Chuan
have been entered into:

(@) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(b)  on normal commercial terms or better; and

(¢) according to the agreement governing them on terms that are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.

The auditor of the Company has been engaged to report and they have
provided a letter to the Board confirming that the above continuing
connected transactions regarding the purchases of goods from TZCl,
TFS and Shandong Weizhen, the sales of goods to Ting Qiao and Ting
Chuan have nothing come to their attention that caused them to believe
that:

(@ have not been approved by the Company’s board of directors;

(b)  were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Group if the transactions involve the provision of
goods or services by the Group;

(©)  were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with
the relevant agreement governing the transactions; and

(d) have exceeded the cap.

The Directors (including the Independent Non-executive Directors), have
reviewed and confirmed that, except for the continuing connected
transactions as stated in the prior paragraphs, all other continuing
connected transactions entered by the Group are exempted under Rule
14A.73 of the Listing Rules. Accordingly, such transactions are exempt
from the reporting, annual review, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.
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RAT)Z A a4 Z 5240 B A (B 4 There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
BEREZHAT  RFSHE AT EE Articles of Association although there are no restrictions against such
FAZ SRR Z PR H - rights under the laws in the Cayman Islands.

% EED AUDITOR

ARaREEAFAS FHRSERIGTES A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting of the
HEEBAAER AT AN T EED 2R Company to re-appoint Mazars CPA Limited as auditor of the Company.

REZESH By order of the Board

BLEM Wei Ing-Chou

EER Chairman

FE - 201543 823 A Shanghai, the PRC, 23 March 2015
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Mazars CPA LIMITED

TG ot o o 5 A LA
42nd Floor, Central Plaza,
18 Harbour Road, Wan Chai, Hong Kong

TSR 1 89E D R B 3 4248
To the shareholders of
Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp.
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements of Tingyi (Cayman Islands)
Holding Corp. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the
“Group”) set out on pages 81 to 229, which comprise the consolidated
and the Company'’s statements of financial position as at 31 December
2014, and the consolidated income statement, consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of the financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the HKICPA. Those standards require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free
from material misstatement.




80

B LB Independent Auditor’s Report

EREEETREFAEREBZEMER
KBS BRRBBEENZRE - MEEZ
RFBUAREFI2 # i - SREFEERER
FEREERME M B MR T A ENBRR
itz g o FEIEHZERBREEE - A

TR BRERURIEEMRFHRER
HEzAREZE URFEEZ2ERRE

FFoBYFERE] SREZAMEZEZ
MEBRBER - ERTEREIGESHR
RzestBRzaBERAEL Z &5Th
St AEN - AR EREK 2 BRYH
7T AR o

HPIEE RMAMESCEREERERTRE
KB E W ARAINET B RIBHER -

BMRA ZEMBRREBBKEBH
BHREEADNEERAFHRE BEAF
¥ EBEH£ER2014F 12 A31 B 2%k
ARBEZBIEFEERNRBERE
WEERRERAEHIIZ RERELR

R -

BESMELRAERLAR
HEZF AN
&F&20159F3 A23H

R B
HEMRARYRTS © PO5132

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
the financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December
2014 and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 23 March 2015

Chan Chi Ming Andy
Practising Certificate number: P05132

AediziERAT TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.
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Consolidated Income Statement

HZE2014F 12 A31BILFE
Year ended 31 December 2014

2014 2013
k3 FET FET
Note us$’ooo Us$'000
= Turnover 6 10,237,982 10,940,996
SHE A Cost of sales (7,119,944) (7,630,997)
E A Gross profit 3,118,038 3,309,999
U ek B B b F UL A Other revenue and other net income 8 209,401 215,685
Pol =] DN Distribution costs (2,138,598) (2,312,603)
THER Administrative expenses (299,549) (350,868)
H s & A Other operating expenses (155,841) (117,921)
B7%E R Finance costs 9 (47,151) (37,351)
JE{GEEE AN RI%E4  Share of results of associates
and joint ventures 7,269 16,049
BRBE AR Profit before taxation 9 693,569 722,990
A Taxation 11 (208,820) (228,679)
A F R F Profit for the year 484,749 494,311
R Profit attributable to:
ZIN/NGT S Owners of the Company 400,482 408,544
LEERRR Non-controlling interests 84,267 85,767
REERF Profit for the year 484,749 494,311
FREF Earnings per share 14
HA Basic US7.15 cents US7.30 cents
g Diluted US7.13 cents US7.28 cents
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

HZE2014F 12 A31HIEEE
Year ended 31 December 2014

2014 2013
FET FET
Us$000 Us$°000
A F R F Profit for the year 484,749 494,311
Ha 2 (5E) W : Other comprehensive (loss) income:
TEESEE Items that will not be reclassified
B ) E H subsequently to profit or loss:
AERMNEEZEME Remeasurement of defined
benefit obligations 2,349 850
BARGRE A RESIER Items that are or may be reclassified
B ) E H subsequently to profit or loss:
PE W =58 Exchange differences on consolidation (101,998) 134,154
ARHESREER Fair value changes in available-
NEZEE for-sale financial assets 11,040 12,780
BRI & 7] it Reclassification adjustments relating to
HESmEE available-for-sale financial assets
ZEDBFE disposed of during the year — (14,397)
(90,958) 132,537
AEEHMEE(HFE) R Other comprehensive (loss)
income for the year (88,609) 133,387
AEEXHKNREE Total comprehensive income for the year 396,140 627,698
EihEmlE Total comprehensive income
attributable to:
RAFIRRER Owners of the Company 336,629 500,127
LEERIRR Non-controlling interests 59,511 127,571
396,140 627,698
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

R2014F12A31H
At 31 December 2014

At At
31 December 31 December
2014 2013
i3 FET FET
Note Uss’000 Us$000
'E ASSETS
FEREBEE Non-current assets
L/ E SRS Property, plant and equipment 15 5,859,905 5,485,100
T A 495 (B Prepaid lease payments 16 737,387 318,961
BIVEE Intangible asset 17 27,305 28,058
NS Interest in associates 19 31,973 29,050
EX-VNSIL Interest in joint ventures 20 74,153 80,276
AtEESmEE Available-for-sale financial assets 21 79,052 24,683
FEIEFIBE E Deferred tax assets 34 53,009 48,105
6,862,784 6,014,233
RBEE Current assets
BAREEYER Financial assets at
TEB AR IR fair value through
N REE profit or loss 22 2,352 4,952
=& Inventories 23 386,958 480,862
JFEU R K Trade receivables 24 238,239 260,427
TA A FRIE K oA Prepayments and
FEWFRIA other receivables 25 532,621 413,957
HEIRIRITIE K Pledged bank deposits 27 12,203 15,491
RITHEBRRER S Bank balances and cash 27 1,170,900 1,234,399
2,343,273 2,410,088
HmEE Total assets 9,206,057 8,424,321




A BIIEANZE Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

M2014412 8318
At 31 December 2014

At At
31 December 31 December
2014 2013
Hiat FETT FET
Note us$‘00o Us$'000
BRERKAE EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
BARHE Capital and reserves
BT AR Issued capital 28 28,019 27,982
& [ Share premium 29 65,421 53,431
kil Reserves 30 2,940,117 2,798,879
P UNET) S Total capital and reserves
R AR FEEEE attributable to owners
of the Company 3,033,557 2,880,292
DERRER Non-controlling interests 1,062,107 1,046,095
REREREEE Total equity 4,095,664 3,926,387
FRBEE Non-current liabilities
RBAEEEBE Long-term interest-bearing
borrowings 32 1,246,720 659,643
HuIERBEE Other non-current liabilities — 262
BTREMNEE Employee benefit obligations 33 28,702 28,186
FBERIERE Deferred tax liabilities 34 198,487 184,389
1,473,909 872,480
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A BIIEAR K Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

MR2014412 8318
At 31 December 2014

At At
31 December 31 December
2014 2013
Kzt FET FET
Note Uss’000 Us$000
REBAE Current liabilities
FERTBRFR Trade payables 35 896,131 1,251,710
Hih e 5B R B UIFE  Other payables and deposits received 36 1,233,472 1,192,428
ERBEZ Current portion of interest-
RVEREB {7 bearing borrowings 32 1,382,034 1,016,636
BREIEMNKIEA Advance payments
from customers 100,522 108,354
BIE Taxation 24,325 56,326
3,636,484 3,625,454
FeR=Ri Total liabilities 5,110,393 4,497,934
BREREAE Total equity and liabilities 9,206,057 8,424,321
FRBAE Net current liabilities (1,293,211) (1,215,366)
BEERABAER Total assets less current
liabilities 5,569,573 4,798,867

M2015F3 A23 B EE & R X#E Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 23
£ March 2015

2

FFEM Wei Ing-Chou F H#— BB Junichiro Ida
EZ Director EZ Director
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Statement of Financial Position

#R2014F12A31H
At 31 December 2014

At At
31 December 31 December
2014 2013
Hiat FET FET
Note us$‘00o Us$'000
BE ASSETS
FRBEE Non-current assets
W - R REE Property, plant and equipment 15 101 128
L ByEENEIE Interest in subsidiaries 18 1,189,293 928,464
AHHESREE Available-for-sale financial assets 21 53,506 24,073
1,242,900 952,665
REBEE Current assets
B EEYR Financial assets at fair value
RirtEam iR IE through profit or loss
HERLEE 22 2,352 4,952
Fa T FRIE K oA Prepayments and
FEUL SRR other receivables 25 371 379
e N NEIERE Amount due from a subsidiary 26 310,000 310,000
RITEBR MRS Bank balances and cash 54,298 13,641
367,021 328,972
BEE Total assets 1,609,921 1,281,637
BRERKAE EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
BARFHE Capital and reserves
BT AN Issued capital 28 28,019 27,982
[ Vi Share premium 29 65,421 53,431
G Reserves 30 251,689 243,988
BREREREE Total equity 345,129 325,401

S —



BIF&AR 2% Statement of Financial Position

MR2014412 8318
At 31 December 2014

At At
31 December 31 December
2014 2013
Hiat FETT FET
Note Uss’000 Us$000
FRBEE Non-current liabilities
RABERE Long-term interest-
bearing borrowings 32 876,504 495,172
BIRAMEME Employee benefit obligations 33 15,045 14,708
891,549 509,880
REBEE Current liabilities
JFE T BR K Trade payables 35 520 841
H i E T FRIE Other payables 36 11,763 15,515
BEREEZ Current portion of interest-
IR bearing borrowings 32 360,960 430,000
373,243 446,356
BEE Total liabilities 1,264,792 956,236
BREREERE Total equity and liabilities 1,609,921 1,281,637
BFREBEE Net current liabilities (6,222) (117,384)
HWEERREEE Total assets less
current liabilities 1,236,678 835,281
MR2015F3 23K EEo it £ R IFE Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 23
REE March 2015
FLFEIN Wei Ing-Chou HH#— BB Junichiro Ida

B Director ZEF Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HZE2014F 12 A31HIEEE
Year ended 31 December 2014

ARRRRER
Attributable to owners of the Company
RAR#E RRER KRR
R RiVEE Total Non- B
Issued Share e capital and controling Total
capital premium Reserves reserves interests equity

TET TET AT AT AT AT
Uss 000 Uss 000 Uss 000 Uss 000 Uss 000 Uss 000

R01351518 At 1 January 2013 27,964 66,656 2,449,530 2,544,150 945,035 3,489,185
TEE R Profit for the year - - 408,544 408,544 85,767 494311
Rfp2ENE(ER) Other comprehensive income (loss)
ReRHET ERE Remeasurement of defined
benefit obligation = = 450 450 400 850
EREE Exchange differences on consolidation - - 92,750 92,750 41,404 134,154
ARNESREELABEZET  Fairvalue changes in avallable-
for-sale financial assets — — 12,780 12,780 — 12,780
RERLETHIE Reclassification adjustments relating to
SHAEENERE available-for-sale financial assets
disposed of during the year = = (14,397) (14,397) = (14,397)
Ht2EREEE Total other comprehensive income - - 91,583 91,583 41,804 133,387
REE2ANEAE Total comprehensive income for the year - - 500,127 500,127 12757 627,698
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HZE2014F12 831815 E
Year ended 31 December 2014

AARRRER
Attributable to owners of the Company
o8
RAR#E RRER KRR
B RipaE Total Non- R
Issued Share e capital and controling Total
capital premium Reserves reserves interests equity

AT AT TET TET TET AT
Uss 000 Uss 00 Uss 000 Uss 00 Uss 000 Uss 000

HANBRRZRS Transactions with owners of
the Company:
REEHE Contributions and distribution
EatEROTI 3R Equity settled share-based
transactions = = 11,930 11,930 = 11,930
REBRESHETIRA Shares issued under share
option scheme 18 5,607 (1,417) 4,208 — 4,208
BREREZ2012ERERS 2012 final dividend approved
and paid = (18,832) (161,291) (180,123) (26,511) (206,634)
HANRRRZRSER Total transactions with owners
of the Company 18 (13,225) (150,778) (163,985) (26,511) (190,496)

R2013%12 4318 At 31 December 2013 27,982 53,431 2,798,879 2,880,292 1,046,095 3,926,387
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HZE2014F12 831815 E
Year ended 31 December 2014

AR RRRER

Attributable to owners of the Company

%
RAR G Ry B&
LGS RivaE Total Non- EReE
Issued Share %  cpitaland  controlling Total
Capital premium Reserves reserves interests equity

AL AL AL &L &L &L
ussoo ussoo Uss 00 Usso00 uss 00 ussoo

R201451818 At 1 January 2014 27,982 53,431 2,798,879 2,880,292 1,046,095 3,926,387
TER R Profit for the year - - 400,482 400,482 84,267 484,749
Rt 2E () hE Other comprehensive (loss) income
RERMEL ER/E Remeasurement of defined
benefit obligation - - 1,584 1,584 765 2,349
EREE Exchange differences on consolidation - - (76,477) (76,477) (25,521) (101,998)
AEHESREEDAEZEE  Fai value changes in avallable-
for-sale financial assets - - 11,040 11,040 - 11,040
At2EFREE Total other comprehensive loss - - (63,853) (63,853) (24,756) (88,609)
REERANEAR Total comprehensive income
for the year — — 336,629 336,629 59,511 396,140
HALARRZRS Transactions with owners
of the Company:
REEDE Contributions and distribution
ERGERN M2 FE Equity settled share-based transactions - - 11,837 11,837 - 11,837
BERERET 2T RG Shares issuied under share option scheme 37 11,990 (2,904) 9123 - 9123
EHEREE2013EREKS 2013 final dividend approved and paid - - (204,324) (204,324) (43,499) (247,823)
HADIRRLR 548 Total transactions with owners
of the Company 3 11,990 (195,391) (183,364) (43,499) (226,863)
R2014512 8310 At 31 December 2014 28,019 65,421 2,940,117 3,033,557 1,062,107 4,095,664

—
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HZE2014F 12 A31HIEEE
Year ended 31 December 2014

2014 2013
k3 FET FETT
Note Us$000 Us$'000
(#EEZ))
(restated)
RETES OPERATING ACTIVITIES
REHEEFTBEE Cash generated from operations 37 760,265 1,477,249
BB FEER The People’s Republic of China (“PRC")
enterprise income tax paid (230,376) (224,303)
EBFLE Interest paid (46,974) (38,509)
RETHMEBES T Net cash from operating activities 482,915 1,214,437
REES INVESTING ACTIVITIES
=Rl EIPS) Interest received 54,867 51,527
BlE &R AR Dividend received from a joint venture 12,068 8,596
YA E SRS EMAF Dividend received from available-for-sale
financial assets — 747
RERHEE Proceeds from disposal of available-
TREE S for-sale financial assets — 46,120
HERAREETRE Proceeds from disposal of financial assets
TE Bz BR FR EE Y at fair value through profit or loss
EREEZAF 4,625 21,936
BALRABEYENE  Purchase of financial assets at fair
EaREENSREE value through profit or loss (1,950) (25,545)
BARMHTESRERE Purchase of available-
for-sale financial assets (43,349) (2,992)
BAMZE - #as R E Purchase of property, plant and equipment (970,995) (852,041)
B TR E Prepaid lease payments (335,168) (41,841)
HEME - HRE R Proceeds from sale of property,
B iR plant and equipment 15,721 17,825
& —fEfTE AR Net cash inflow on disposal
Fri83 & %58 of a subsidiary 18 19,916 —
U BB 2 N B R Acquisition of interest in associates — (3,971)
G AN T Acquisition of interest in joint ventures (3,375) (11,440)
REETHMARS FHE Net cash used in investing activities (1,247,640) (791,079)




A& RESR Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HZE2014F12 831815 E
Year ended 31 December 2014

2014 2013
i3 FET FET
Note us$’ooo Us$°000
(#EEZ)
(restated)
MEEH FINANCING ACTIVITIES
BENARR TR Z S Dividends paid to owners of the Company (204,324) (180,123)
B DR R ZI%E  Dividends paid to non-controlling interests (43,499) (26,511)
TR BB I 51 8135 77 Z IR 1D Issue of shares under share option scheme 9,123 4,208
TIZIRITE R Proceeds from bank borrowings 1,340,924 642,242
EEIBTER Repayments of bank borrowings (614,533) (575,044)
Hi@BEEZ Net movement of other short-term
HE)HE borrowings 240,512 119,165
WIBITERA Acquisition of additional interest
HRRE U I PT EB in subsidiaries upon
N RIFRIME RS exercising of put options on shares
of subsidiaries (2,500) (18,375)
MESEE TS Net cash from (used in)
(FTA)BEEFEE financing activities 725,703 (34,438)
BeRASEENNF Net (decrease) increase in cash and
(B 4>) 3 A0 cash equivalents (39,022) 388,920
FzRERBESEEY Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of year 1,249,890 837,898
EXSE o8 Effect on exchange rate changes (27,765) 23,072
FRZBESRREZLEEY Cash and cash equivalents
at end of year 27 1,183,103 1,249,890

92 etz ERAT TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP. ——
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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HZE2014F 12 A31BLLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2014

GENERAL INFORMATION

Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp. (the “Company”) is a
limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman Islands and
its shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited. The address of its principal place of business
is No. 1688, Wuzhong Road, Minhang District, Shanghai, the PRC.

The Company is an investment holding company and engaged
in trading of spare parts of machineries and raw materials.
The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”)
are principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of instant
noodles, beverages and instant food products. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 45 to the financial
statements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"),
which collective term includes all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs")
and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong. These financial statements also comply with
the applicable disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance which concern the preparation of financial statements,
which for this financial year and the comparative period continue to
be those of the predecessor Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
32), in accordance with transitional and saving arrangements for Part
9 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), “Accounts
and Audit”, which are set out in sections 76 to 87 of Schedule 11
to that Ordinance. These financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing
Rules”).

These financial statements have been prepared on a basis
consistent with the accounting policies adopted in the 2013
financial statements except for the adoption of the new/revised
HKFRSs that are relevant to the Group and effective from the
current year as detailed in note 4 to the financial statements.
A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted by the
Group is set out in note 3 to the financial statements.
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2.

etz ERAT TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

In preparing these financial statements, the directors have
carefully assessed the working capital and financing requirements
of the Group in the foreseeable future, as the Group’s current
liabilities exceeded its current assets by US$1,293,211,000 (2073
US$1,215,366,000) at the end of the reporting period.

Taking into account the existing banking facilities of the Group,
the directors are satisfied that the Group has sufficient resources
to meet in full its financial obligations as they fall due in the
foreseeable future. Accordingly, these financial statements have
been prepared on a going concern basis.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Basis of measurement

The measurement basis used in the preparation of these
financial statements is historical cost, except for available-
for-sale financial assets at fair value, financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss, and derivative financial
instruments, which are measured at fair value as explained
in the accounting policies set out below.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and all of its subsidiaries. The
financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting year as that of the Company using
consistent accounting policies.

All intra-group balances, transactions, income and
expenses and profits and losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Non-controlling interests (“NCI”) are presented, separately
from owners of the Company, in the consolidated income
statement and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income and within equity in the consolidated statement
of financial position. The non-controlling interests in
the acquiree, that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
acquiree’s net assets in event of liquidation, are measured
initially either at fair value or at the present ownership
interests’ proportionate share in the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. This choice of
measurement basis is made on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are initially
measured at fair value unless another measurement basis is
required by HKFRSs.

Allocation of total comprehensive income

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income
is attributed to the owners of the Company and the non-
controlling interest even if this results in the non-controlling
interest having a deficit balance.
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3.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in ownership interests

Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect
the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiary.
Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
‘transactions with non-controlling interests reserve’ within
equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit
or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii)
the carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests.
The amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to the disposed subsidiary are accounted
for on the same basis as would be required if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
Any investment retained in the former subsidiary and any
amounts owed by or to the former subsidiary are accounted
for as a financial asset or liability, interest in associate,
interest in joint venture or others as appropriate from the
date when control is lost.



BT #5#RRMT5T Notes to the Financial Statements

3. FE

(o)

BiHHE(E)

M - wERRE

KA FERE LM T EHR E T
E URERBFFBEBRA
Bk o BRI T2 DASNZ E AR YD
% MR RREARERRG
WERZFREBEARK ¥
X BERRBIAABEER
BEERIAEEEEZHAIE
R e & 3R 7 10 B 4B IR E A i
FEAZEERRBERAE - #1E
ERERELZFERNERR
AR HORR o

FREZTIEIN Bk - #E R
RE 2T ERBRBEEERAE
tE2 AR ERERFR R
B BRERAERET R
E-EWx - HELRRHBEAR
ZTRBDAETRERFH
- BB ZANERREBD Z
MiRaBEENEK - SEN
DT EITE

BF 10304
HEBE KRR -
— 75 {55 12 6
— R 10124
—AERmEEM  S5EI104F
R 5 4F
FEIERAE 32104

EHERNELBEETREER
HAB S & 2 AR AR AAT R 2R A A
@i WX BERREBEE
BHELARRBABZEE
BREHEMGFREEERE
B2 ZBANFE - LR

HE2014F 128318 1LFE
For the year ended 31 December 2014

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

Property, plant and equipment

Freehold land is not depreciated and stated at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. All other property, plant
and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for its intended use. Repairs
and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
year in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less
accumulated impairment losses of property, plant and
equipment, other than construction in progress, over
their estimated useful lives as set out below from the date
on which they are available for use and after taking into
account their estimated residual values, using the straight-
line method. Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the costs of the item is
allocated on a reasonable basis and depreciated separately.

Buildings 10 to 30 years
Machinery and equipment:

— Instant noodles 12 years
— Beverages 10 to 12 years
— Instant food and others 5to 10 years
Electrical appliances and equipment 5 years

Miscellaneous equipment 3to 10 years

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item) is included in profit or loss in
the year in which the item is derecognised.
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etz ERAT TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

(e)

()

Construction in progress

Construction in progress includes property, plant and
equipment in the course of construction for production
or for its own use purposes. Construction in progress is
stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Cost
includes all construction expenditure and other direct costs,
including interest costs, attributable to such projects. Costs
on completed construction works are transferred to the
appropriate asset category. No depreciation is provided in
respect of construction in progress until it is completed and
ready for its intended use.

Intangible asset

Concession right

Concession right acquired in a business combination
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Concession right has finite useful life and is carried at cost
less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method
over its estimated useful life. Both the period and method of
amortisation are reviewed annually.

Prepaid lease payments

Prepaid lease payments are up-front payments to acquire
fixed term interests in lessee-occupied land that are classified
as operating leases. The premiums are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses and are amortised over the period of the lease on a
straight-line basis.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(9)

(h)

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity that is controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. The Group reassesses whether it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an interest
in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment loss. The
carrying amount of the interest in a subsidiary is reduced to
its recoverable amount on an individual basis, if it is higher
than the recoverable amount. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable.

Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the arrangement. A joint arrangement is
an arrangement of which two or more parties have joint
control. Joint control is a contractually agreed sharing of
control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require the unanimous consent
of the parties sharing control. The Group reassesses whether
it has joint control of an arrangement and whether the type
of joint arrangement in which it is involved has changed, if
facts and circumstances change.
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etz ERAT TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h)

Associates and joint ventures (Continued)

The Group’s interest in associate or joint venture is
accounted for under the equity method of accounting,
except when the investment or a portion thereof is classified
as held for sale. Under the equity method, the investment
is initially recorded at cost and adjusted thereafter for
the post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the
investee’s net assets and any impairment loss relating to the
investment. Except to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the investee, the Group discontinues recognising
its share of further losses when the Group's share of losses
of the investee equals or exceeds the carrying amount of
its interest in the investee, which includes any long term
interests that, in substance, form part of the Group's net
investment in the investee.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates and joint ventures
are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest in the
investees, except where unrealised losses provide evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case
they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

0]

Financial instruments

Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when and only when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments and on a trade
date basis.

A financial asset is derecognised when and only when (i)
the Group's contractual rights to future cash flows from the
financial asset expire or (i) the Group transfers the financial
asset and either (a) the Group transfers substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, or (b)
the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset but it
does not retain control of the financial asset.

A financial liability is derecognised when and only when the
liability is extinguished, that is, when the obligation specified
in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Classification and measurement

Financial assets or financial liabilities are initially recognised
at their fair value plus, in the case of financial assets or
financial liabilities not carried at fair value through profit
or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of the financial assets or financial
liabilities.
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etz ERAT TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

0]

o

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading and financial assets
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss. They are carried at fair value, with any
resultant gain and loss recognised in profit or loss.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables including bank balances and cash,
pledged bank deposits and trade and other receivables are
non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market and
are not held for trading. They are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, except where
receivables are interest-free loans and without any fixed
repayment term or the effect of discounting would be
insignificant. In such case, the receivables are stated at
cost less impairment loss. Amortised cost is calculated by
taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
over the period to maturity. Gains and losses arising from
derecognition, impairment or through the amortisation
process are recognised in profit or loss.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

0]

Financial instruments (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
financial assets that are either designated at this category
or not classified in any of the other categories of financial
assets. They are measured at fair value with changes in value
recognised as investment revaluation reserve within equity
until the assets are sold, collected or otherwise disposed of,
or until the assets are determined to be impaired, at which
time the cumulative gain or loss previously reported in other
comprehensive income shall be reclassified to profit or loss
as a reclassification adjustment.

Available-for-sale financial assets that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured are stated at cost less
impairment loss.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

0]

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group assesses
whether there is objective evidence that financial assets,
other than those at fair value through profit or loss, are
impaired. The impairment loss of financial assets carried at
amortised cost is measured as the difference between the
assets’ carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flow discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. Such impairment loss is reversed in
subsequent periods through profit or loss when an increase
in the asset’s recoverable amount can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
subject to a restriction that the carrying amount of the asset
at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what
the amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is impaired,
a cumulative loss comprising the difference between
its acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment and
amortisation) and current fair value, less any previously
recognised impairment loss in profit or loss, is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment.
Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss in respect
of available-for-sale equity instrument are not reversed
through profit or loss. Any subsequent increase in fair value
of available-for-sale equity instrument after recognition of
impairment loss is recognised in equity. Impairment loss
of available-for-sale debt instruments is reversed through
profit or loss, if the increase in fair value of the instrument
can be objectively related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

0]

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For an available-for-sale financial asset that is carried at cost,
the amount of impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the financial asset and the
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at
the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset.
Such impairment loss shall not be reversed.

Financial liabilities

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, interest-bearing borrowings and other non-
current liabilities. All financial liabilities except for derivatives
are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method, unless the effect of discounting would be
insignificant, in which case they are stated at cost.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer of the contract to make specified payments
to reimburse the holder of the contract for a loss the
holder incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the terms of a
debt instrument. The financial guarantee contracts of the
Company represent the financial guarantees in respect of
credit facilities issued to its subsidiaries. The fair values of
the financial guarantees have not been recognised in the
statement of financial position of the Company, as the
estimation of the fair values of the financial guarantees
would not be meaningful and practicable due to related
party nature of the instruments.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

0]

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair
value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and
are subsequently remeasured at their fair value. The gain or
loss on change in fair values is recognised in profit or loss
unless the derivative qualifies for hedge accounting.

Obligations arising from put options on shares of subsidiaries
written to non-controlling shareholders

Put option written to non-controlling shareholders, which
will be settled other than by exchange of fixed amount
of cash for a fixed number of shares in a subsidiary is
treated as derivative and is recognised at fair value upon
initial recognition. Any changes of fair value in subsequent
reporting dates are recognised in profit or loss.

The gross financial liability arising from the put option is
recognised when contractual obligation to repurchase the
shares in a subsidiary is established even if the obligation
is conditional on the counterparty exercising a right to sell
back the shares to the Group. The liability for the share
redemption amount is initially recognised and measured
at present value of the estimated repurchase price with
the corresponding debit to the non-controlling interests.
In subsequent periods, the remeasurement of the present
value of the estimated gross obligation under the written
put option to the non-controlling shareholders is recognised
in profit or loss.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

@

(k)

0]

Cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash equivalents represent short-term highly liquid
investments which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, net of bank overdraft, if any.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue and
costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably and on the
following bases:

Sale of goods is recognised on transfer of risks and rewards
of ownership, which generally coincides with the time when
the goods are delivered and title has been passed.

Interest income from financial asset is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
Group's rights to receive payment have been established.

Foreign currency translation

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (“functional currency”). The Company's functional
currency is United States Dollar (“US$"”) and majority of
its subsidiaries have Renminbi (“RMB") as their functional
currency. The consolidated financial statements are
presented in US$, which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency.
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FTESHBRE) 3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
() sIemEE) (I) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

INEE S BIIRT 5 e B 2 IRT Foreign currency transactions are translated into the

EERERNEEE - B Lt functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at

ROGEERBEERB 2 ERXRK, the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and

MAINETIE s B EERA losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and

BEMELEZELED  YRIE from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary

AR R AR o assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are

recognised in profit or loss.

THEEEBR  TEBINER The results and financial position of foreign operations that

M EE NSRRI R E have a functional currency different from the presentation

MARREREE  HIRIAT currency are translated into the presentation currency as

FTRAREREWME follows:

(a) BEMBEBVIZEBLEE (@)  Assets and liabilities are translated at the closing rate
oW iERBRE ; at the end of the reporting period;

(b)y KIEWX THighnfEFEHE (b) Income and expenses are translated at the weighted
ERE average exchange rates;

() FTAR FBREEERNE (¢ All resulting exchange differences arising from the
HERREXNEEEI above translation and exchange differences arising
EBHREFHE oM E from a monetary item that forms part of the Group's
BIgE PTAEAME N = net investment in a foreign operation are recognised
& R AR T E as a separate component of equity;

NE S o
ﬁ&a@ﬂa’éﬁﬁ:ﬁ TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDINGML—_
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

U]

(m)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(d)

On the disposal of a foreign operation, which includes
a disposal of the Group's entire interest in a foreign
operation, a partial disposal involving the loss of
control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a joint
arrangement or an associate that includes a foreign
operation of which the retained interest is no longer
equity-accounted for, the cumulative amount of the
exchange differences relating to the foreign operation
that is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the separate component of equity is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the gain
or loss on disposal is recognised.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable

value. Cost, which comprises all costs of purchase and,

where applicable, costs of conversion and other costs

that have been incurred in bringing the inventories to

their present location and condition, is calculated using

the weighted average cost method. Net realisable value

represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary course

of business less the estimated costs necessary to make the

sale.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

Impairment of other assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
internal and external sources of information to assess
whether there is any indication that its property, plant and
equipment, intangible asset, interest in associates, interest
in joint ventures and prepaid lease payments may be
impaired or impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may be reduced. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated, based on the
higher of its fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the smallest group of assets that generates cash
flows independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

If the recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating
unit is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is
reduced to its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are
recognised as an expense immediately.

A reversal of impairment losses is limited to the carrying
amount of the asset or cash-generating unit that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
in prior years. Reversal of impairment losses is recognised as
income in profit or loss immediately.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(o)

(p)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred, net of any investment income on
the temporary investment of the specific borrowings, that
are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, i.e. assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale. All other borrowing costs are recognised as an
expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Operating leases

Leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee are classified as
operating leases. Rentals payable under operating leases
are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the lease term of the relevant lease. Lease incentives
received are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part
of the net consideration agreed for the use of the leased
asset. Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.
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etz ERAT TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

0]

Government grants

Government grants represent incentive grants from the
relevant PRC authorities in respect of the running of
business by the Group in certain development zones and to
encourage the furtherance of such business.

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income
over the years necessary to match the grant on a systematic
basis to the costs that it is intended to compensate. Where
the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a
deferred income account and is released to profit or loss
over the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal
annual instalments.

Provision and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated
reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

Employee benefits

Short term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and the cost
of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present values.

Defined contribution plans

The obligations for contributions to defined contribution
retirement scheme are recognised as expenses in profit or
loss as incurred and are reduced by contributions forfeited
by those employees who leave the scheme prior the
contributions are vested fully. The assets of the scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund.

Defined benefit plans

The Group's obligation in respect of defined benefit plans
is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the
ultimate cost of benefit that employees have earned in
return for their services in the current and prior periods,
which is discounted to determine the present value of those
benefits.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

Employee benefits (Continued)

Defined benefit plans (Continued)

The calculation of the obligation is based on the
recommendations of the independent qualified actuaries
using the projected unit credit method annually. Service
cost and interest expense on the net defined benefit liability
are recognised in profit or loss. Service cost includes both
current service cost and past service cost. Current services
cost is measured as the increase in the present value of
the defined benefit obligation resulting from employee
service in the current period. Past service cost is measured
as the change in the present value of the defined benefit
obligation resulted from a plan amendment or curtailment
and is recognised in profit or loss. Interest expense for the
period is determined by applying the discount rate used to
measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning
of the reporting period to the defined benefit liability. The
discount rate is the yield at the end of the reporting period
on government bonds of the PRC that have maturity dates
approximating the terms of the Group’s obligations.

Gain or loss on settlement is measured as the difference
between a) the present value of the defined benefit
obligation being settled and b) any payments made by the
Group in connection with the settlement. It is recognised
when the settlement occurs.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

(®)

Employee benefits (Continued)

Defined benefit plans (Continued)

Remeasurements arising from defined benefit retirement
plans are recognised in other comprehensive income and
are reflected in equity immediately. Remeasurements
comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan
assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the
net defined benefit liability (asset)) and any change in the
effect of the asset ceiling (excluding amounts included in net
interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset)).

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when
the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits and when the Group recognises restructuring costs
involving the payment of termination benefits.

Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled transactions

The Group’s employees, including directors, receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payment
transactions, whereby the employees rendered services in
exchange for shares or rights over shares. The cost of such
transactions with employees is measured by reference to
the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date.
The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as a staff cost with a corresponding increase in
a share-based payment reserve within equity. The fair value
is determined using the binomial model taking into account
the terms and conditions of the transactions, other than
conditions linked to the price of shares of the Company.
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3.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

®

Share-based payment transactions (Continued)

Equity-settled transactions (Continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the
year(s) in which the vesting conditions are to be fulfilled,
ending on the date on which the relevant employees
become fully entitled to the award ("“vesting date”). During
the vesting period, the number of share options that is
expected to vest ultimately is reviewed. Any adjustment to
the cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is charged/
credited to profit or loss for the year of the review, with a
corresponding adjustment to the reserve within equity.

When the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share-based payment reserve
will be transferred to share premium account. When the
share options are forfeited after the vesting date or are
still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share-based payment reserve will be
transferred to retained profits.

Share-based payment transactions in which the Company
grants share options to subsidiaries’ employees are
accounted for as an increase in value of interest in
subsidiaries in the Company’s statement of financial position
which is eliminated on consolidation, with a corresponding
credit to the share-based payment reserve within equity.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u)

Taxation

The charge for current income tax is based on the results
for the year as adjusted for items that are non-assessable
or disallowed. It is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the financial statements. However, any
deferred tax arises from initial recognition of goodwill; or
other asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss is not
recognised.

The deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is recovered or the liability is settled, based on tax
rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, tax losses and
credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising
on interest in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures,
except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences is controlled by the Group and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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3. FEEHBXRE) 3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(v) HFEBAL (v) Related parties
Al AT ABEKE B A B A related party is a person or entity that is related to the
EIAKERE © Group:
(@) fMEBIATAL BIEZAL (@) A person or a close member of that person’s family is
HE AT RN R E related to the Group if that person:
B AR
(i) sk HE SR (i)  Has control or joint control over the Group;
£E
(il HAEBBEEARY (i) Has significant influence over the Group; or
25
(i) AEXRNAZEFEE (iii) Is a member of the key management personnel
BEKE - of the Group.
(b) fHFFE THEMEE - BD (b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
BRI EEHE B following conditions applies:
() ZEREAXNEBE (i) The entity and the Group are members of the
A—%SEz2KERQ same group (which means that each parent,
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NGNS others).
BRI EEE
AN
JH
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ERRIZEEET a member).
KB AR ZEE R
Al EERE) -
(i) MEEEHER— (i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
F=TZEEMRE - party.
vy ERAE=ZE® (iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
ZEERE MS and the other entity is an associate of the third
—ERARRE=F entity.
B zEE NG -
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(v) Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies: (Continued)

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group. If the Group is
itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are
also related to the Group.

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the Group
and include:

(@)  that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(b)  children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;
and

(c)  dependants of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.

In the definition of a related party, an associate includes
subsidiaries of the associate and a joint venture includes
subsidiaries of the joint venture.
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3.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(w) Segment reporting

(x)

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The Company’s executive directors, who
are responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, have been
identified as the chief operating decision-makers that make
strategic decisions.

Future changes in HKFRSs

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements,
the HKICPA has issued the following new/revised HKFRSs
that are not yet effective for the current year, which the
Group has not early adopted.

etz ERAT TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(x)

Future changes in HKFRSs (Continued)

Amendments to Defined Benefit Plans -
HKAS 19 (2011) Employee Contributions "
Various HKFRSs Annual Improvements Project -
20102012 Cycle
Various HKFRSs Annual Improvements Project -
2011-2013 Cycle
Amendments to HKAS Clarffication of Acceptable Method's
16 and HKAS 38 of Depreciation and
Amortisation !
Amendments to Disclosure Initiative ©/
HKAS1
Amendments to HKAS Agriculture: Bearer Plants P/
16 and HKAS 41
Amendments to HKAS Equity Method in Separate
27 (2011) Financial Statements &/
Amendments to HKAS Sale or Contribution of Assets
28(2011) and between an Investor and its
HKFRS 10 Associate or Joint Venture ©/
Amendments to Accounting for Acquisitions
HKFRS 11 of Interests in Joint Operations !
Amendments to Investment Entities: Applying
HKFRS10, HKFRS12 the Consolidation Exception®
and HKAS 28
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(x)

Future changes in HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 14 Reqgulatory Deferral Accounts ©!
Various HKFRSs Annual Improvements Project
-2012-2014 Cycle ¥
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers !
HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments

[

2]

3]

14]

5]

6]

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2014, with limited exceptions

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016, with limited exceptions

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2017
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018

The directors are in the process of assessing the possible

impact of the future adoption of these new / revised HKFRSs

and amendments, but are not yet in a position to reasonably

estimate their impact on the Group’s consolidated financial

statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014

ADOPTION OF NEW/REVISED HKFRSs

The HKICPA has issued a number of new/revised HKFRSs that are
first effective for the current accounting period of the Group and
the Company. Of these, the changes in accounting policy relevant
to the Group's financial statements are as follows:

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27:
Investment Entities

The amendments provide consolidation relief to those parents
which qualify to be an investment entity as defined in the
amended HKFRS 10. Investment entities are required to measure
particular subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss. The
amendments also set out the relevant disclosure requirements for
investment entities. These amendments do not have an impact on
these financial statements as the Company does not qualify to be
an investment entity.

Amendments to HKAS 36: Recoverable amount disclosures
for non-financial assets

The amendments to HKAS 36 modify the disclosure requirements
for impaired non-financial assets. Among them, additional
information is required to be disclosed when the recoverable
amount of assets is based on fair value less costs of disposal. The
application of the amendments does not have an impact on the
amount recognised.

HK(IFRIC) 21: Levies

The interpretation addresses how and when an entity should
account for liabilities to pay levies imposed by governments, other
than income taxes. The application of this interpretation does not
have any material impact on the amounts recognised.
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AediziERAT TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

Estimates and assumptions concerning the future and judgements

are made by the management in the preparation of the financial

statements. They affect the application of the Group’s accounting

policies, reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and

expenses, and disclosures made. They are assessed on an on-

going basis and are based on experience and relevant factors,

including expectations of future events that are believed to be

reasonable under the circumstances. Where appropriate, revisions

to accounting estimates are recognised in the period of revision

and future periods, in case the revision also affects future periods.

(i)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Useful lives and impairment of property, plant and
equipment and prepaid lease payments

The directors review the residual value, useful lives and
depreciation/amortisation method of property, plant and
equipment and prepaid lease payments at the end of each
reporting period, through careful consideration with regards
to expected usage, wear-and-tear and potential technical
obsolescence to usage of the assets.

In determining whether an asset is impaired or the event
previously causing the impairment no longer exists, the
directors have to assess whether an event has occurred that
may affect the asset value or such event affecting the asset
value has not been in existence. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amounts of the asset would be determined
by reference to value in use and fair value less costs to sell.
Value in use is determined using the discounted cash flow
method. Owing to inherent risk associated with estimations
in the timing and magnitude of the future cash flows and
fair value less costs to sell, the estimated recoverable amount
of the asset may be different from its actual recoverable
amount and profit or loss could be affected by accuracy of
the estimations.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(Continued)

0]

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Deferred tax assets

As at the end of the reporting period, deferred tax asset
of US$4,000,000 (2013: US$Nil). in relation to unused tax
losses has been recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position. The recognition of the deferred tax asset
mainly depends on whether sufficient profits or taxable
temporary differences will be available in the future. In cases
where the actual future profits generated are different from
the original estimate, a material recognition or reversal of
deferred tax assets may arise, after taking into account
the utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses, which
would be recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
such estimate is changed.

Deferred tax liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities have not been provided for the
withholding tax that would be payable on the undistributed
earnings of certain entities of the Group in the PRC as
those earnings are not expected to be distributable in the
foreseeable future. Details of deferred tax liabilities are
disclosed in note 34 to the financial statements.

6. TURNOVER

The Group's turnover represents revenue arising from the sale of

goods at invoiced value to customers, net of returns, discounts
and Value Added Tax.
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AediziERAT TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

The Company’s executive directors have been identified as
the chief operating decision-maker of the Group. The Group
has identified its operating segments and prepared segment
information based on the regular internal financial information
reported to the Company's executive directors for their decisions
about resources allocation to the Group’s business components
and review of these components’ performance. The Company’s
executive directors consider the business principally from a product
perspective as over 99% of the Group’s sales and business are
conducted in the PRC. Business reportable operating segments
identified are instant noodles, beverages, instant food and others.
The segment of others includes investment holding, logistics and
supportive functions.

For the purposes of assessing the performance of the operating
segments and allocating resources between segments, the
executive directors assess the performance of reportable segments
based on the net profit for the year and the profit (loss) before
taxation, share of results of associates and joint ventures and
unallocated expenses, net, which is consistent with that in the
financial statements.

Segment assets include all assets with the exception of interest
in associates and joint ventures and unallocated assets which
includes available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss. Segment liabilities include all
liabilities with the exception of employee benefit obligations.

Inter-segment sales are priced at cost plus profit margin. The
accounting policies of the reporting segments are the same as the
Group's accounting policies as described in note 3 to the financial
statements.

The geographical location of the Group’s customers is based on
the location at which the goods are delivered. Over 99% of the
revenues from external customers of the Group are attributable
to customers located in the PRC, the place of domicile of the
Group's operating entities. Meanwhile, over 99% of the Group's
non-current assets other than available-for-sale financial assets are
located in the PRC.
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7. DEERE) 7.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

No revenue from a single external customer amounted to 10% or
more of the Group’s revenue.

The segment information for the years ended 31 December 2014

EERAT - and 2013 is as follows:
EB oM Business segment analysis
2014
ARk
HEE Inter-
Instant RE  HERE Hfth  segment &it
noodles Beverages Instantfood  Others elimination Total
FET = FET FET T T
US$'000  USS000  USS000  USS000  USS000  USS000
EXH Turnover
IREF Wz Revenue from external customers 4,137,685 5800419 178596 121,282 — 10,237,982
Db Wz Inter-segment revenue 51 586 133 90,287  (91,057) -
NEEERE Segment revenue 4,137,736 5,801,005 178,729 211,569 (91,057) 10,237,982
PBELE(CHRABFER) Segment result after finance costs 484,203 220,538 (7,540)  (8,221)  (2.118) 686,862
EEEBENAR Share of results of associates
NGBS and joint ventures — 17930  (10,661) — — 7,269
AP ZFEZH Unallocated expenses, net — — — (562) - (562)
BB AER (B8) Profit (loss) before taxation 484,203 238,468  (18201)  (8783)  (2,118) 693,569
IR Taxation (123,815) (84,516) 752 (1,241) —  (208,820)
KEE 2R (FB) Profit (loss) for the year 360,388 153,952 (17,4490  (10,024)  (2,118) (484,749)
£E Assets
NEE Segment assets 3,446,274 5227348 160,291 1,340,036 (1,155,422) 9,018,527
BanmER Interest in associates — 30,646 1,327 — - 31,973
RENAER Interest in joint ventures - 58,346 15,807 - - 74,153
AAMEE Unallocated assets 81,404
BEE Total assets 9,206,057
af Liabilities
AEEE Segment liabilities 1,041,013 3,311,438 62,817 1,766,568 (1,100,145) 5,081,691
KOEARE Unallocated liabilities 28,702
‘e Total liabilities 5,110,393
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7. PIERGE) 7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
ERIBIW(E) Business segment analysis (Continued)
2014
A
HESE Inter-
Instant R AERE Hffh  segment Bt
noodles Beverages Instantfood  Others elimination Total
FET  TEnL  TET  FEr TErL TER
USS000  US$000  USS000  USS000  USS000  USS'000
HiER Other information
HEREH Depreciation and amortisation 105,257 339,819 9,134 9,283 — 463493
BRRR Capital expenditures 340,390 591,845 4211 543773 — 1,480,219
M B WA Interest income 59,599 4,833 384 10,747  (20,69) 54,867
MEZ Interest expenses 37 33,886 — 33924 (20,696) 47,151
ANRIHEE Termination benefits — 73,017 — — — 73,017

e -
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7. DEHERE) 7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
ERSBAW(E) Business segment analysis (Continued)
2013
MEb A
HEE Inter-
Instant Bm TERM Hft segment SR
noodles  Beverages Instant food Others  elimination Total

TXT XL FET TET TET TEAL
Us§000  US$000  USS000  USS000  USS000  US$000

L Turnover

INRE Pl Revenue from external customers 4332,159 6,267,617 202,518 138,702 — 10,940,996
DR 2 Mg Inter-segment revenue 51 855 301 100,492 (101,699) —
DEHLER Segment revenue 4332,210 6268472 202,819 239,194  (101,699) 10,940,996

PBEE(CMRABFER) Segment result after finance costs 490965 198,526 (11,043 31,713 (3,220) 706,941

[N Share of results of associates

RELNREE and joint ventures — 19,266 (3.217) — - 16,049
BR%i AR A (FR) Profit (loss) before taxation 490965 217,792 (142600 31,713 (3,220) 722,990
HE Taxation (154,184)  (62,912) 231 (11,814) —  (228,679)
KEE 2R (FB) Profit (loss) for the year 336,781 154,880  (14,029) 19,899 (3220) 494,311
BE Assets
PHEE Segment assets 3,420,533 5075114 182,198 839,614 (1,232,099) 8,285,360
BENRER Interest in associates — 25,628 3,422 — - 29,050
BRENTER Interest in joint ventures — 57883 22393 — — 80276
AOBEE Unallocated assets 29,635
BEE Total assets 8,424,321
8 Liabilities
PHBE Segment liabilities 1,290,983 3,179,545 77,143 1,106,220 (1,184,143) 4,469,748
*OREE Unallocated liabilities 28,186

BEE Total liabilities 4,497,934
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7. PIERGE) 7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
ERSBAW(E) Business segment analysis (Continued)
2013
AR 8
HEf Inter-
Instant fm  HERm Hift  segment CH
noodles  Beverages Instant food Others  elimination Total
FET  FET  FEr FEr TEr FEx
Uss000  US$000  USS000  US$000  US$000  US$000
HiER Other information
e R Depreciation and amortisation 93,054 342,116 7,880 9,288 — 452338
BRRR Capital expenditures 21364 631213 7714 35799 — 896,090
WEEE Impairment losses 14200 35,602 — — — 49802
o] R B 1R Reversal of impairment losses 6,381 — — — — 6,381
FSMA Interest income 53,984 6,835 98 10015 (20275 51527
FEZH Interest expenses 9 29446 — 28171 (20275) 37351

1 30 AatzRARAT TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP. —
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8. HfttzmRkHEMFERA 8. OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET INCOME
2014 2013
FXT FET
Us$000 Us$°000
Ht gz Other revenue
FEWA Interest income 54,867 51,527
& T I A Dividend income — 747
54,867 52,274
Hitn R A Other net income
PTHESMTAZAREZSE Change in fair values of derivative
financial instruments 6,579 12,181
H AT EER & Technical consultancy fee 16,863 —
b 5 W an H 2R Exchange gains, net — 18,812
S B i 2 MR Gain on sales of scrapped materials 29,911 31,057
HENHEEeREE Gain on disposal of available-for-sale
Z W financial assets — 14,397
B ED Government grants 50,079 47,814
HAh, Others 51,102 39,150
154,534 163,411
209,401 215,685
9. BBAEF 9.  PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
2014 2013
FEZm FET
LANBR (FFA) RHIEE % This is stated after charging (crediting): US$°000 US$'000
BKkEHR Finance costs
AR5 FNBEERE ZIRIT  Interest on bank and other borrowings
REMBERZFEXZ T wholly repayable within five years 48,306 39,545
B FIEHEAR(EFIA Less: Borrowing costs capitalised into property,
M - Hes KRR plant and equipment at weighted average
(In#EFHE AR xR capitalisation rate of 2.03% (2013: 2.08%)
%52.03% (2013:2.08%)) (1,155) (2,194)
47,151 37,351
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9. BRBANER(E) 9.  PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued)
2014 2013
FET FEIT
KB (GEA)TFIIEB % - Thisis stated after charging (crediting): Uss’000 US$°000
Hirg B Other items
BIA(BIEEEMSE) ©  Staff costs (including directors’ remuneration):

& KR Salaries and wages 947,661 947,910

BRI IEHE Termination benefits 73,017 —

NG RO Equity-settled share-based

2 IR payment expenses 11,837 11,930

RIRER Pension costs:

REMNETE Defined contribution plans 108,825 108,520
REBAMGE Defined benefit plans 4,152 3,592
ZERI S Auditor's remuneration:

EER Audit fee 1,460 1,471
EERFERA Cost of inventories* 7,119,944 7,630,997
e Depreciation 454,136 444,303
M 5 18 2K F 5 Exchange loss, net 15,742 —
o 30 FH 200k (B 2 3 5 Amortisation of prepaid lease payments 8,604 7,282
A B Amortisation of intangible asset

(BEBERDHAAR) (included in distribution costs) 753 753
BEAnBEYERRE Change in fair value of financial assets

BalRRENE/mEE at fair value through profit or loss

Z RN EEE (288) (265)
REEYLEMELD Minimum lease payments in respect

HIEAE K of operating lease charges for premises 72,710 72,035
HEWEE HWEKRERE L Loss (Gain) on disposal of property, plant

B5 18 (Y ) and equipment 3,777 (5,200)
HERARETIRRE Loss (Gain) on disposal of financial assets at

EanBRRENSREE fair value through profit or loss

ZEE () 213 (437)
' EEGHEAARTE%768282,000 *  Cost of inventories includes US$768,282,000 (2013:

ZE7C(2013 : 744,105,000 T ) £2 US$744,105,000) relating to staff costs, depreciation, amortisation
BIHR I8 TR B of prepaid lease payments and operating lease charges of premises,
R RS SB A B B RIS which amount is also included in the respective total amounts
P EI B EE LARRETH R A 4 disclosed separately above

& o
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10. EENEREEMS 10. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
EMOLUMENTS
NAGEEE W RER 2 ME B%E The aggregate amounts of emoluments received or receivable by
T the Company's directors are as follows:
2014
ek EIkRE
Hitie WROXA  FEH
Salaries 4 ZHE  Retirement
ESH#E  andother Discretionary N5t Share-based scheme )
Directors' fees  emoluments bonuses  Sub-total  payments contribution Total

&4 £ £ &4 (£ AL i
Ussooo  Ussoop  USSDo0  USSO0  USS00  USSOR0  USSO0D

#Es: Evecutive directors:
HEN Wei Ing-Chou 200 1,016 395 1,611 1,591 3 3,205
i Junichiro lda 80 16 - % - - %
BER Ryo Yoshizawa 50 8 - 58 - - 58
R5E Wu Chung-Yi 50 - - 50 - - 50
MER Wel Ying-Chiao 50 8 - 58 - - 58
REgE Teruo Nagano 50 8 - 58 - - 58
BUIHTES Independent non-executive directors:
G Hsu Shin-Chun 50 8 - 58 - - 58
TR Lee Tiong-Hock 50 4 - 54 - - 54
RAR Hiromu Fukada 50 8 - 58 - - 58
630 1,076 395 2,101 1,591 3 3,695
201542 B4H 2 fE X % &+ & Mr. Wei Ying-Chiao resigned and Mr. Wei Hong-Ming was
T EEEEZLEEZEARD appointed as an executive director of the Company on 4 February
AZHITES - 2015.

N 20154E3 A 8 BB = 5 A Bttt o Mr. Ryo Yoshizawa deceased on 8 March 2015.
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10. EEREHEEMES(Z) 10. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
2013

ek RirRRE

Hfthe WRARAE

Salaries Tt ZFE  Retirement
E5@%  andother  Discretionary /NG Share-based scheme )
Directors' fees  emoluments bonuses Sub-total payments  contribution Total

AT TET TEI AT AT TEI TET
UsSoo0 UssO0 UsSoo0 ussoo0  ussoon UsSoop USSOnD

#Es: Erecutive directors:
EN Wei Ing-Chou 200 1,024 229 1453 2,748 1 4202
FE% Takeshi lda 53 8 - 61 - - 61
il Junichiro lda 55 16 - I - - I
HER Ryo Yoshizawa 50 20 - 70 - - 70
REE Wu Chung-Yi 50 12 - ) - - )
HER Wei Ying-Chizo 50 12 - ) - - )
RHgt Teruo Nagano 13 4 - 17 - - 17
BUTES Independent non-executive directors:
G Hsu Shin-Chun 50 12 - 62 - - 62
RE Lee Tiong-Hock 50 8 - 58 - - 58
RAR Hiromu Fukada 50 12 - 6 - - 6
621 1,128 229 1978 2,748 1 41
2014 % 2013412 A31 B IL4F No directors have waived emoluments in respect of the years
EWEEEHREERS - ended 31 December 2014 and 2013.
REBLEAHFEEINALRER No emoluments have been paid by the Group to the directors
MBS EEE A RNEFE N as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
RS E AT E AR ELEE o compensation for loss of office.
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10. EEREREEMS(Z) 10. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
REBESUNERHALTBEEIM The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in
(2013F : 1) EE - EMeF18 the Group for the year include one director (2073: one) whose
HREXRAMAT - HBl&B3E emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above and four
B % R 3% T 7E38(b) o H #R 4L individuals whose emoluments are included in note 38(b) to the
(20134 : 41z ) AT 2B & =15 m financial statements. Details of the emoluments of the remaining
T four individuals (2013 four) are as follows:
2014 2013
FET FET
Uss$’000 Us$000
Ho R HEAMME Salaries and other emoluments 3,886 2,417
VARR 5 % A~ 2 5k IR Share-based payments 2,014 1,196
TEAT Discretionary bonuses 643 419
RIRRFE ST EIHERK Retirement scheme contribution 4 8
6,547 4,040
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10. EENERESHE(Z)

XN ALREEH AL ZHE A5 0

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

The emoluments were paid to the four highest paid individuals as

136

N ——

T
EEAH
Number of individuals

< 48 B Emoluments band 2014 2013
769,231 XL E US$769,231 to US$833,333

833,333% T (HK$6,000,001 to HK$6,500,000)

(6,000,001 87T

%6,500,000/87T) — 1
897,437 L& US$897,437 to US$961,538

961,538 T (HK$7,000,001 to HK$7,500,000)

(7,000,001 87T

27,500,000 7T) — 1
1,025,642 X LE US$1,025,642 to US$ 1,089,744

1,089,744 % T (HK$8,000,001 to HK$8,500,000)

(8,000,001 87T

%8,500,000/87T) 1 1
1,282,051 = TE US$1,282,051 to US$1,346,154

1,346,154 % 7T (HK$10,000,001 to HK$10,500,000)

(10,000,001 87T

% 10,500,000 % 7T ) — 1
1,410,257 £ TE US$1,410,257 to US$1,474,359

1,474,359 3% T (HK$11,000,001 to HK$11,500,000)

(11,000,001 87T

2% 11,500,000 7T) 1 —
1,794,872 FLE US$1,794,872 to US$ 1,858,974

1,858,974 % T (HK$14,000,001 to HK$14,500,000)

(14,000,001 87T

% 14,500,000 % 7T) 1 —
2,179,487 L& US$2,179,487 to US$2,243,590

2,243,590 % ¢ (HK$17,000,001 to HK$17,500,000)

(17,000,001 87T

% 17,500,000 % 7T ) 1 —

4 4

etz ERAT TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.
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11. #E 11. TAXATION
2014 2013
FET FET
Us$000 Us$'000
AEERIE— Current tax — PRC Enterprise income tax
PR EMRER
REE Current year 179,859 198,842
ART S [ %51 Bt Over provision in prior year (2,132) (6,504)
177,727 192,338
EEHRIE Deferred taxation
EAREEZ Origination and reversal of temporary
Ty = ERER differences, net 4,933 8,536
R I%EE Effect of tax losses recognised (4,000) —
RAREERTE 2 Effect of withholding tax on the distributable
iy ENEIEIR SN earnings of the Group's PRC
B2 B (M5t 34) subsidiaries (note 34) 30,160 27,805
31,093 36,341
REEFIABER Total tax charge for the year 208,820 228,679

REREBY THARARAEEZ
WA B AEAAITEIA -

HRAERZ AFREBE2014F R
2013 F A I & A o] B 74 F15 B =R
MFE - Bt R ABEASFEHE
R o

The Cayman Islands levies no tax on the income of the Company
and the Group.

Hong Kong Profits Tax has not been provided as the Group’s
entities had no assessable profits subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax
for the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013.
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BE (&)

R KREZ W E AR BB HE R
XS HEEME B25%(2013
F:25%) RIBFHE - HEB
FHBRH BB S MK
FORANE fETE S AR BB A @
U Bk 5% R RB B9 38 &N (B #6201 1]58
%)+ LR HR B K BE P ED i [ A B
REBBEENIIERELFE - A&
FEEEETERAGREZKA
#170% LA £ &) - £20114F £2020
FEE ML 15% OF R
Frefie- Bt AEBERFAH[E
ZHEBRATER15%(2013F -
15%) °

AN E 2 BB A& F R AN 4F S i 1E
HERMT

11.

11.

TAXATION (Continued)

The applicable PRC Enterprise income tax for the PRC subsidiaries
is at the statutory rate of 25% (2013: 25%). According to the Tax
Relief Notice (Cai Shui [2011] no. 58) on the Grand Development
of Western Region jointly issued by the Ministry of Finance, the
State Administration of Taxation and China Customs, foreign
investment enterprises located in the western region of the
PRC with principal revenue of over 70% generated from the
encouraged business activities are entitled to an income tax rate
of 15% for 10 years from 1 January 2011 to 31 December 2020.
Accordingly, certain subsidiaries located in the Western Region are
entitled to an income tax rate of 15% (20713:15%).

The Group's profit before taxation is reconciled to the tax expense
for the year as follows:

BEBEYHE Reconciliation of tax expense
2014 2013
FET FETT
us$’000 Us$000
R A B & A Profit before taxation 693,569 722,990
TR ENEERE 25% Income tax at statutory tax rate of 25%

ZRIA(20134F : 25%) in the PRC (2013:25%) 173,392 180,748
JEIEEG 2 A & ARIHELE  Share of results of associates and joint ventures (1,853) (4,012)
GIE kb2 Non-deductible expenses 15,205 19,684
R FRHBA Tax exempt revenue (512) (6,065)
RIER AR Unrecognised tax losses 26,312 23,084
RERERER Unrecognised temporary differences (5.809) 5,512
BB AR FERFLIEE R Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses (12,103) (13,008)
BAEBPNHBEZKHBAR Effect of withholding tax on

RIS BN 2 TEERT the distributable profits

(K1at34) of the Group's PRC subsidiaries (note 34) 30,160 27,805
KA KF R F Effect of tax relief on PRC's

M A Rl 2 FEUUR subsidiaries in Western Region (7,199) (7,273)
VABTE B %5t BB Over provision in prior years (2,132) (6,504)
Ht Others (6,641) 8,708
REFRIA Tax expense for the year 208,820 228,679

li@@ﬁﬂ%%r;ﬁﬁﬂ TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) Howmehr_
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&% SR B (L4 & a1 B HEEs1E 34,837,000
X TT(20134F : 33,049,000 7 ) & 7

12.

HE2014F 128318 1LFE
For the year ended 31 December 2014

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the Company
includes a loss of US$34,837,000 (2013: US$33,049,000) which

KRR ZERE AELERE © has been dealt with in the financial statements of the Company.
Lt 2EEARNTAREE % M2 Reconciliation of the above amount to the Company’s profit for
BT ¢ the year:
2014 2013
FET FET
Us$000 Us$'000
ERAARRE NEE Amount of consolidated loss attributable
R R E(EARE to owners dealt with in
8 the Company’s financial statements (34,837) (33,049)
F—BIEREFEEEF 2 E(E  Dividends from subsidiaries attributable to
B AR EIE R the profits of the previous financial years,
FNERE RIRE approved and paid during the year 232,545 237,352
NEFZRRE =T Company's profit for the year 197,708 204,303
13. RE 13. DIVIDENDS
(@) ARTBERAEEZES K (@) Dividends payable to owners of the Company attributable to
8 the year:
2014 2013
FET FETT
Us$000 Us$°000
HEE %R 2 AREARE  Final dividend proposed after the end of
A% BT 3.57 &1L the reporting period of US3.57 cents
(2013 4F : #Zf% (2013: US3.65 cents) per ordinary share
B 3.65 1) 200,054 204,269

M2015E3 238 ) & & -

At meeting held on 23 March 2015, the directors recommended

EEEARERBREERE
B 3.57 XAl - tEEFE AR
ERPBIRAR S AR R E
RE -

the payment of final dividend of US3.57 cents per ordinary share.
The proposed final dividend has not been recognised as dividend
payables in the statement of financial position.
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13. RE(#E) 13. DIVIDENDS (Continued)

(b) MAFEAERIKEZER L (b) Dividends payable to owners of the Company attributable
—BHRFEE FARRQRIREZ & to the previous financial year, approved and paid during the
FRE year:

2014 2013
FEx FETT
Us$’000 Us$000
AR R HE A R Final dividend in respect of the previous
IR AR 2 B A financial year, approved and paid during
B EE RS the year, of US3.65 cents
REREEKR (2013: US3.22 cents) per ordinary share
3.65 11l
(2013 4F : R
BAAR3.22 1) 204,324 180,123
14. 8 &F 14. EARNINGS PER SHARE

LA &5 IR 5 AN 5% 1) 2 6 A% 58 i The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share is as

Mz ateE follows:

(a) BRERHR (a) Basic earnings per share

2014 2013
AARPREFEAFEM  Profit attributable to ordinary
A (F3ETT) equity shareholders (US$'000) 400,482 408,544
BE{TL MR 2 M  Weighted average number of
PR SR (%) ordinary shares ('000) 5,599,873 5,594,388
FREEAHE R (ZEAL)  Basic earnings per share (US cents) 7.15 7.30

1 40 *@gﬁﬁ—ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂ TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP. ——
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14. BREHN(E) 14. EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)
(b) ERBFEF (b) Diluted earnings per share
2014 2013
RNABIREARFE  Profit attributable to ordinary
w A (F3ETT) equity shareholders (US$'000) 400,482 408,544
BB R IR F 15 Weighted average number of ordinary
(#%)(FK) shares (diluted) (“000)
BETE@R 2N Weighted average number of ordinary shares
T8 5,599,873 5,594,388
PAUNGIEE g B Effect of the Company's share option scheme
2 15,108 17,490
BT E SRS Weighted average number of ordinary
i M 2 AR shares for the purpose of calculating
NiETF 8 diluted earnings per share 5,614,981 5,611,878
FREEE R R (21L)  Diluted earnings per share (US cents) 7.13 7.28
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15. 1% - BBEXE 15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(a) #*£H (@) Group
(W) k& B
KAKE  (Wati) kil &L
T BF  Machiney Hecical ~ #BRE  AELR
(Note )) (Note i) and  appliances  Miscellaneous  Construction aar
Freehold land Building  equipment and equipment  equipment in progress Total

TET FET TAT TET i TET TET
Ussooo  Ussono UsSop usSooo UssOn usSo0 USSTOmD

FEEHE-HZE  Recondliation of carrying amount
2013512318 - year ended 31 December 2013

5E
RET] At beginning of year - 919553 2,756,197 17,003 27,19 1031789 5,001,736
TE Additions 17,485 41271 212,509 5,161 85,817 49199 854,235
IR Transfer upon completion — 337064 633,250 4681 28029 (1,003,024) -
REER Impairment loss - - (48.977) (825) - - (49,802)
EREESE  Reversal of impairment loss - - 6,381 - - - 6,381
ij:5 Disposals - 2,23 4210 (1,264) (4.928) - (12,625)
i Depreciation = (58,284) 272,219) (4,925) (108,875) — (444.303)
EAEE Exchange differences = 24434 65,451 352 9,435 29,806 129,478
REER At end of the reporting period 17485 1261815 3348382 20,183 286,672 550563 5:485,100

1 42 *@gﬁﬁ—ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂ TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP. ——
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15. W% BBELREE) 15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)
(@) X%BE(E) (@) Group (Continued)
(i) BE
KAXR (Hietii) RRE  RERR
4 BT Machinery  Electical ~ ABIR ait
(Note j) (Note ij) and  appliances Miscellaneous  Construction
Freehold land Building  equipment and equipment  equipment in progress Total

£ fin £ fin £ £ iz
Ussooo  Ussono Ussono ussno  usseo Usse UsSD

BAEHR-EZ  Reconciiation of canrying amount -
20145128318 year ended 31 December 2014

13:3:4
RET] Atbeginning of year 17485 1261815 3,348,382 20,183 286,672 550563 5,485,100
AE Additons - B9 158,157 3590 91,521 T44083 1,020,642
ERER Transfer upon completion - 102,480 3123713 1278 24,558 (440,689) -
ik Disposals - (10907) (1,836) (483) (6312) - (19,498)
HE-FINBAF  Disposal of a subsiciary - (19921) (30,529) (231) (1,253) - (51,940)
i Depreciation - (69431)  (74814) (5007 (104,79) - (454,136)
ERER Exchange differences (1,019) (27,585) (67,905) @n) (9,145) (1433)  (120263)
HERA At end of the reporting period 16466 1259742 3443828 18997 281,07 839625 5859905

R20UE1518  At1January 2014

FE Cost 17,485 1,676,273 5,290,804 55,594 807,457 550,563 8,398,176
SHHTERMEEBE Acumulated depreciation

and impairment losses - (414458)  (1942422) (35,411) (520,785) - (2913,076)
BEFE Net carrying amount 17,485 1,261,815 3,348,382 20,183 286,672 550,563 5,485,100

R20145124318 At31December 2014

FE Cost 16,466 1,730,692 5,581,461 55,380 867,250 839,625 9,090,874
ZHENAESE  Acumulated depreciation
and impairment losses - (470950)  (2,137,633) (36,383) (586,003) - (3230969

BAFE Net carrying amount 16,466 1,259,742 3,443,828 18,997 8147 839,625 5,859,905
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15. Y% BBRRREE) 15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)
(@) XKBE(E) (@) Group (Continued)

Hiat - Notes :

() LIRS RBBAINEI K (i)  The land represents the freehold land located outside Hong
AFERE L Kong.

(il MNEER XEBETHEE (i) At the end of the reporting period, the building ownership
NWEEHAEFRNIEER certificates of the Group's certain premises with
FEEFRET L HAREM aggregate net carrying amount of US$10,622,000 (2013:
HARES  RENFEARES US$15,925,000) have not been obtained due to application
10,622,000 JT(2013 4 - for the changes of granted land use purpose is still in process.
15,925,000 7T ) - & E R In the opinion of directors, the Group validly occupies and
B AEBAKRERNLRE uses these buildings.

FRB LR LY -

(b) AT (b) Company
2014 2013
H& e
E &L
Machinery — HERfE Machinery — BBERE
and Miscellaneous At and  Miscellaneous ait
equipment  equipment Total  equipment  equipment Total

£ £ FAT TEL XL TEL
Ussooo - USs0D  USSOOD  USSO0D  USSOOD LSS0

FREEHE Reconciliation of carrying amount

RED] At beginning of the year 25 103 128 4 5 n
hE Additions - 7 7 - 9% 9%
if: Disposals B) - @3 (19 (13) (32
il Depreciation ®) (20 (28) ) B) ()
EXER Exchange differences (1) ) () (1) _ i
REER Atend of the reporting period 13 88 101 5 103 128
R128318 At 31 December

RfE Cost 631 142 m 806 137 %3
ESEiE Accumulated depreciation (619) (53) (672) (781) (34) (815)
FEEE Net carrying amount 12 89 101 25 103 128

1 44 *@gﬁﬂ—ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂ TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP. ——
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16. TtFHELNRE 16. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS
TR A FE BN P HIER 2 H Prepaid lease payments represent cost paid for medium-term
HAMH & T A 7S o 32 Ak AN iR & 88 leasehold land in the PRC. The cost is amortised over the leasehold
B MEER12 A M fE &S period. The amount to be amortised within twelve months after
4 %8 /18,453,000 JL(2013 % - the end of the reporting period amounted to US$18,453,000
7,538,000 ;) 2 51 A FEf~+ IE K (2013: US$7,538,000) and is included in prepayments and other
E e GRIE o receivables.
17. BFEE 17. INTANGIBLE ASSET
rEH
Group
R
Concession right
2014 2013
FET FET
Us$’000 Us$’000
IREME S AR Reconciliation of carrying amount
REH At beginning of the year 28,058 28,811
B Amortisation (753) (753)
R&EER At end of the reporting period 27,305 28,058
REER At end of the reporting period
BXA Cost 29,377 29,377
RETHEESE Accumulated amortisation (2,072) (1,319)
27,305 28,058

EEERER2012F3A31H
XBEHRMEE CFTEER-
R EER TASE NS - &
m BE DEKEEBEWER
m([CSD) REFLEREER - UKk
B R B K B Y E 7 AR i 4 R iR
o EEERREASIAZA39F
H - REGEFTIREE -

BREERBRAEAGTEL R
BIRFRHRFETRERNR

The intangible asset represents a concession right acquired as a
result of a business combination taken place on 31 March 2012.
The concession right granted to the Group for manufacturing,
bottling, packaging, distributing and selling PepsiCo’s carbonated
soft drink (“CSD"”) and Gatorade branded products on a royalty
free basis under a specific trademark in the Mainland China is
amortised on the straight-line basis over the contract period of
approximately 39 years.

Intangible asset is measured using cost model and is tested for
impairment where an indicator of impairment appears.




BI#$R R MI5F Notes to the Financial Statements

146

o

HE2014F 128318 1LFE
For the year ended 31 December 2014

18. MIBARIER INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES
P NN
Company

2014 2013

FETT FETL

Uss’000 Us$'000

JE M - IRRESIBE  Unlisted shares, at cost 345,588 345,588
BN AR E 218 Contribution to a subsidiary 21,400 16,216
EEE Impairment losses (33,065) (33,065)
333,923 328,739

)= NCIE ] Amounts due from subsidiaries 935,853 646,709
BB 18 Impairment losses (3,218) (3,218)
932,635 643,491
AN ENGIE ] Amounts due to subsidiaries (77.,265) (43,766)
1,189,293 928,464

REEHR - BIRZEHME AR
WEZIENE % A5,184,0003E T
(20134 : 2,365,000 7T ) » it H}
BARRKREZEMREARARARET
MEARIEEUEREERMD N
LRGN AMZMBARIRZER
TEEEBRANARNBRATAER
ZBRT o

RREBHHIB R RS REEAR
HuE &5 - mEBEERIINZ
B /8 A &) 4 = BR T {8.36,613,000 3
TCIN(2013 % : 36,613,000 7T ) (R
BEIERT) °

BRI DB R BN AFESRGHE
BEYEATREREELRSR &
BEEEERINRZMEARKREE
5,201,000 3 JT(2013 4 © 5,697,000
2T ) 2 M GRIERCREESER)
RER I RS REEIE (2013 F -
i£#49,690,000% ) °

etz ERAT TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

During the reporting period, contribution to a subsidiary of
US$5,184,000 (2013: US$2,365,000) was recognised which
represented the cost of equity-settled share-based payment
transaction in which the Company grants its share options to
a subsidiary’s employees where the subsidiary does not have
an obligation to settle the services received through using the
Company'’s equity instruments.

Impairment losses were recognised for certain interests in
subsidiaries with carrying amounts of US$36,613,000 (2073
US$36,613,000) (before deducting the impairment loss) because
their carrying values exceed their recoverable amounts.

An impairment was recognised for amounts due from certain
subsidiaries with carrying amounts of US$5,201,000 (2073
US$5,697,000) (before deducting the impairment loss) because
the subsidiaries were expected to suffer continuous losses with no
positive cash flows in the foreseeable future. No impairment loss
has been recognised (2073: written off US$9,690,000) during the
year.
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18.

HE2014F 128318 1LFE
For the year ended 31 December 2014

INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free
and have no fixed repayment term but are not expected to be
realised/repaid within the next twelve months after the end of the
reporting period.

Details of principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2014 are shown in
note 45 to the financial statements.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding
during the year or at the end of the reporting period.

Significant judgements and assumptions

The Group holds less than half of the effective equity interests and
voting rights in Tingyi Asahi Beverage Holding Co., Ltd. (“TAB").
However, based on a contractual arrangement between the
Group and one of the other investors, the investor has agreed
to follow the Group’s voting decision in the board of directors’
meetings of TAB. The relevant activities which significantly affect
the TAB’s return are determined by the board of directors of TAB
based on simple majority votes. The directors of the Company
concluded that the Group has control over TAB. Therefore, TAB
and its subsidiaries are consolidated in these financial statements.

Financial information of subsidiaries with individually
material NCI

The following table shows the information relating to TAB,
the only subsidiary of the Group which has material NCI. The
summarised financial information represents amounts before
inter-company eliminations.
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18. MEBARIER(Z) 18. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
EEBNERVBRRESZZHBEAAHN Financial information of subsidiaries with individually
BEER(E) material NCI (Continued)

R 2014 F R20134F

12H31H 12H31H

At At

31 December 31 December

2014 2013

DE SRR AL Proportion of NCI's ownership interests 52.49% 52.49%
DH IR R 2 1 Z R 5] * Proportion of NCI's voting rights* 60% 60%
M2014 5 2013

12H31H 12H31H

At At

31 December 31 December

2014 2013

FET FETT

Uss’000 Us$000

MENEE Current assets 921,608 860,313
EMBNEE Non-current assets 4,375,833 4,280,516
mEafE Current liabilities (2,795,747) (2,873,643)
IERBEE Non-current liabilities (490,084) (286,855)
FEE Net assets 2,011,610 1,980,331
LR R ERREEEA Carrying amount of NCI 1,063,973 1,039,475

* TEREAEEES —KREER ZER * exclude the effect of the contractual arrangement on voting right
ERGETHZYEBEBEASE between the Group and one of the other investors but include the
B &) B ERE - effect of potential voting right held by the Group.
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18. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

SENEXAVBRRERZZHBLTMH Financial information of subsidiaries with individually
MEER(E) material NCI (Continued)
HZE20145F HZE20134F
12A31H 12HA31H
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2014 2013
FE7T FET
Uss$’000 Us$000
EHETE Turnover 5,801,005 6,268,472
RF [E 5 A Profit for the year 153,952 154,880
HEip2m(EE) ke Other comprehensive (loss) income (49,588) 76,248
EHEWELRTE Total comprehensive income 104,364 231,128
D ERE AR R AR Profit attributable to NCI 82,006 81,297
VEREFREEEEERZ  Total comprehensive income
attributable to NCI 55,977 121,319
BN ERERRERE Dividends paid to NCI 42,597 26,511
s (B) ReEnEF8 Net cash flows from (used in):
KEED Operating activities 211,353 680,812
TEED Investing activities (555,954) (610,445)
BEIES) Financing activities 386,163 (163,047)
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18. MIBARRER(E) 18. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
AEBEHHBEATEEESD Change in the Group’s ownership interest in subsidiaries
FRG-BMNEEFEERATARE During the year, the non-controlling shareholder of Lanzhou
Ea S (EMR)BR AR D PepsiCo Beverages Company Limited and Pepsi-Cola Beverages
R RTHEERGHE - EkA (Guiling) Company Limited exercised their put options, requiring
£ E S RILAR £ KB 490,000 E T K& the Group to acquire an additional 20% equity interest in Lanzhou
2,010,000 3 JT & A Z8 4N 20% B M PepsiCo Beverages Company Limited and 25% equity interest
BESRAERARM25% A =5 A4 in Pepsi-Cola Beverages (Guiling) Company Limited at a cash
R GEM) BR A AR ARHE - Y ig consideration of US$490,000 and US$2,010,000 respectively. As
% A EWEMTE A A AR E a result of these acquisitions, both subsidiaries become wholly-
HERNEERB AR - owned subsidiaries of TAB.

AN - AN & B R 9 A1 LA 20,000,000 In addition, during the year, the Group disposed of its entire
ETMBEeRELELE —HNB equity interest in a subsidiary, Zhangzhou Ting Jin Food Co.,
AREEMIERZR AR R ADE Ltd. (“ZTFL"), to two independent third parties at a total cash
MIEZE DA 2D TS consideration of US$20,000,000. As at the date of disposal, the
F=F - REER  FMNEEZHNF net assets of ZTFL disposed of was amounting to USD$21,863,000
& E /21,863,000 7t © RN &K F and a loss on disposal of US$1,863,000 was recognised in profit
B RAY1,863,000EE L2 HE or loss for the year. The cash consideration had been fully settled
B hIBERERERND 28I during the year and the Group generated net inflow of cash and
=/ - HERBR S HEE equivalents of US$19,916,000 from the disposal.
19,916,000 7T °
19. BEARER 19. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES
REH
Group
2014 2013
FETT FET
Us$’000 Us$°000
JE LTS, REANE Unlisted shares, at cost 23,610 23,610
FE(RI B 1R 24 Share of post-acquisition results 8,121 4,804
M =5 Exchange difference 242 636
31,973 29,050
ﬁ&agfma%lgﬁjﬁ TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP, ™,
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19. BEATRR(E 19. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)
PEE AR ZBBAEER 0T - Details of the associates at the end of the reporting period are as
follows:
TEEE/
bR rEEREZ
Principal place &AL
of business Proportion of
and AR effective ownership
BENT LR place of Registered interest held TEER
Name of associates incorporation capital by the Group Principal activities
2014 2013
MM EEIERRERAR & US$10,400,000 11.88% | 11.88% HERHERM
Hangzhou Pepsi-cola Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale

of beverages

EEGEERES A2 ON i US$16,000,000 23.75% | 2375% HEREESRE

Nanjing Pepsi-cola Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages

F2 (M) ReARAHE i US$3,500,000 49% 49% BHERHERR

Kongguan (Hangzhou) Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacturing and sales
of candies

MERE (L&) BEARATF hE US$5,000,000 45% 45% HEPENERAMR

Wakodo (Shanghai) Trading Co., Ltd. * PRC Sales of milk product and
commodity for babies

# IR EE O (o # English translation for identification purposes only.

LA FFr A B & A B Ty a R B BR All of the above associates are accounted for using the equity

A RESRER o method in the consolidated financial statements.
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19. BEQTER(E) 19.
BRI EARE DA ZHBAN

TRIVRAREZE AR Z @
RISEEAME XA A REE M
REBERIGESE -

INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)
Financial information of individually immaterial associates

The table below shows, in aggregate, the carrying amount and
the Group's share of results of associates that are not individually
material and accounted for using the equity method.

152

N ——

R2014 F 20135
12A31H 12H31H
At At
31 December 31 December
2014 2013
FEr FET
Uss$’000 Us$°000
EmREE Carrying amount of interests 31,973 29,050
BZ2014F BZE 20134
12A31H 12A31H
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2014 2013
FET FET
Us$000 Us$’000
REE L Group's share of:
REE @A Profit for the year 3,317 3,152
Hib 2 Al Other comprehensive income — —
2HEW B Total comprehensive income 3,317 3,152

E=ZRR AEERAHENEXRD

BEAT -

material to the Group.

*@ﬁfﬂﬁ—ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂ TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

In the opinion of the directors, no associates are individually

\
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20. SEARER 20. INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES
A%E
Group
2014 2013
FET FET
Us$’000 Us$000
JE LTS, REAE Unlisted shares, at cost 75,724 72,349
FE(RI B 1R 24 Share of post-acquisition results 19,163 15,211
B U iE e /9 B AR F Dividend received since acquisition (20,664) (8,596)
PE =R Exchange difference (70) 1,312
74,153 80,276
RNEE R AL AT ZRAT : Details of the joint ventures at the end of the reporting period are
as follows:
TEEYE/
it rEEREZ
Principal & A L i
place of Proportion of
operation/ HMEEA  effective ownership
EEATER Place of Registered interest held TETEK
Name of joint ventures incorporation capital by the Group Principal activities
2014 2013
BREERMARAF hE US$11,000,000  31.82% | 31.82% RERMEEELSR
(AIBEEFRNRRERAR) PRC Process and sale of
Fujian Sintongho Foods Co., Ltd. agricultural products
REMM)RRBRAF HE US$20,000,000 45% 45% SHEREETREM
Calbee (HangZhou) Foods Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of
snack food products
FE(RLARRERAR HE US$24,000,000 60% 60% RERHENERM
Kangpu (Wujiang) Food Co., Ltd. PRC Process and sale of
meat products
LEBETERNBRAR hE US$28,120,000  23.75% | 23.75% HEREERM
Shanghai Pepsi-cola Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
EEBEUEAHBRAR HE RMB 150,000,000 38% 38% HERHERR
Jinan Pepsi-cola Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
ARE(LB)HRHBRAR hE US$7,000,000  21.38% — RERHESM
Kagome (Shanghai) Beverages Co., Ltd. PRC Process and sale of
beverages
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20. EEDNTER(E) 20.
BAEFT A& %N Bl Th iR A 35 55 5 BE
EA M BERES -

EANHABRRBRR

AEEEB—HE2EAMBRARRAR
E (RI) RmARAF0%HRE
o A REZZENBRFES
—REEZRANARWZE - HRERE
EHREERFENRBEBEALHE
REE-ZORE - Bt - AEERR
HRERTEAEGIEEER KR
il -

FERFERGE DR MBEN

TRIRAREIZ R mx 2 #5)3F
ERARERAMAFREERASE
LIRS

INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

All of the above joint ventures are accounted for using the equity
method in the consolidated financial statements.

Significant judgements and assumptions

The Group has 60% voting rights in Kangpu (Wujiang) Food Co.,
Ltd. through a wholly owned subsidiary. However, based on a
contractual agreement between the wholly owned subsidiary
and another investor, the relevant activities which significantly
affect the investee's return require the unanimous consent of all
investors. Therefore, the Group determined that it has no control
but joint control over this entity.

Financial information of individually immaterial joint
ventures

The table below shows, in aggregate, the carrying amount and the
Group's share of results of joint ventures that are not individually
material and accounted for using the equity method.

R2014 F #2013 4
12H831H 12H31H
At At
31 December 31 December
2014 2013
=0T FETT
Uss$’000 Us$°000
R REE Carrying amount of interests 74,153 80,276
BZE2014% | BE2013F
12A31H 12H31H
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2014 2013
FET FET
Uss$’000 US$°000
REE EG Group's share of:
REEFE R Profit for the year 3,952 12,897
HAth 2 E Other comprehensive income — —
ey L Total comprehensive income 3,952 12,897

1 54 etz ERAT TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP. —

e —
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20. AELNRIER(E) 20. INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)
BEERE AEBLEMENEARDN In the opinion of the directors, no joint ventures are individually
SN material to the Group.
AR Commitments
RNREEBFUATHSZE ARSI The Group has the following unrecognised commitments relating
2 AR REN A o to its interest in joint ventures.
2014 2013
FET FET
Uss’000 Us$’000
RAIERERHEN - Commitments to contribute funding
or resources for:
S NT) R Interest in joint ventures 1,575 1,800
21, AHHELRESE 21. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS
rEH AT
Group Company
2014 2013 2014 2013
FET FET FET FET
Uss$’000 Us$°000 Us$000 Us$'000
REES Investment funds
NRE At fair value 75,664 21,275 50,708 21,275
JEEHRAES  Equity securities, unlisted
RE At costs 3,730 11,452 3,140 3,140
BB R Impairment losses (342) (8,044) (342) (342)
3,388 3,408 2,798 2,798
79,052 24,683 53,506 24,073

BEES ANAE2013F - AE)E
2/ E  DRIBRIRFASEMNE
RETABLE  KINEANER
ETAELE RIUNEBREIES
((RBERES DHBROHEREEA
AR AR BRI ERE - LAER| AT E)
RIERA B K o NARE R
W\t EH % & 451 70,000,000 3 7T

(2013 4F : 50,000,000 7z) » T E
43,349,000 JT(20134F : 2,992,000
ZET)ERFERHE -

The investment funds represent investments in five (2073: two)
funds which were set up by limited partnership in the Cayman
Islands, limited partnership in Jersey, liability limited by shares
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”) and trust in the
PRC respectively, aiming at achieving substantial return. The
Company has entered into agreements and committed to invest
in aggregate of US$70,000,000 (2013: US$50,000,000) in these
funds, of which US$43,349,000 (2013: US$2,992,000) was paid
during the year.
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21.

AHLESHEE(E)

REER REEASHAABELEH
ERECKIENELEEREAGBE -
AREEFEEBERARRFUNES
ABRREREESHEREN 28R
11,040,000 JL(2013 : 1,606,000
L)  c WERSH AR BEF =R
RAzHEERMEEZREZEEYTR
TEBf TS R MIsE 41 ©

FEMREEFLTRABSZE
HRE ERFTEBEAEFAAEE
MEEHREERER EFERRIHF
EHREZ AR EETER S
B BIFLTESFDARERER
HMEHZRENE AKEREH
EELIF EMBRARZOHEM

AL ESREEDATIEES
| :

21.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

The fair values of the investment funds were valued by the
respective investment managers or trust administrator at the end
of the reporting period. Changes in fair value of US$11,040,000
(2013: US$1,606,000) were credited to investment revaluation
reserve. The valuation techniques and significant inputs used in
the measurement of the fair values of the investment funds are
set out in note 41 to the financial statements.

The unlisted equity securities are measured at cost less impairment
loss at the end of each reporting period because the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is significant and the probabilities
of the various estimates within the range cannot be reasonably
assessed. The directors are of the opinion that their fair values
cannot be measured reliably. The Group has no intention to
dispose of these unlisted equity securities.

The available-for-sale financial assets are denominated in the
following currencies:

Group Company
2014 2013 2014 2013
FET FETL FET FET
Uss$’000 US$°000 US$°000 US$°000
ETT Us$ 51,723 22,290 51,723 22,290
AREE RMB 25,668 732 — —
A New Taiwan dollar (“NTD") 1,435 1,435 1,557 1,557
Hb Others 226 226 226 226
79,052 24,683 53,506 24,073

etz ERAT TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.
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22. BRAABEIRREERRER 22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT

NEMEE OR LOSS
Group Company
2014 2013 2014 2013
FET | TET 2 TET| FET
Uss$‘000 USs$'000 Uss‘000 Us$'000
BEEERE Investments held for trading
RBEBLASNETT  Equity securities, listed outside
Z A FES Hong Kong 2,352 114 2,352 114
REBLETZ Equity securities, listed in
N Hong Kong — 4,838 — 4,838
2,352 4,952 2,352 4,952

The financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are

BAREEIIEREESREEY
EREETDATIERETIE

denominated in the following currencies:

Group Company
2014 2013 2014 2013
FET FETL FET FETL
Uss$’000 US$°000 Uss$’000 Us$°000
ETT HK$ — 4,838 — 4,838
Bt JPY 1,343 114 1,343 114
[ KRW 1,009 — 1,009 —
2,352 4,952 2,352 4,952
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23. 78 23. INVENTORIES
AEE
Group
2014 2013
FET FETT
Uss$‘000 Us$’000
R Raw materials 180,430 203,694
R Work in progress 11,972 13,946
IR mn Finished goods 194,556 263,222
386,958 480,862
24. FBUWERR 24. TRADE RECEIVABLES
rEE
Group
2014 2013
FErx FET
Uss‘000 US$°000
JE W BR K Trade receivables
—£=7 — From third parties 230,676 252,548
—ARAZEERR — From companies controlled by a
=il ZE AR substantial shareholder of the Company 3,834 —
b AW/NE] — From associates 1,406 2,884
—BERTA — From joint ventures 2,323 4,995
238,239 260,427
REB ZHEEANISHDAEED IR - The majority of the Group's sales are cash-on-delivery. The
BTHEEEEBETEA30FE90 remaining balances of sales are mainly at credit term ranging from
Xo BAEWEZ(NKLEENRE 30 to 90 days. The ageing analysis of trade receivables (net of
WEER) N AEHREENHRR impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts), based on invoice
ZEEBOARMT ¢ date, at the end of the reporting period is as follows:
AEE
Group
2014 2013
FET FET
Uss‘o0o Us$’000
0-90X 0 - 90 days 216,763 248,538
90 A E Over 90 days 21,476 11,889
238,239 260,427

S —
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24. W (&) 24. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)
BB BB AR E 2 FE R AR ¢ The ageing analysis of trade receivables which are past due but
not impaired is as follows:
REH
Group
2014 2013
FET FET
Uss’000 Us$°000
BB IRk 2 EWFIE Balances exceeded normal credit period:
B30 KA Within 30 days 15,980 15,245
BHEI31 =90 K 31-90 days 16,038 13,666
BEEE 90K Over 90 days 9,663 3,897
41,681 32,808
ELAHERRENEKRESR 2 The trade receivables that are past due but not impaired related
KEANEELZZEGRBITLENTE to a number of independent customers that have a good track
URF o AREESENWEES AN E record with the Group. The Group has not impaired these debtors
b ANEFEI EE S LEE RSB E as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and
WE WEEEERAELERA the directors believe that the amounts are recoverable. The Group
W B o A& B ok 5 A (o] B i L does not hold any collateral over these balances.
BRFABRARVIE IR @ o
35 LE 3E %0 HA 3% R S5 {E MY FE Uk BE 25 A Receivables that are neither past due nor impaired relate to a
B v &SI EAN EHE R BE D4R o wide range of customers for whom there was no recent history of

default.

RUBR R EELAARKETIE - The trade receivables are mainly denominated in RMB.
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25. ANERARHEMBERR 25. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
piS-. | PN
Group Company
2014 2013 2014 2013
et FET FET FET FET
Note Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$000
BHER Prepayments to suppliers
for purchase of goods 12,738 11,301 — —
BIERER Prepayments for purchase of equipment 7,187 14,781 - —
B RL Prepayment for purchase
it} of prepaid lease payment 1,920 7,577 — —
BITIEET Prepaid value-added taxes 136,225 117,083 - —
BIEERY Prepaid operating expenses 219,269 171,872 — —
TiMRAEE Current portion of prepaid lease payment
mEEH 18,453 7,538 - —
EWER Loan receivables 25(a) 15,478 15,830 - =
JE M — R Al Amount due from a former
o) INGIE Q] subsidiary 25(b) 57,592 — — =
Hith Others 63,759 67,975 371 379
532,621 413,957 371 379
(@) EWRER (@) Loan receivables

BRERTBEAEEZHMEAR
AERTEHETEMEHER
HEELEEREZRE - It
ERKERBEERT AR
—FRNEERWFEHS6%
£6.56%(20134%F: 5.72% =
6.56%)HEZN °

ARBERZAHUEERHR
FERART -_EAREZHEK
B - RBEABRITHHENEIFE
ZERARKR R 2 RERH
B WEEREEERZAR
EBEEEABEREERN -

Loan receivables represent the advances made by wholly
owned subsidiaries of the Company to certain raw materials
suppliers of the Group for their operating use. The loan
receivables are unsecured, repayable within 12 months from
the date of drawdown and bear interest ranging from 5.6%
10 6.56% (2013. from 5.72% to 6.56 %) per annum.

The directors expected the amounts will be realised in the
next twelve months after the end of the reporting period.
The fair value of the amounts as at the end of the reporting
period, determined based on the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted using prevailing
market rate, approximate their corresponding carrying
amount.

etz ERAT TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

e —
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25. ERNERAREMERR(E) 25. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)
(b) EW—FREAIHEARRE (b) Amount due from a former subsidiary
AR AR AT ERT—Ba The balance represents the advances made to ZTFL, a former
B B A | E M T,E,%E’\]ﬁy\ B % subsidiary of the Company, which had been fully eliminated
FKERERNEEZINIE ;‘i’i\ﬁ in the consolidated financial statements prior to the disposal
BREFREIEE =7 2R of the entire equity interest in ZTFL to two independent third
,iv?/m\ﬁjﬁk#&ééq: 2EIEH ° ﬁ’\\ parties during the year. At the end of the reporting period,
HERH ZREER—FRNE the amounts due are wholly repayable within one year,
%(mm?& SEEHE‘:P —{EMTE secured by a corporate guarantee to the Group provided
B HRENABEBEE A LR by a related party of one of the new shareholder of ZTFL to
AEBIREER ERE&HE the extent of US$54,671,000, out of which approximately
454,671,000 JT o E 4 US$46,822,000 bearing interest at 6% per annum and
46,822,000 588 8  F7 approximately US$10,770,000 is interest-free.
6% + #910,770,0003 7T
BERE o
REZHRTTEBEBE RN Z At the end of the reporting period, none of the loan
FEWRE R & ER—EHE A receivables and amount due from a former subsidiary was
BIIE - INERKEWEE R due but unpaid and no provision had been made for non-
KRB BB - repayment of the advances and interest.
26. FEWKHIEATRIE 26. AMOUNTS DUE FROM A SUBSIDIARY
JiE U B 8 A 7] 2 FX T8 4 8 310,000,000 Amounts due from a subsidiary of US$310,000,000 (2073:
£ (20134 : 37@000,0005573)7,%;\415\ US$310,000,000) are unsecured, bearing interest ranging from
] M E B 1.45% F4.00%(2013 1.45% to 4.00% (2013: from 1.45% to 4.00%) per annum and
F : 1.45% 2 4.00% ) RARESGE TR © repayable on demand.
27. B REZEREEAELER 27. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AEE
Group
2014 2013
FE7T FZET
Us$000 Us$°000
RITEBR IR Bank balances and cash 1,170,900 1,234,399
HEIRRITIF K Pledged bank deposits 12,203 15,491
REreHEMERIIT As stated in the consolidated statement
of cash flows 1,183,103 1,249,890

RITERETER - EREHRLSE
B—RIRTREHRBE (BRERITA
RER)NRITREZERS -

The pledged bank deposits are secured for general banking and
trade finance facilities, including the issuance of bank acceptance
bl”S granted to the Group by banks
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27. BERZEHREER (&) 27. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued)
HeNERIESBEEHNUTYEES The cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following
B : currencies:

REE
Group
2014 2013
FE7T FET
USs$°000 us$‘0oo
AR RMB 1,030,109 1,177,937
e Us$ 123,859 46,665
BT EUR 10,891 673
et NTD 16,114 20,329
HAth Others 2,130 4,286
BEAEEZIINERE REZERE Details of the Group's foreign currency risk and credit risk
DB SR 2= M 3T 40 St © discussion are set out in note 40 to the financial statements.
28. BRITERZN 28. ISSUED CAPITAL
ZN
Company
2014 2013
ROHE FET RIn &R FET
No. of shares US§°000 | No. of shares Us$00o
ERE Authorised:
Hh%0.005%7T Ordinary shares of US$0.005 each
2 &R 7,000,000,000 35,000 |7,000,000,000 35,000
BEITRER ¢ Issued and fully paid:
REA At the beginning of the year 5,596,405,360 27,982 |5,592,897,360 27,964
BARFBAR#EETE]  Sharesissued under share
RIT 2B option scheme 7,354,000 37 3,508,000 18
REER At the end of the reporting period  5,603,759,360 28,019 |5,596,405,360 27,982
20144 + 7,354,000 0 A% 4 % 17 & During the year, 7,354,000 options were exercised to subscribe
LA 22 B& AN A F] 7,354,000 X 53 A% % for 7,354,000 ordinary shares of the Company at a consideration
% KB A9,123,000E T H of US$9,123,000, of which US$37,000 was credited to share
h37,000E Tt AR A A& capital and the balance of US$9,086,000 was credited to the
9,086,000 = it AR SHER - 2 share premium account. In addition, US$2,904,000 has been
4N+ 2,904,000 E T B HECE G transferred from the share-based payment reserve to the share
BT AR B ER o premium account.

162 i ganameememmirSsnos—" ) \
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29. RDEE 29. SHARE PREMIUM
2014 2013
Us$°000 US$°000
REA]) At the beginning of the year 53,431 66,656
RIEEE I RT 213877 2 A1) Shares issued under share option scheme 11,990 5,607
B RIRE 20136 2013/2012 final dividend approved
2012 FREAR S and paid — (18,832)
REER At the end of the reporting period 65,421 53,431
BIEHSEARIKEE B AR A% Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, where a
BETRMOE  TwmelReE company issues shares at a premium, whether for cash or
31T ERITROEREN otherwise, a sum equal to the aggregate amount of the value
B BHEEERMN SEE - of the premiums on their shares shall be transferred to share
premium account.
B EBEERREREHEHSE The application of the share premium account is governed by the
NENEZIRE ° Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.
ERERABERREZERT » AA Share premium of the Company is distributable to shareholders
Al Z RS EBRI D IR FARE - AR subject to the provisions of the Company’s Memorandum and
NENDIRBBENDARNEEERS Articles of Association and provided that immediately following
RS B HABAS 2 (&R o the distribution the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall

due in the ordinary course of business.
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30. f#fE 30. RESERVES
(@) &HE (@) Group
BOURE
EaRARE
Transactons REEf
ROBEEE EEEEE  wihoon JMEEERRE BRE ERiERE
Captdl Remeasu-  controling  Exchange  hvestment  —EHE  Sharebased il
redemption ement interest ~ translation  revaluation General payment Retained! 5
feserve feserve Tesenve reserve feserve reserve fesere profits Tota
FEr FEr 7 7 i FEr FEL 7 FEr
Us§ o0 Us§00 Usgo00 Uss oo Us§ oo Us§000 Uss a0 Uss oo Us§ oo
R01BE1F1A At 1 January 2013 45 (11,655) 161,430 335,314 2439 365,852 32,086 1,564,019 2,449,530
AERER Proftfor the year - - - - - - - dgsu4 doBsu
A2ENE(HER) Other comprehensive income (loss)
RERHELZERE Remezsurement of defind
benefits obligations = 450 = = = = = = 450
EizE Bxchange difference on consolidation - - - 9,750 - - - - 9,750
AREECHARRLEZED  Farvalue changesin
available-for-sale finanial assets = = = = 12,780 = = = 12,780
NENHETHEESTARZ  Redlssiication adjustments relting to
EpfaE avaiable-for-sale financia
assets disposed of during the year = = = = (14397) = = = (14397)
AHRENE(FR)EE Total other comprehensive income (loss) - 450 - 9,750 (1,617) = - - 91,583
AEERANE(HRAF Total comprehensive income
(loss) for the year - 450 - 92,750 (1,617) - - 408,544 500,127
BANRRRZRS Transactions with owners
of the Company:
REEFT Contributions and distrbution
BREERNTAZE Fquity setfled share-based transactions - - - - - - 1930 - 11930
REERE L TIRD Shares issued under share option scheme - - - - - - (1417) - (.47
BIEREE2012ERERE 2012 final dividend approved and paid - - - - - - — (161291 (161291
EREREER Transfer from retained profits - - - - - 66,761 - (66,761) -
BALARFRAEE Total transactions with owners
of the Company - - — — - 66,761 10513 (228052) (150,778)
K13 128318 At 31 December 2013 45 (11,205) 161,430 428,064 822 432613 4259 1,744,511 2,719,879

1 64 *@gﬁﬂéﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.
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30. fRE(E) 30. RESERVES (Continued)
() H%E(# (@) Group (Continued)
BHURR
BERARE
Transactions REEMH
RORERE EEERE  withnon HNERERRE R BRERE
Cepital ~ Remeasur-  controllng  Exchange  Investment ~ —EE  Sharebased  REEA
redemption ement interest  translation  revaluation General payment Retained g
reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total

Z7] FEr FET FET FEr FET FET AT FEr
uss oo Ussooo Uss oo uss oo uss oo Usson Uss oo uss oo Ussooo

R2014E1518 At 1 January 2014 4 (11,205) 161,430 428,064 82 432,613 42,599 1,744,511 2,798,879
AEEEH Profit or the year - - - - - - - 008 400482
A2 (FE)hE Other comprehensive (loss) income
RERNEL ERE Remezsurement of defined
benefits obligations - 1,584 - - - - - - 1,584
ErizE Exchange difference on consoldation - - - (76,477) - - - - (76,477)
TRHECRARLLELED  Fairvalue changes in avalable-
for-sale financial assets - - - - 11,040 - - - 11,040
At 2E(HE WS Total other comprehensive (loss) income - 1,584 - (76477) 11,040 - - - (63853)
AEERANE(HR AE Total comprehensive income
(loss) for the year - 1,584 - (76,477) 11,040 - - 400,482 336,629
BANARRZRS Transactions with owners
of the Company:
REEGE Contributions and distrbution
BREERNTANZE Equity settled share-based transactions - - - - - - 11,837 - 11837
RERREE T RS Shares issued under share option scheme - - - - - - (2,904) - (2,904)
BRERERNIBERDRE 2013 final dividend approved and paid - - - - - - - (0434)  (20432)
ERARBET Transfer from retained profits - - - - - 40,719 - (40,119) -
BANARRRAAE Total transactions with owners
of the Company - - - - - 40,119 8,933 (245,083) (195,391)
ROUE12A3MA At 31 December 2014 45 (9,621) 161,430 351,587 11,862 473332 51532 1,899,950 2,940,117
Hih 2 mEKESE K HKIEER 2014 F No income tax effect arose from each component of other

K2013F R BABHREE - comprehensive income in 2014 and 2013.
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30. fE(E)

30. RESERVES (Continued)

(b) £=AF (b) Company
RiEE NEBE REERE
Fife E(HERE Fifie Bl BRERE
Capital  Remeasur-  Exchange  Investment Share-based  {REZ&A!
redemption ement  translation revaluation  payment  Retained it
feserve reserve feserve reserve reserve profits Total
FET FET FET FEL FET FET FET
Us§000  US§000  USS000  US$000  USS000  US$000  US$000
R2013F17818 At 1 January 2013 45 (6,508) 198 (785) 32,086 164,409 189,445
AEREA Profit for the year - - - - — 204303 204303
At 2E R (BE) Other comprehensive income (loss)
AEBNELCEfRE Remeasurement of defined
benefits obligations - 27) - — — — 27)
EHES Exchange translation difference — - (561) - - - (561)
N ESHAE Fair value changes in
DREZES available-for-sale financial assets - — - 1,606 - - 1,606
At 2 AN (BE) 8% Total other comprehensive income (loss) - 27 (561) 1,606 - - 1,018
REE2AKH(FR)AE  Total comprehensive income
(loss) for the year - 27) (561) 1,606 — 204303 205321
BRDNARRZRS Transactions with owners of the Company:
RESEST Contributions and distribution
EnfERNIN A Equity settled share-based transactions - - - — 11930 — 11930
BEBRES AT RG Shares issued under share option scheme - - - - (1.417) - (1.417)
BIERRE012ERFRS 2012 final dividend approved and paid — - — - —  (161,291)  (161,91)
BANRRRL Total transactions with owners
RAHE of the Company - - — — 10513 (161291)  (150,778)
W2013E12 4318 At 31 December 2013 45 (6,535) (363) 821 42,599 207,421 243,938

1 66 etz ERAT TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.
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30. fEEE) 30. RESERVES (Continued)
(b) =AT#E) (b) Company (Continued)
RHAEE MERE REERE

s ERERG R R BRERS
Capital Remeasur- Exchange Investment Share-based HRE A/
redemption ~ ement translation revaluation  payment  Retained L
reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  Profits Total
FEr  fEr fEr FEr  FEn FEr  FEn
Uss000  USS000  US$000  USSO00 - USS000 - USS000 - USS000

R2014E1818 At 1 January 2014 45 (6,535) (363) 821 42,599 207,421 243,988
RERRF Profit for the year - - - - — 197,708 197,708
At 2ENE (BE) Other comprehensive income (oss)
RERHEMEMRE Remeasurement of defined
benefits obligations - (135) - - - - (135)
ERER Exchange translation difference - - 86 - - - 86
MEHESHAE Fair value changes in
DEZEY available-for-sale financial assets - - - 5,433 - - 5,433
Hth2E NG (FE) 48 Total other comprehensive income (loss) - (135) 86 5,433 - - 5,384

Total comprehensive income

REE2ANE(FR) A% (Ioss) for the year - (135) 86 5,433 — 197,708 203,002
BARNARRZRE Transactions with owners of the Company:
READ Contributions and distribution
BRGERDZ A HE Equity settled share-based transactions - - - - 18y - 18y
BEBRETART RG Shares issued under share option scheme - - - - (2,904) - (2,904)
BEEREE2013EXSARS 2013 final dividend approved and paid - - - - —  (204324) (204324)
BANRRRL Total transactions with owners
RABE of the Company - - - - 8933 (204,324)  (195391)

#2014 128318 At 31 December 2014 45 (6,670) (277 6,254 51,532 200805 251,689
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AediziERAT TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

Capital redemption reserve

Capital redemption reserve has been set up in accordance with
the provisions of the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands on
repurchases and cancellations of the Company’s own shares.

Remeasurement reserve

Remeasurement reserve has been set up and is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policies adopted for the
remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability as set out in
note 3 to the financial statements.

Transactions with non-controlling interests reserve

Transactions with non-controlling interests reserve has been set
up and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies
adopted for the changes in the Group’s ownership interest in a
subsidiary which do not result in a loss of control as set out in
note 3 to the financial statements.

Exchange translation reserve

Exchange translation reserve has been set up and is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policies adopted for foreign
currency translation.
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RESERVES (Continued)

Investment revaluation reserve

The investment revaluation reserve has been set up and is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policies adopted for the
changes of fair value in available-for-sale financial assets as set out
in note 3 to the financial statements.

General reserve

In accordance with the relevant PRC regulations, the PRC
subsidiaries are required to appropriate to the general reserve an
amount not less than 10% of the amount of profit after taxation
(as reported in the respective statutory financial statements of the
PRC subsidiaries prepared in accordance with the PRC accounting
regulations). If the accumulated general reserve reaches 50%
of the registered capital of the respective PRC subsidiaries, the
subsidiary may not be required to make any further appropriation.

Share-based payment reserve

Share-based payment reserve comprises the fair value at the grant
date of unexercised share options granted to employees of the
Group and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policy
adopted for share-based payments as set out in note 3 to the
financial statements.

At 31 December 2014, the Company’s distributable reserves
including retained profits and share premium amounted to
US$266,226,000 (2013: US$260,852,000).
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31. UEmR@EERBXNZRS 31.

B EFEMERETE(FE])
ZIRBREEN2008F3 42088
e ZErEl 2 BB 2 EE (G
0TS ) W R P L E AR EE
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EZgAREZEERTUATALE
Pt
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‘8 :

(i) RRAMEMBARMNEFNEZS
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B5): Rk

(iiiy AR E B D E H (A B
M- RAE HER BER
I -

Br e N R R R AL - ZAT 8 REM
RNATzEMBRETESME T2
BRES R ZBRMDEE TEBBAN
NAIREEA L5 EE B (812008 5
3H20B) 2B #1TRMHE10% °
REEH ERTHEEBRES
®) BE A% # /105,104,500 f% (2013
F : 92,386,000 ) #) B AR QT
IR AR R TRERETEE
B2 BTN A1.88% (20134 -
1.65%) °

etz ERAT TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTION

The Company's share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted
pursuant to a resolution passed on 20 March 2008. The Scheme
is a share incentive scheme and is established to recognise and
acknowledge the contributions the eligible participants (as defined
below) had or may have made to the Group.

The Board of Directors may, at its discretion, offer to grant an
option to:-

(i) any full-time or part-time employees, executives or officers
of the Company or any of its subsidiaries;

(i) any directors (including non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors) of the Company or
any of its subsidiaries; and

(iii) any advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers and agents of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

Without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders, the
maximum number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Scheme and under any other share option
schemes of the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10%
of the total number of shares in issue at the time the Scheme is
adopted by the shareholders (i.e. 20 March 2008). At the end of
reporting period, the number of shares in respect of which options
had been granted to its employees and director was 105,104,500
(2013: 92,386,000), representing 1.88% (2013: 1.65%) of the
shares of the Company in issue at the time the Scheme is adopted
by the shareholders of the Company.
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EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTION
(Continued)

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted under the Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company (including
both exercised and outstanding options) to an individual in any
12-month period up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1%
of the shares in issue as at the date of grant. Any further grant
of options in excess of this 1% limit shall be subject to the
shareholders’ approval.

The exercise price is determined by the Company’s Board of
Directors, and will not be less than the higher of (i) the closing
price of the Company’s shares on the date of grant; (ii) the
average closing price of the shares for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal
value of the Company's shares.

The period during which an option may be exercised will be
determined by the Company’s Board of Directors, save that no
option may be exercised more than 10 years after it has been
granted. The options will be vested either after five years from the
date of grant or immediate upon attainment of the retirement age
as specified in the Scheme. A nominal consideration at HK$1 was
paid by each option holder for each lot of share option granted.
Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one
ordinary share of the Company.
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EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTION

(Continued)

Details of share options granted by the Company pursuant to the

Scheme and the share options outstanding as at 31 December

T 2014 and 2013 are as follows:
RTE
REHE
Number of RITENEREZR
®FHH share options Number of share TEE THEH
Grant date granted options outstanding Exercise price  Exercisable period
2014 2013 HK$ (K1iE) (note)

200843 H20H 11,760,000 4,864,000 5,950,000 9.28 2013F3H21BZE
20 March 2008 20183 H20H

21 March 2013 to

20 March 2018
20094 4 H22H 26,688,000 14,380,000 20,344,000 9.38 2014F4H238%
22 April 2009 20194 H22H

23 April 2014 to

22 April 2019
20104 A1 H 15,044,000 12,443,000 13,187,000 18.57 2015F4H18ZE
1 April 2010 202093 H31H

1 April 2015 to

31 March 2020
20114 A12H 17,702,000 15,590,000 16,500,000 19.96 20165F4H12H=E
12 April 2011 20214 H118

12 April 2016 to

11 April 2021
20129 4 A 26 H 9,700,000 9,170,000 9,700,000 2054 2017F4H26H=
26 April 2012 20224 H25H

26 April 2017 to

25 April 2022

etz ERAT TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.
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31, LEREEROAXF2RE(E) 31. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTION
(Continued)
RTE
REHE
Number of RITENERESAR
BFHH share options Number of share TEE THEH
Grant date granted options outstanding Exercise price  Exercisable period
2014 2013 HK$ (H1&t) (note)
201345 H27H 11,492,000 10,928,000 11,492,000 20.16 2018F5H27HE
27 May 2013 202345H26H
27 May 2018 to
26 May 2023
20144 H178 12,718,500 12,368,000 - 2238 2019F4H17HE
17 April 2014 20244 H16H
17 April 2019 to
16 April 2024
&t

Total 105,104,500

Hiit B RERIERF A ZZET A EHE R RIKE Note: The options will be vested and exercisable by the holder immediate upon
B UL FIEIRERS S LRI - attainment of the retirement age as specified in the Scheme.
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31. UREREERDXTZRE(E) 31. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTION
(Continued)
mARITE Z B R ENEFE ST Movements in the number of options outstanding and their
FEBZEEmT : weighted average exercise prices are as follows:
2014 2013
hnfEF 35 InEFg
TREE TEE
Weighted Weighted
average BIREZAE average FEMREZE
exercise Number of exercise  Number of
price options price options
HK$ ‘000 HK$ ‘000
REL] At the beginning of year 16.21 77,173 15.21 69,189
RERTTE Exercised during the year 9.78 (7,354) 9.30 (3,508)
RE AR Forfeited during the year 20.12 (2,795) = =
RERFT Granted during the year 22.38 12,719 20.16 11,492
REER At the end of the
reporting period 17.65 79,743 16.21 77,173
RITEE » FEAR1TE M PIEREE R N The weighted average share price at the date of shares options
X HRE AE21.82%8 T ° (2013 exercised during the year was HK$21.82 (2013: HK$21.11). The
FE QI I1ET ) RAEAEH @ weighted average exercise price of exercisable options at the end
T 1 B B IR A B I FE S 7T (E (B A of the reporting period was HK$15.14 (2073: HK$14.55).
1514870 (2013 4F : 14.5587) °
HR2014%E12 318 ' WEKFTEE The options outstanding at 31 December 2014 had a weighted
PRER I8 T4 48 A6.45 average remaining contractual life of 6.45 years (2013: 6.79
F(20134F :6.794F ) c PNEEER - years). At the end of the reporting period, the number of
] 171 B IR M 9 PR B2 41,973,000 exercisable options was 41,973,000 (2073: 20,011,000)
(20134 : 20,011,000)
EEEHAN SBEMERER The number of options vested during the reporting period was
# £29,316,000(2013 % : 29,316,000 (2013: 15,545,000).

15,545,000) °

1 74 etz ERAT TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.
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31. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTION
(Continued)

The fair value of the share options granted is measured at the
date of grant, using the binomial option pricing model, taking
into account the terms and conditions of the share-based
arrangement. The fair value calculated is inherently subjective and
uncertain due to the assumptions made and the limitations of the
model used. The inputs into the model are as follows:

o ill= B¥H EERER HHREER
ZRARE ZWmE ZRE  FEHRE FHTES  Expected
Fairvalueat  Share price fT#{E%  Risk-free  Expected Expected  dividend
Grant date grantdate atgrantdate Exercise price interestrate  volatility life yield
200843 A20H §hR3.74 5% 8.55 §hk9.28 437% 40% 105 2.0%
20 March 2008 BT BT BT 10 years
HK$3.74 HK$8.55 HK$9.28
per share per share per share
2009%4A228 FHR3.34 R 9.37 §ik9.38 251% 36% 104 2.0%
22 April 2009 BT BT BT 10 years
HK$3.34 HK$9.37 HK$9.38
per share per share per share
2010F4A18 BH7.24 B 18.42 Bk 18.57 4.10% 33% 106 2.0%
01 April 2010 BT BT BT 10 years
HK$7.24 HK$18.42 HK$18.57
per share per share per share
2011647128 B§iR7.61 Hhk19.88 i 19.96 4.30% 31% 104 2.0%
12 April 2011 BT BT BT 10 years
HK$7.61 HK$19.88 HK$19.96
per share per share per share
2012%4R268 §HR7.75 Bk 19.88 2054 4.21% 34% 104 2.0%
26 April 2012 BT BT BT 10 years
HK$7.75 HK$19.88 HK$20.54
per share per share per share
2013%5A278 BHR7.17 §Hk20.05 B 20.16 4.12% 26% 106 1.5%
27 May 2013 BT BT BT 10 years
HK$7.17 HK$20.05 HK$20.16
per share per share per share
2014647178 52830 Hhk22.06 2238 4.93% 29% 104 2.0%
17 April 2014 BT BT BT 10 years
HK$8.30 HK$22.06 HK$22.38
per share per share per share
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32. BE{ESE

(Continued)

ArEBR

directors’ best estimate.

32. INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTION

The expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the Company’s share price over the last one year of
share option granted. The variables and assumptions used in
computing the fair value of the share options are based on the

REE AT
Group Company
2014 2013 2014 2013
FETT FZET FXm FET
Us$’000 Us$'000 USs$°000 US$'000
G Secured 82,994 — — —
A 4 Unsecured 2,545,760 | 1,676,279 1,237,464 925,172
2,628,754 | 1,676,279 1,237,464 925,172
EEEBE - The maturity of the interest-bearing
1 EIER borrowings is as follows:
1FR Within one year 1,382,034 | 1,016,636 360,960 430,000
F2F In the second year 276,621 84,874 45,000 —
E3IFZEESF  In the third to fifth years,
(B inclusive
BRE2F) 970,099 574,769 831,504 495,172
2,628,754 | 1,676,279 1,237,464 925,172
WA AE Portion classified as
mENB EEH current liabilities (1,382,034) | (1,016,636)  (360,960)|  (430,000)
FEmEnE o Non-current portion 1,246,720 659,643 876,504 495,172

*@gﬁiﬁ_ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂ TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

N ——

——
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32. BEEBE(E) 32. INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS (Continued)
L3 3L ART
Group Company
2014 2013 2014 2013

FET TET TET TET
Uss‘ooo Us$°000 Us$'000 Us$°000

BIEE F W% FT=] Analysis of the amount due based
MFRBEHEZEH  on scheduled payment dates
AT (WZBEE  setoutin the loan agreements
AR EKAIEEE  (ignoring the effect of any
BIEFMET2)  repayment on demand clause)

is as follow:
15R Within one year 1,282,050 | 1,016,636 270,960 430,000
L2 In the second year 286,605 84,874 45,000 —
FIFZEFESHFE  In the third to fifth years,
(B inclusive
BE2%F) 1,060,099 574,769 921,504 495,172
2,628,754 1,676,279 1,237,464 925,172
AEMEEH 117,991,000%7T(2013 - Interest-bearing borrowings of US$117,991,000 (2073 US$Nil),
E)BE—REEKIGL TEEAE with a clause in their terms that gives the lender an overriding
MELZBESEaAANSLR T =R right to demand repayment without notice or with notice period
BHHNBRT  BRBEMEE- of less than 12 months at its sole discretion, are classified as
BEEEFVTEHEEARTER current liabilities even though the directors do not expect that the
BNEREER  HBAEETEER lenders would exercise their rights to demand repayment.
RRBBIE -
0T E R R B229%(2013 The weighted average effective interest rate on the interest-

F :242%) ° bearing borrowings is 2.29% (2013: 2.42 %) per annum.
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EEEERENREEZEES I A
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HXf: B # A %£50000000033%
JL 2 R2017F6 A20H B Hl - &
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AediziERAT TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

The interest-bearing borrowings consist of secured bank loans that
are pledged by certain property, plant and equipment and prepaid
lease payments with net carrying amount of approximately
US$129,942,000 and US$386,698,000 respectively, unsecured
bank loans that are not pledged and unsecured notes issued by
the Company on 20 June 2012 (the “Notes”). The carrying value
of the Notes at the end of the reporting period is US$496,504,000
(2013: US$495,172,000) and is included in the interest-bearing
borrowings with maturity in the third to fifth years. The Notes
bear interest from 20 June 2012 at 3.875% per annum, payable
semi-annually in arrears on 20 June and 20 December of each
year, beginning on 20 December 2012 and will mature on 20
June 2017 at the principal amount of US$500,000,000. The
Notes are the unsecured obligations of the Company and they
rank at least equally with other present and future unsecured
and unsubordinated obligations. The Notes are listed on the
Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited. The fair value of
the Notes as at 31 December 2014 was US$516,950,000 (20173:
US$518,060,000), which was based on the quoted market price.

Some of the banking facilities are subject to the fulfillment of
covenants relating to certain of the consolidated balance sheet
ratios, as are commonly found in lending arrangements with
financial institutions. If the Group were to breach the covenants,
the drawn down facilities would become repayable on demand.

The Group regularly monitors its compliance with these covenants,
is up to date with the scheduled repayments of the term loans and
does not consider it probable that the relevant banks will exercise
its discretion to demand for repayment so long as the Group
continues to meet these requirements. Further details of the
Group's financial management of liquidity risk are set out in note
40 to the financial statements. Throughout the reporting period,
none of the covenants relating to drawn down facilities had been
breached (20713: None).
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32. BEEBE(E) 32. INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS (Continued)

AEBRARDFRERE S 245
BRREES HFFRAT -

An analysis of the carrying amounts of the Group’s and the
Company's total borrowings by type are as follows:

AEE AT

Group Company
2014 2013 2014 2013
FET FET FET FET
Uss$’000 Us$°000 Uss$’000 US$°000
[ 7 A == At fixed rates 740,166 541,366 496,504 495,172
FENF K At floating rates 1,888,588 | 1,134,913 740,960 430,000
2,628,754 | 1,676,279 1,237,464 925,172

BREEATIERSIE

The interest-bearing borrowings are denominated in the following

currencies:
REH ¥ N/N|

Group Company
2014 2013 2014 2013
FET FET FET FET
Uss$’000 US$°000 Uss$’000 US$'000
AR RMB 465,791 197,949 — —
ETT Us$ 2,086,859 | 1,425,894 1,236,504 925,172
BT EUR 75,144 52,436 — —
BT JPY 960 — 960 —

B RS EIMNER B N F R R Ay
—HFHE - RUBRERME 40 -

Details of the Group’s foreign currency risk and interest rate risk

discussion are set out in note 40 to the financial statements.
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33.
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etz ERAT TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

33.

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

Defined contribution plans

The Group participates in defined contribution plans organised
by the relevant local government authorities in the PRC, Hong
Kong and Taiwan for its PRC, Hong Kong and Taiwan employees
respectively, whereby the Group is required to make monthly
contributions to these plans at certain percentage of the relevant
portion of the payroll of these employees to the pension scheme
to fund the benefits. The Group has no obligation for the payment
of retirement and other post-retirement benefits for the PRC and
Hong Kong employees other than the monthly contributions
described above.

Defined benefit plan

The Group has a defined benefit plan for its Taiwan employees.
The Group has not maintained any plan asset and bears the full
cost of all the plan benefits. The benefits are calculated based
on the length of service and average monthly salary for the final
six months of employment. The Group's obligation in respect of
the defined benefit plan is calculated by an independent actuary,
Messrs. Towers Watson, Taiwan Branch (“Towers Watson”). The
latest actuarial valuation was performed by Towers Watson as at
31 December 2014 using the projected unit credit method.
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33. BEIREAERAE) 33. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (Continued)
REBFEE &) Defined benefit plan (Continued)
AEBRAATSHAERFEE The amounts included in the statement of financial position arising
MELEZEXT Wi AFBRIERZ from the obligation of the Group and the Company in respect of
FERHEREZEEHOT ! its defined benefit plans and their movements in the present value

of defined benefit obligations are as follows:

REE ANAF]
Group Company
2014 2013 2014 2013
FET FZET FET FETT
Us$000 Us$°000 Uss$’000 Us$'000
REH At beginning of year 28,186 26,120 14,708 12,831
KEFZRRIEKA  Current service cost 2,892 2,619 1,011 1,417
NN %N Interest expense 1,260 973 414 478
4,152 3,592 1,425 1,895
EHE Remeasurements:
ISR A Actuarial losses (gains) arising
EEZBEER changes in
(Uzs) financial assumptions 506 (1,593) (49) (832)
KERAEEE Y Actuarial (gains) losses arising
BE (k) from experience adjustments
PN (2,855) 743 184 859
(2,349) (850) 135 27
AR Benefit payment (1,153) (1,047) (1,153) (239)
JEN AR Exchange differences (134) 371 (70) 194
(1,287) (676) (1,223) (45)
R&EER At end of the reporting period 28,702 28,186 15,045 14,708
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33. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (Continued)

33. BEIRFERE)

REBFETE &) Defined benefit plan (Continued)

EEMENEERES The significant assumptions used for the actuarial valuation were:
KEERAKAF
Group and Company
2014 2013
% %
PrIR= Discount rate 4.25 4.50
SEEE R A Expected rate of salary increases 10.00 10.00

REEB  SREERERRWNAE

The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to reasonable

NN o )b B = e 1 possible changes for each significant actuarial assumption as at
EET the end of the reporting period is as follows:
X£E
Group
2014 2013
RERAEE REBNERE
:}-44 i(}-214
REHE( Change in EE:0k 44 Change in
Change in  defined benefit Change in  defined benefit
assumption obligation assumption obligation
iERS Discount rate +1-0.5% -3.46% / +3.67% +-0.5% -3.57% / +3.76%
BHEAE Expected rate of salary increases +-0.5% +3.78% / -3.61% +-05% +3.88% /-3.71%
N
Company
2014 2013
RERAELE REBANER
i} -4 i} 2[4
BEHE( Change in REHNE(E Change in
Changein defined benefit Change in  defined benefit
assumption obligation assumption obligation
MRE Discount rate +/-0.5% -3.34% / +3.54% +/-0.5% -3.57% / +3.76%
SR Expected rate of salary increases +-0.5% +3.72% /- 3.55% +-0.5% +3.88% /-3.711%
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EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (Continued)

Defined benefit plan (Continued)

The above sensitivity analyses are prepared based on a reasonable

?“E’J/*\ii—Jﬁﬁﬁébfﬁﬁi , ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂfﬂz possible change in each actuarial assumption used, with other
RRFTFDE - HMIEEMRE M AIAE assumptions held constant. Other actuarial assumptions may
BIE Ll R ek 8 - B ”]I also change with the above assumptions. Such change is not

AR EAHTEEA - A EALGN
RAERREE SR ERNEENR
BERAENE HIRB KA B ER
B (RER) - B AN

HERBLE ARG RAF KA F
E R E DA

ATERANEEHMEFLHHRZ
7375 (20134 : 7.614) »

BRENENE aEREEEENE
2|60 s Z A RIKEF -

AAERMAERERFEE
E AEEYEEANESLHERD
HEHFEENHER - ARBBENER
REN WA BIHBE DT

accounted for in the above analyses. The projected unit credit
method is used to determine the present value of the defined
benefit obligations and the related current service cost and where
applicable the past service cost. The same method and the type
of actuarial assumptions were used in preparing the sensitivity
analyses for the current and previous year.

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation
is 7.37 years (2013: 7.61 years).

Under the plan, the Taiwan employees can be entitled to
retirement benefits on the attainment of a retirement age of 60.

The Group has no funding arrangement and expects no
contribution to be paid in respect of the defined benefit plan as
the defined benefit plan does not maintain any plan assets. The
expected maturity analysis of the undiscounted pension benefits is

as follows:
rEE NG|
Group Company
2014 2013 2014 2013
FET FET FET FET
Uss‘000 Uss$’00o Us$’000 Us$000
156K Within 1 year 379 378 105 133
HBA 1 FE More than 1 year but
DR 2 F less than 2 years 2,426 919 1,759 647
#AiB 2 18 More than 2 years but
DA 5 F less than 5 years 7,082 9,092 3,814 4,926
A5 F Over 5 years 67,916 69,594 37,344 41,898
HEE Total 77,803 79,983 43,022 47,604
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34, EEBIEA 34. DEFERRED TAXATION
AREBFRELTEHIBEEWT : The movement for the year in the Group’s net deferred tax

position was as follows:

REH
Group
2014 2013
us$’ooo Us$°000
REA] At beginning of year 136,284 127,692
P& Z=%E Exchange difference (272) 321
WEBRARFIESRE 2 Withholding tax paid on distributions
BT TR of earnings by subsidiaries (21,627) (28,070)
SFAZABRERA Charge to consolidated income statement 31,093 36,341
REEHR At end of the reporting period 145,478 136,284

184  desmamss miNGYi CaVAN 1SLANDS) HOLDING CoRr \
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DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities at the end of the
reporting period represent the followings:

rEH
Group
2014 2013
BE =N BE ats
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
SFESTm SFES FZET FZET
Us$’000 Us$’000 US$°000 Us$000
IR ITE Accelerated depreciation allowance — (56,230) — (49,908)
BRI IS8 Decelerated depreciation allowance 296 — 296 —
NRERE : Fair value adjustment on:
— THFHLEE(E 0 — Prepaid lease payments and
L/E B 3958 property, plant and equipment
B — (10,786) — (10,997)
— MmN EE — Intangible asset — (6,826) — (7,014)
REEE Impairment losses 13,424 — 17,190 —
REBEE Un-invoiced accrual
ZFERRE R 17,156 — 12,943 —
HEWE - #33  Unrealised profit on property,
P& P plant and equipment
AERHE 15,322 — 14,191 —
MEARZ Undistributed earnings of
EFa N Y e subsidiaries — (121,395 —  (112,862)
W EE Tax losses 4,000 — — —
Hh Others 2,811 (3,250) 3,485 (3,608)
EEBBEEE Deferred tax assets (liabilities)
(&fE) 53,009 (198,487) 48,105 (184,389)
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34.

EIERE(E)

BEBCEMRSRE  INEHREEK
MRPEAIIEREDSEFMESH
BB ZBIZ IR 10% 89 B =R ik 78 1R
Fio 3% FMN2008%F1 A1 HEE
0 @ AR 2007F 12 B31 B 414
25Tl 2 B FDE o m AP B BT R
ZHNE & 2 TR B SR 3 R BT
FEBWZEE - PERBRERE -

REEBERHEEE10% - REER
S AR BIK B2 A5 2007 F 18 BRER
I 78 HRAE A R R AR A F AT i 5 R
FE ) 50% M 5t 1= 48 B A9 IE 7 18
BE - ERAEESHEKNE QR
FT R84 50% 7 2007 & 14 BRER 2 5% 5
B TEEAE AT B A 2R i A E 2 BE
ZFFE(TTEFE D &S5 E
B WRAIBEINGE - A
SEZHEAMNBRARMEA ZH#BE
AREIMEEARBITRIZITERSD
1B o

g

ZEFRBENE QR Z T FFHE
K TE IR FE FE 5T A& 171,092,000 3 7T
(2013 4F : 140,932,000 7z ) » &
ERFBBAALEZERTFNEE
BIESTENBARIZEEES -
WA A R AS R 8 A ED BD o Btk
AR VE BN A o
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34. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends distributed to foreign
investors by the foreign investment enterprises established in
the PRC. The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and
applies to earnings accumulated after 31 December 2007. A
lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between the PRC and jurisdiction of the foreign investors.

For the Group’s PRC subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, the
applicable rate is 10%. Deferred tax liability is provided on 50%
of post-2007 net earnings of the Group's PRC subsidiaries that are
expected to be distributed in the foreseeable future. The remaining
50% of post-2007 net earnings of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries
that are not expected to be distributed in the foreseeable future
(the “Remaining Net Earnings”) would be subject to additional
taxation when they are distributed. Undistributed earnings of
the Group’s PRC associates and joint ventures are not subject to
withholding tax as these companies are held by a PRC subsidiary.

The estimated withholding tax effects on the distribution of the
Remaining Net Earnings were approximately US$171,092,000
(2013: US$140,932,000). In the opinion of the directors, the
Remaining Net Earnings, at the present time, are required for
financing the continuing operations of these entities and no
distribution to foreign investors would be made in the foreseeable
future. Accordingly, no provisions for additional deferred taxation
have been made.
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34. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

The Group has recognised deferred tax assets in respect of tax
losses of US$16,000,000 (2073. US$Nil) during the year. The
remaining unused tax losses, which can be carried forward for five
years from the year in which the losses arose for offsetting against
future taxable income. The expiry year of tax losses without
deferred tax assets provided at the end of the reporting date is as

BEHFHOT : follows:

AL

Group
2014 2013
RBEHEIHRN FET FET
Tax loss expiring in: Us$°000 Us$'000
2014 — 15,737
2015 56,835 81,042
2016 153,544 176,179
2017 85,601 95,074
2018 86,926 85,845
2019 124,082 —
506,988 453,877
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35. RN 35. TRADE PAYABLES
rEE AT
Group Company
2014 2013 2014 2013
FEx FET FET FETT
Uss$’000 Us$°000 Uss$’000 Us$°000
PEATBR R Trade payables
E=H Due to third parties 824,329 1,150,272 520 841
BRI AL Due to related parties
NN — A group of companies jointly
EERARE controlled by the Company’s
FE directors and their dependents
Z —#ral 65,305 87,700 — —
—ARRAREZ — Companies jointly controlled
EEHRAEG by the Company'’s directors
AN 5,256 11,291 — —
&R Due to joint ventures 1,241 2,447 — —
896,131 1,251,710 520 841

ERE=FZEMNERAEEKR
% B M A 30 E 60 K8 2 HA M e A+
BEBATREE AR ZEMNEXR
ABERKE - 2B RMAE30E90KE

The trade payables due to third parties are unsecured, interest-free
and with credit period of 30 to 60 days while the trade payables
due to related parties and joint ventures are unsecured, interest-
free and with credit period of 30 to 90 days.

ERNERRGEEIRBERRR 2 The ageing analysis of trade payables based on the invoice date at
ERBR OIS - the end of the reporting period is as follows:
rEH ¥IN/NE|
Group Company
2014 2013 2014 2013
FET FET FEx FETT
Uss$’000 Us$°000 Uss$’000 Us$°000
0-90 H 0 - 90 days 863,205 1,214,761 520 841
90 HIA E Over 90 days 32,926 36,949 — —
896,131 1,251,710 520 841

*@ﬁfﬂ&-’ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.
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35. BNERRA)
FEAT R FRIA T3 S 511

35. TRADE PAYABLES (Continued)

The trade payables are denominated in the following currencies:

rEHE KA F]

Group Company
2014 2013 2014 2013
FET FET FETT FET
Us$‘000 US$'000 Uss$’000 US$'000
AR RMB 894,264 | 1,247,721 — —
ETT US$ 1,241 1,706 — —
e NTD 520 841 520 841
BT EUR 106 1,442 — —

36. HitEMRERSDKWHES 36. OTHER PAYABLES AND DEPOSITS RECEIVED
rEE ¥ N
Group Company
2014 2013 2014 2013
HtaE FExT FETT FET FET
Note Uss’000 US$°000 Uss’000 Us$000
itk Deposits received in advance 354,982 | 404,043 — —
iZH - SN~ Accruals for transportation,
BEEERZ promoting and
TER advertising expenses 367,595 | 436,795 — —
1THE B K HA  Accruals for administrative expenses
LE B and other operating expenses
ZTER 88,117 63,831 10,792 14,868
JERTER Salaries and welfare payables
BiE 113,699 | 153,162 — —
FETRR R Payables for purchase of equipment 28,913 38,662 — —
FEff—FERBEEE  Payables for purchase of properties
NAEIYETK  to arelated company 38(Gi) 173,185 — — —
JEfTEHAFIIE  Other tax payables 36,425 37,259 — —
mAHAERZE  Obligations arising from put options
R HAE on shares of subsidiaries
FrEA 2 EME  written to non-controlling
shareholders 2,110 4,673 — —
PTESRE TR Derivative financial instruments 36(a) 314 6,893 — —
HAh Others 68,132 47,110 971 647
1,233,472 | 1,192,428 11,763 15,515
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36. HtENR

(a)
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fTES@MIA

R201MEFEM A X & B &
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36. OTHER PAYABLES AND DEPOSITS (Continued)

(a)

etz ERAT TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

Derivative financial instruments

In November 2011, the Group and PepsiCo Inc. (“PepsiCo”)
entered into agreements for their strategic alliance in
beverage business in the PRC (the “Strategic Alliance
Arrangements”). Under the Strategic Alliance Arrangements,
PepsiCo and its subsidiaries (“PepsiCo group”) agreed
to contribute its entire equity interest in PepsiCo’s non-
alcoholic beverage bottling business in the PRC to TAB, a
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, in exchange
for a 5% indirect equity interest in TAB. On 31 March 2012,
the Strategic Alliance Arrangements was completed.

Pursuant to the Strategic Alliance Arrangements, the
following options were issued as part of the consideration
transferred:

i) PepsiCo group was granted an option to increase its
indirect interest in TAB from 5% to 20% on a fully
diluted basis (“Issued Option”);

i)  PepsiCo group was granted a call option that TAB is
required to sell assets and/or undertakings primarily
used in the production of CSD or products licensed
to PepsiCo group at the aggregate book value of the
assets being acquired at the date of exercise of this
call option upon the occurrence of any termination
events (“FEBA Call Option”);
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36. OTHER PAYABLES AND DEPOSITS (Continued)

(a) Derivative financial instruments (Continued)

iii)

vi)

TAB was granted a put option that PepsiCo group is
required to buy assets and/or undertakings primarily
used in the production of CSD or products licensed
from TAB at the aggregate book value of the assets
being acquired at the date of exercise of this put
option upon the occurrence of any termination events
(“FEBA Put Option”);

PepsiCo group was granted a put option that the
Company is required to buy all of PepsiCo group’s
indirectly equity interest in TAB at fair market value
after the occurrence of put triggering events (“OA Put
Option”);

The Company was granted a call option that PepsiCo
group is required to sell all of its indirect equity interest
in TAB at fair market value after the occurrence of call
triggering events (“OA Call Option”); and

The Company was also granted a sell-down option
that PepsiCo group is required to sell its indirect equity
interests in TAB to the Company at fair market value
after the occurrence of sell-down triggering events
("Sell-Down Option™).
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36. HittENRERERHFE(E)

36. OTHER PAYABLES AND DEPOSITS (Continued)

(a) fFTELBMIAE) (a) Derivative financial instruments (Continued)
MEEE R - 17T H#E - FEBA At the end of the reporting period, the fair values of the
R EE HAKE - FEBARRH HA#E - Issued Option, FEBA Call Option, FEBA Put Option, OA Put
OARHHAE - OAR B HIRE LA Option, OA Call Option and Sell-Down Option (“Derivative
FHETHREGE(TESERT financial instruments”) are as follows:
BEDWNAREBENOT :
2014 2013
Uss$’000 Us$°000
TITHIRE Issued Option 314 6,893
FEBAFREEHAME + FEBARRIL HA%E - FEBA Call Option, FEBA Put Option, — —
OARRHERfE - OARIBERME R OA Put Option, OA Call Option and
& T R ERRE Sell-Down Option
314 6,893

BRAABENTEEENR
ERTABRENE(LER &
BRUTAESRIAZ TAEER
AEREGURIERL - &5
R RAMEE 41 -

The measurement basis of the fair values and the quantitative
information of the significant unobservable input including the
description of the sensitivity to changes in unobservable inputs of
the Derivative financial instruments are set out in note 41 to the
financial statements.

etz ERAT TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.
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37. RE¥KMBRE 37. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
2014 2013
FXm FET
Uss$‘000 Us$’000
B B g A Profit before taxation 693,569 722,990
FEBA Interest expenses 47,151 37,351
FEMA Interest income (54,867) (51,527)
A& T WA Dividend income — (747)
e Depreciation 454,136 444,303
SRR E TEFIEE  Unfunded employee benefit obligations paid (1,153) (1,047)
o 0 F8 4905 (B 2 2 8 Amortisation of prepaid lease payments 8,604 7,282
mp A E Amortisation of intangible asset 753 753
HEMEE WEKLRFE L Loss (Gain) on disposal of property,
5t (W) plant and equipment 3,777 (5,200)
M - SRk Impairment loss on property,
HEREEE plant and equipment — 49,802
BElRE - e R Reversal of impairment loss on property,
BEEE plant and equipment — (6,381)
BAMEBESERENAEZE Change in fair value of financial assets
BRENEMEEARELZ  atfair value through profit or loss
25 (288) (265)
MESBMTAAREZEE Change in fair value of derivative
financial instruments (6,579) (12,181)
HER AL EESIKRNE  Loss (Gain) on disposal of financial assets at
ERREENSRMEE fair value through profit or loss
Z (ks ) 213 (437)
HEHEHBESMEREZ  Gain on disposal of available-for-sale
W 5 financial assets — (14,397)
HE—RMHBARZEK  Losson disposal of a subsidiary 1,863 —
FE(RESZE N A A% /AF]  Share of results of associates
E and joint ventures (7,269) (16,049)
EXRFEHH B Effect on exchange rate changes 7,123 8,535
RN A A E R (D Recognition of equity-settled
X2 HIE share-based payment 11,837 11,930
FE 2D Decrease in inventories 73,768 10,416
JiE U BR SR 2 sk A (18 00) Decrease (Increase) in trade receivables 16,403 (20,904)
TE A 3R B E A FE UK (Increase) Decrease in prepayments and
FRIB 2 ($200) 8 other receivables (69,556) 23,786
FERTBRRZ CRIA )3 AN (Decrease) Increase in trade payables (323,686) 179,688
HAfE B Z G )30 (Decrease) Increase in other payables
and deposits received (93,999) 82,120
EEFEMNFEZ G )& (Decrease) Increase in advance
payments from customers (5,425) 23,794
HinIEmEha’z (Decrease) Increase in
CR 2> ) 380 other non-current liabilities (262) 42
FHRETRAMEE Increase in present value of unfunded
WREZIE N employee benefit obligations 4,152 3,592
RELEFABRE Cash generated from operations 760,265 1,477,249
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38. HEMBMALZEARS 38. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
GCANEEHMIPOBEE 2RI R In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere
FRZELAGN - DA T 7K £ B ER A fE B in the financial statements, the Group entered into the following
ATEFTZEARSGHBE  HER material related party transactions in the ordinary course of the
STIRAEE Z HEEEPET - Group's business.

2014 2013
Kzt FET FZEIT
Note Uss’o00o US$°000

(a) BB AL23 5 (a) Related party transactions
BT 5 ATHEEE R : Sales of goods to:
ARB|ZEZEE  Companies controlled by a substantial

ke diS VNG shareholder of the Company (i) 23,745 22,774
Bt &2 A) Associates 21,868 27,676
EE QA Joint ventures 33,728 43,488

B 3 ATEEER : Purchases of goods from:
KRARlZEENE  Agroup of companies jointly controlled

B HERES 2 by the Company's directors and

—# N7 their dependents (i) 391,594 473,340
RRBRICES Companies jointly controlled by

HEHEH 2 A F] the Company’s directors (i) 85,156 70,324
NG Joint ventures 6,677 14,968

BTFATENRER  Administrative expenses paid on

W=l K47 B behalf and received from:
NABZEEHRF A company jointly controlled

=) 2 —EAF] by the Company’s directors 14,846 —
BENT] Joint ventures 12,045 212

B R5 D EEAYE - Acquisition of property, plant

HER R AR and equipment and prepaid
T EARE lease payments from:
KNARZEAR—2 A company beneficially owned by
EEEREEZ one of the Company’s directors
—MHRA7R] (i) (ii) 534,635 =

1 94 etz ERAT TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.
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BIa£ (i) 20145 148 » KN & B 5%

RAARARZEFR —ZEFE
HwHEA 2 — B2 8 W E Wealth
City Investment Limited ([ Wealth
City)) B2 BB A ° Wealth City
WHE—BEEAHR EESRER
EHEARARTLEEESIRA
ZDRBRE —RRFBEKZ
MAF > LBSRETHAMR
FEEERTRIIBHEISPEZ
T ERAEREERRZETH
EERE RUEUERALAERS
- REBR NEBEBHFTHER
& AN R %2,483,016,850 7L (K
#4948 & 1 402,740,000% T ) H
FR 2 281,847,000 3% Jt 1E U B 7%
LY BERZRERIHELY
wEB - REER BNREZ
173,185,000 T B EE R E &
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HE2014F 128318 1LFE
For the year ended 31 December 2014

38. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Note (i) These related party transactions also constitute connected
transactions and continuing connected transactions as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Note (i) On 14 May 2014, the Group completed its acquisition of the
entire share capital of Wealth City Investment Limited (“Wealth
City"”) from a company beneficially owned by one of the
Company's directors. The sole asset of Wealth City is the entire
equity interest in _E/B& BB RFEHEFR AT Shanghai Jingiu
Minghao Real Estate Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai Jingiu Minghao”),
a company established in the PRC. Shanghai Jingiu Minghao
holds the ownership rights of land use rights and buildings
under construction situated at Wuzhong Road, Honggiao Town,
Minhang District of Shanghai, the PRC, which are held for own
use by the Group upon the acquisition. During the reporting
period, the Group has paid US$281,847,000 out of the total
consideration of RMB2,483,016,850 (equivalent to approximately
Us$402,740,000) for the acquisition of these property, plant
and equipment and prepaid lease payments. At the end of the
reporting period, the consideration payable of US$173,185,000
was included in other payables and deposits received under
current liabilities. Details of this transaction have been set out in
the announcement of the Company dated 2 April 2014 and the
circular of the Company dated 17 April 2014 in relation to the
discloseable and connected transaction.
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38. HEARMBALIZEARS(E) 38. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(b) BEREEAEZHE (b) Key management personnel remuneration
AREBRBEBEEEAS ZHME Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group,
(BIEB SRR 10 TR EE including amounts paid to the Company’s directors and
MARREET N2 HIE KM certain of the highest paid employees as disclosed in note
ETEaHEE XM Z3IE)m 10 to the financial statements, is as follows:

T ¢
2014 2013
FET FET
Us$‘00o Us$’000
EE0E Directors’ fees 630 621
FeREMHNE Salaries and other emoluments 7,691 5,592
LARRD S 1+ 2 5R0E Share-based payments 4,633 5,370
TEAT Discretionary bonuses 1,480 1,065
RIRIRIERT 8 50 Retirement scheme contribution 13 20
14,447 12,668

1 96 Actf25IRLE TINGY| (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP ‘\
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For the year ended 31 December 2014

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders.

The Group monitors its capital, which comprises all equity
components, using a gearing ratio which is calculated on the basis
of net debt (interest bearing borrowings net of cash and cash
equivalents) as a ratio of the equity attributable to owners of the
Company. The debt-to-equity ratio at the end of the reporting
period was as follows:

REH RAF
Group Company
2014 2013 2014 2013
FET FET FET FET
Uss$’000 Us$°000 Uss‘000 Us$°000
EEEE Interest-bearing borrowings 2,628,754 1,676,279 1,237,464 925,172
W RekRE Less: Cash and cash equivalents
ZEY (1,183,103) | (1,249,890) (54,298) (13,641)
FaG Net debt 1,445,651 426,389 1,183,166 911,531
RARBRIE(G#S Total equity 3,033,557 2,880,292 345,129 325,401
FEEEEARLE  Gearing ratio 47.66% 14.80% 342.82% 280.12%

AEERBEBEMRNAKRE - FiB
BROERBEB R ERRER -
FRRERE  BBERERETH
& BEEERRTREEEAR
B Mo AEEBEERTS L
BITNERME - BROEAFHX
REE#E -

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance and makes adjustments to capital structure according
to changes in economic conditions for achieving its objectives
through payment of dividends, share repurchase and issue of
new debt. Changing of borrowing rate in the market, future
capital expenditures and investment opportunities are taken into

consideration.
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39. EAEE(HE) -

ANEBR2014F KR BE & o 1
2013FFtE  AEBZBEARRIE
FEEBRERT - AEERARA]
B A EEE AR R 2014 F1E 0
TEHRFRENEEEBEURE
AEBZEARL -

AEEBHRTREAETE TR
TR R
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SNE R B
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B oAb ESREERRAA
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R BESETENEREBDE
B SNE R o

etz ERAT TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (Continued)

During 2014, the Group's strategy, which was unchanged
from 2013, aims at minimising the net debt approximately to
nil balance. The increase in gearing ratio of the Group and the
Company during 2014 was primarily resulted from the increase
of interest-bearing borrowings for financing the Group's capital
expenditure during the year.

Some of the Group's banking facilities are subject to financial
covenants requirements imposed by certain banks.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's financial instruments expose it to foreign currency
risk, interest rate risk, price risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The
Board of Directors generally adopts conservative strategies on its
risk management and limits the Group's exposure to these risks to
a minimum. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for
managing each of these risks and they are summarised below:

Foreign currency risk

The majority of the subsidiaries of the Group are operated in the
PRC and most of their transactions are denominated in RMB.
The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily through
payable on capital expenditures, purchases, bank balances,
borrowings, available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss that are denominated in
currencies other than the functional currency of the subsidiaries.

The exchange rate of RMB against US$ is subject to the rules
and regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the
PRC government. The Group did not have significant exposure to
foreign exchange risk and has not entered into significant hedging
activities to hedge against the exposure to foreign exchange risk
because the main operations of the subsidiaries of the Group are
conducted in their functional currency.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

Details of the Group’s available-for-sale financial assets,
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, cash and cash
equivalents, interest-bearing borrowings and trade payables
denominated in currencies other than RMB as at 31 December
2014 and 2013 are set out in notes 21, 22, 27, 32 and 35 to the
financial statements respectively.

At the end of the reporting period, if the exchange rates of
RMB/US$, RMB/NTD and RMB/EUR had strengthened/weakened
by 3.2%, 3% and 12% respectively (20713: 2.4%, 2% and
9.5% respectively) with all other variables held constant, the
Group's profit for the year and retained profits would have been
US$69,421,000 (2013: US$39,243,000) higher/lower.

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming that the
change in foreign exchange rates had occurred at the end of
the reporting period and had been applied to Group's exposure
to currency risk for all financial instruments in existence at that
date, and that all other variables, in particular interest rates,
remain constant. The stated changes in foreign currency represent
management'’s assessment of reasonably possible changes in
foreign exchange rates over the period until the next annual end
of the reporting period.
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40.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s bank balances and interest-
bearing borrowings. Bank balances and interest-bearing
borrowings with floating interest rates and fixed interest rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk and fair value
interest rate risk respectively. The Group has not entered into
significant hedging activities to hedge against the exposure to
cash flow and fair value interest rate risk. For interest-bearing
borrowings, the Group's policy is to manage its interest cost using
a mix of fixed and floating rate debts and monitors closely its
interest rate exposure and the level of fixed rate and floating rate
borrowings, in consideration of economic atmosphere and the
strategies of the Group. At the end of the reporting period, the
Group's borrowing at fixed rate of interest was 28% (2073: 32%).

At the end of the reporting period, if interest rates had been 50
(2013. 4) basis point higher/lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group’s profit for the year and retained profits
would increase/decrease by US$3,673,000 (2073: decrease/
increase by US$36,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming that
the change in interest rates had occurred throughout the year
and had been applied to the exposure to interest rate risk for all
financial instruments in existence during the year. The 50 (2073:
4) basis point increase or decrease represents management’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest rates over
the period until the next annual end of the reporting period. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for 2013.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Price risk

The Group and the Company are exposed to equity price risks
arising from investments in equity securities classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss. For the Group’s and the
Company'’s equity securities investments that are publicly traded,
the fair value is determined with reference to quoted market
prices. The Group's and the Company’s unlisted investments
are held for long-term strategic purposes. Their performance is
assessed at least annually based on the information available to
the Group, together with an assessment of their relevance to the
Group's long-term strategic plans.

The sensitivity analysis has been determined based on the
exposure of the listed equity securities to equity price risk. At the
end of the reporting period, it is estimated that if there would be
an increase/decrease of 10% (20713: 10%) in the relevant stock
market index as applicable, with all other variables held constant,
would have increased/decreased the Group's profit for the year
and retained profits by US$235,000 (2013 US$495,000) due
to change in the fair value of investments held-for-trading. The
Group will monitor the price risk and will consider hedging the
risk exposure should the need arise.

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming that the
reasonably possible changes in the stock market index had
occurred at the end of the reporting period and had been applied
to the exposure to equity price risk in existence at that date. It is
also assumed that the fair values of the Group's listed investments
would change in accordance with the historical correlation with
the relevant stock market index. The stated changes represent
management’s assessment of reasonably possible changes in the
relevant stock market index over the period until the next annual
end of the reporting period. The analysis is performed on the
same basis for 2013.
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40.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to cash and cash
equivalent, trade and other receivables. Substantially all of the
Group’s and the Company’s pledged bank deposits and cash
and cash equivalents were deposited in the creditworthy global
financial institutions and state-controlled financial institutions
in the PRC, which management considers they are without
significant credit risk.

The majority of the Group's sales are conducted on a cash
basis. The Group has implemented policies to ensure that sales
of products are made to direct retailers, who wish to trade on
credit terms, with an appropriate credit history which is subject to
periodic reviews. Individual credit evaluations are performed on
all customers requiring credit over a certain amount. Receivable
balances are monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group's
exposure to bad debts is not significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s other receivables arises from default
of the counterparties, with a maximum exposure equal to the
carrying amounts of these receivables. The credit quality of the
counterparties is assessed by taking into account their financial
position, credit history and other factors. Individual credit limits
are set based on the assessment of the credit quality. Given the
repayment history, the directors are of the opinion that the risk of
default by these counterparties is not significant. At the end of the
reporting period, the Group had no significant concentration of
credit risk, with exposure spread over a number of counterparties.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had a
concentration of credit risk as 99% (2073: 97%) of the total
amounts due from subsidiaries was due from the five largest
subsidiaries.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group’s objectives when managing liquidity risk are to
maintain sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed
credit facilities. Also, the Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
current and expected liquidity requirements, in particular those
relating to capital expenditure and repayments of debts. At the
end of the reporting period, the Board of Directors expected
that the Group had no significant liquidity risk in the near future.
Details of the preparation of financial statements on a going
concern basis are set out in note 2 to the financial statements.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities at the end of
the reporting period based on contractual undiscounted payments
is summarised below:

AEE
Group
1FE0E 2F Bk
1ERR EBE2FER EBESER
REXRER Morethan More than
Within 1 year 2 years
1year or but within but less than a5t
on demand 2 years 5 years Total
SEE =0T SEEST SEEZT
Us$’000 Us$’000 Us$’000 Uss$’000
R2014F At 31 December 2014
12A31H
JE - BR X Trade payables 896,131 — — 896,131
E MR R R Other payables and
e deposits received 1,080,924 — — 1,080,924
mAHAEERZE  Obligations arising from put options
ROREAMEFTEE L on shares of subsidiaries written
ZEE to non-controlling shareholders 2,110 — — 2,110
PTESBIT A Derivative financial instruments 314 — — 314
BEEE Interest-bearing borrowings 1,428,928 306,376 994,326 2,729,630
3,408,407 306,376 994,326 4,709,109
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40. eREREEZE) 40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
REESRR(E) Liquidity risk (Continued)
KEE
Group

14ELA I 2 E
1R BE2FA {BESFEA
IRESIEZ  Morethan  More than

Within 1 year 2 years
1yearor  butwithin but less than At
on demand 2 years 5 years Total

FT FET T T
Us$‘ooo Us$°000 Us$'000 Us$'000

20136 At 31 December 2013

128318
FE SRR X Trade payables 1,251,710 — — 1,251,710
HA R Other payables and

mEein deposits received 990,441 — — 990,441

mAHAXERZE  Obligations arising from put
FOnEAREFTEA  options on shares of subsidiaries

ZEME written to non-controlling
shareholders 4,673 = = 4,673
PTESMTA Derivative financial instruments 6,893 — — 6,893
BEEE Interest-bearing borrowings 1,046,609 106,839 604,098 1,757,546
EiIEmEEE  Other non-current liabilities — — 262 262

3,300,326 106,839 604,360 4,011,525

204 e i \
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40. SREREEZ) 40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
REELEE(EZ) Liquidity risk (Continued)
VNN
Company

1EE 2F
1FRx EBE2FR EESFER
BERZBEFH More than More than

Within 1 year 2 years
1yearor but within but less than &5t
on demand 2 years 5 years Total

FET FET TET FTET
Uss‘ooo Uss‘000 Us$’000 Uss’000

MN2014 F At 31 December 2014

12A31H
Ji& 1< Bfd /88 /2 B 3K 38 Due to subsidiaries 77,265 — — 77,265
FERTERK Trade payables 520 — — 520
H fth fE < 518 Other payables 11,763 — — 11,763
EEEE Interest-bearing borrowings 390,850 70,209 854,434 1,315,493

480,398 70,209 854,434 1,405,041

R 20134 At 31 December 2013

128318
JiE < B B8 /2 R 3K 38 Due to subsidiaries 43,766 — — 43,766
FE T BR R Trade payables 841 — — 841
E e3R8 Other payables 15,515 — — 15,515
BEEE Interest-bearing borrowings 452,510 19,188 523,402 995,100

512,632 19,188 523,402 1,055,222
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The amounts repayable under loan agreements that includes a
clause that gives the lenders the unconditional right to call the
loan at any time are classified under the “on demand” bracket.
In this regard, interest-bearing borrowings of US$117,991,000
(2013: US$Nil) as at the end of the financial period have been so
classified even though the directors do not expect that the lenders
would exercise their rights to demand repayment and thus these
borrowings would be repaid according to the following schedule

HERRAT as set out in the loan agreements:
r5H PN
Group Company
2014 2013 2014 2013
FEn FET FEn FET
Us$°000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$000
BEEE Interest-bearing borrowings
16K Within 1 year 20,193 — 1,469 —
F2F In the second year 11,535 — 1,469 —
FEIFEEES5E  In the third to fifth years,
(BEERE2F) indusive 90,728 — 90,728 —
122,456 = 93,666 =

206 *@@Eﬂiﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂ TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued)

Financial guarantees issued:
Maximum amount guaranteed
NN
Company

18 E 2F L E
1FRx EBE2FR EESFER
BRERZBEFH More than More than

Within 1 year 2 years
1yearor but within but less than &5t
on demand 2 years 5 years Total

FET FET TET FTET
Uss‘ooo Uss‘000 Us$'000 Us$’000

MN2014 F

12A31H At 31 December 2014 170,000 — — 170,000
MR 20134

12 A31H At 31 December 2013 100,000 — — 100,000

REER  ARAAET—HKB
RAIZEERRELVERER €
%1 7/300,600,0003% JT(2013 4 :
170,600,000% C ) - EER B A
BAERMAAAREZHSE:
ARaREEEERABER%ZS
2EMBRARAEBEACER €8
/170,000,000 JT (20134 -
100,000,000 %7T) °

ERBEEEET AP REBER -
E=ZRRMBAEENBRERZIAA
BEIEBEEELTAIT - UL
BB RINEEERARRZHHRK
RA -

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has issued
financial guarantees of US$300,600,000 (2013: US$170,600,000)
in respect of credit facilities to one subsidiary. The directors
do not consider it probable that a claim will be made against
the Company under the guarantees. The maximum liability
of the Company at the end of the reporting period under the
guarantees issued is the facility drawn down by the subsidiary of
US$170,000,000 (2013: US$100,000,000).

Due to the related party nature of the instruments, the directors
considered it not meaningful and practicable to estimate the fair
values of the financial guarantees and therefore they have not
been recognised in the Company'’s statement of financial position.
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41. AREEE 41. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
@) UAAEHEIBNEREERA (a) Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value

&

T & £ % R201445 12 A 31 The following table presents the assets and liabilities

B EBMBEREERDE measured at fair value or required to disclose their fair

BRIAABEFEIMETHD value in these financial statements on a recurring basis at

NABEERHEN=(EELK 31 December 2014 across the three levels of the fair value

R AREBEFEXETEH hierarchy defined in HKFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement,

RUBHRERBEEAABENS with the fair value measurement categorised in its entirety

MEEHBE  AAEFTEN based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the

DRMEH I ERYEESFER entire measurement. The levels are defined as follows:

EAFE 2 ANRIESS

EBRERFENAT :

— B14(ESHER) - A& = Level 1 (highest level): quoted prices (unadjusted) in
Er et E HFEREE R active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
mS LEREENREES Group can access at the measurement date;
WECREAR)

- F2H BREEEF—& —  Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included
RFRESN - AT E S M within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
BREENBENSE liability, either directly or indirectly;

A

-  BE3IR(EERR) - X —  Level 3 (lowest level): unobservable inputs for the asset
BRvcEENBENS or liability.

A o
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41, DREEE(E) 41. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)
(@) UAAEEIBNEREERS (a) Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
B(E) (Continued)
AEHE Group
2014 2013

RE1 A2 RAI3 &3 | &R REl2 BA3 @;
Level 1  Level2  Level3 Total | Level 1 level 2 Level3 Total
FET  FEn  FEn TEr | TEr  FEr  FER TER
USS'000  USS'000  USS'000  USS'000 | USS000  US$000  US$000  Us$000

BE Assets
HHAEZ Available-for-sale
-REES - Investment funds — 24956 50,708 75,664 — — 025 21275

A7 ELEF5 R Financial assets at fair value
EEHGFEE  though profit or loss

HEBEE

EMZBRAES  Listed equity securities 2,352 - — 2352 | 4952 — — 495
2,352 24,956 50,708 78,016 4,952 — 21275 26,227

af& Liabilities

EfEMFER  Other payables and

=l ¢k deposits received

—fTESBTIA - Derivative financial instruments - - 314 314 — — 6,893 6,893
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4. AREEFEE) 41. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)
(@) URAEBEIENEREERS (a) Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
=(E) (Continued)
VNN Company
2014 2013
&A1 MAl2 @RI @t &A1 &E2 &3 b
Level 1  Level2  Level3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FET TET TFEn  FEL | FEr TEL TEL FEX
Uss'000  US$000 USS000 US$000 | US$000  US$000  US$000  US$000
BE Assets
JHGEZ Available-for-sale
-REES - Investment funds - — 50,708 50,708 — — 225 2275
A7 E1EF5 R Financial assets at fair value
EEZEREE  though profit or loss
HEREE
LA Listed equity securities 2,352 - — 2352 | 4952 — — 495
2,352 — 50,708 53,060 4952 — 225 26227
R2014F K2013FEE RN » & During the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, there
EEBEARMI1ELR2 2 were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value
B R EEEBREELR measurements and no transfers into and out of Level 3 fair
3skEARI3EH - value measurements.
ﬁk@gﬁhé%u—ﬁ;a TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP. —
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4. RREEFEE) 41. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)
() URAEBEIENEREERS (a) Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
&(&) (Continued)
R2014F K 2013F N FH EH The details of the movements of the recurring fair value
EARBFESNEARRZIH measurements categorised as Level 3 of the fair value
SFAMEENIN N - hierarchy for the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013

are shown as follows:

2014 2013
fTEEMIA TSR TA
REES Derivative REES Derivative
Investment financial Investment financial
Funds instruments Funds instruments
FET FET FET FET
Us$'000 Uss'000 US$'000 Us$000
RER] At beginning of the year 21,275 (6,893) 16,677 (19,074)
BA Purchases 24,000 - 2,992 —
B3R5z Bllzssk Total gains or (losses) recognised:
(&#8)
-8B —in profit or loss - 6,579 — 12,181
- Bt 2E e ~ in other comprehensive income 5433 - 1,606 —
REER At the end of
the reporting period 50,708 (314) 21,275 (6,893)
REZERBEEZEER Change in unrealised gain
BETABRNE for the year included in
BABRKEZEH  profit or loss for assets and
liabilities held at the end of
the reporting period — 6,579 = 12,181
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4. DRAEEHEE) 41.
(a) LUAREEIRNEBEERS
&E)
FERERN-REN=221
BEEMAEZHERMMEXE
A

() ARLE KREED

ERR—mEREES AR
BEREREREEAHSE
—EREMLEEFENS
EHRELTEFHE - 57T
B BEFERRIENAER
RE W EWERAESFM
ERES - HARME L
M2 EMISREME °

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

(a)

Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
(Continued)

Valuation techniques and significant inputs used in
Level 2 and Level 3 fair value measurement

(i)  Available-for-sale: Investment funds

The fair value of an investment fund in Level 2 is
valued based on the net asset value of each trust
unit quoted by the trust administrator based on
quoted prices of underlying investments i.e. listed
equity and debt securities in an active market without
adjustments.

21 2 etz ERAT TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.
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(a)

nEE

/43 )
(725

b-1]13

il

.I_

IR REEIRNEREERE
&)

ERERN-EBRAN=227%
BEAEZEERMNE S
A(E)

(i)

AR E - REEZ (F)

FERR=Ep—IBRER
FIREMREESH AR
BERENKREKENEE
HRZREEREZIRER
CHEFE - ARl =H&f
Z-HEEERSZ ARE
ERBEESMIZERN QA
BAREBE- FERR=
ZIREESHBE ETR
BMIELTIRE - LR
ENARBEREL2EMS
HMEMIELTIREN AR
BERAEBEESKCETR
AeEmARERRITR
ReMmENTEARNBER
MoVERTME A ELTA
AN AR EREE LI
HA B R i EE ekt &
XRZBRE o AR EE
B REZIELETRARIN
AABNFEE PG RE
0% ZE45% (20134 :
0% ZF12%) AJLL& 2
RNAMTFH TR ERMNA
BITEMSE 2T A ER
0.7%251.2F(2013F :
172230915 ) WA &
3% B I IR K (2013 4F -
3%) e

HE2014F 128318 1LFE
For the year ended 31 December 2014

41. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

(a)

Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
(Continued)

Valuation techniques and significant inputs used in

Level 2 and Level 3 fair value measurement (Continued)

Available-for-sale: Investment funds (Continued)

The fair value of one of the investment funds in Level
3 newly acquired in April 2014 is based on the net
asset value of the investment fund reported to the
investors by the investment manager as of the end
of the reporting period. For the remaining three
investment funds in Level 3, their fair values are based
on the fair values of the companies invested by the
funds. All of the investment funds in Level 3 included
both listed investments and unlisted investments.
The fair values of listed investments are reference to
guoted market price, while the fair values of unlisted
investments which are valued by the respective
investment managers are estimated by valuation
techniques, mainly including using price/ earnings (P/
E) multiple model and discounted cash flows model.
In determining the fair value of unlisted investments,
it includes assumptions that are not supported by
observable market prices or rates. The expected annual
growth rates of unquoted companies invested by the
funds ranging from 0% to 45% (20713: 0% to 12%),
average price/earnings (P/E) multiples of comparable
companies of the corresponding industries ranging
from 0.7 to 51.2 times (2013 17.2 to 30.9 times) and
discount rates of 3% (20713: 3%) are used.
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4. AREEFEE) 41.
() URAAEEIRNEMEERE (a)

(1G]

ERAERN =2 DA ABEFE
ZEERMMERBEAE)

HEMN - tTLEZH
TA

(ii)

TESRIANAAEBE
At RBEBBE LA ER
BEMLEMGE REE
BRARBITHRGEZE

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
(Continued)

Valuation techniques and significant inputs used in
Level 3 fair value measurement (Continued)

(i) Other payables: Derivative financial instruments

The derivative financial instruments are measured
at fair value estimated by an independent qualified

professional valuer in Hong Kong. Details of the
unobservable inputs used for the valuation of the

SEERRAE AT Issued Option at the end of the reporting period are as
follows:
fhERER Valuation model S RERE
Monte Carlo
Simulation Model
HEEEZARE" Fair value of the underlying assets * US$1,058 million B &3 7T
1TfE(E - Exercise price * US$2.81 billion to
US$3.72 billionf&3%7T
EAfEE] = Time to maturity 0.83 years
EITER R US$ Risk free rate 0.55%
EEEEERES Volatility of the underlying asset’s price in HK$
(BTT) 37.96%
g B & Dividend yield 1.39%
g A R BT G After the adjustment of the top-up cash and minority

EEET

RETRIER2013F
10A31 H3Z Fi{T (&
T R28IE1TF X
—

2T RIE R 2013 F
10431 H2# k2014
F10H31 HE 2 fi %
BER32(E3 TEET

2T RIER 2014 F
10A31 HZ#% %2015
F10H31 H2 2 fi%
BE/537(82 TEZET -

etz ERAT TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING

CORP.
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discount

US$2.81 billion if Issued Option is exercised on or
before 31 October 2013;

US$3.23 billion if Issued Option is exercised after 31
October 2013 but on or before 31 October 2014, or

US$3.72 billion if issued Option is exercised after 31
October 2014 but on or before 31 October 2015.
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41. DREEEE)

(a)

UAABESIRNEREERE
&(E)

M2014F12 8318 EFRA
BRI EREHRENBEERN
TFEM - FTUAFEBAREEHi#E -
FEBAZRUE EA%E « OARRIAERME -
OARREHA#E I [ & T P& HRRERY
ARBEATET (2013F -
FETL) o
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41. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

(a)

Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
(Continued)

The fair value of the FEBA Call Option, FEBA Put Option, OA
Put Option, OA Call Option and Sell-Down Option as at 31
December 2014 are US$Nil (2073: US$Nil) as in the opinion
of directors the probability of the termination/triggering
events occurring is very remote.
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M. AREEEE) 41. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)
(@) URAAEBHEIBNEREERSA (a) Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
B (Continued)
FTERAERGARRDRE 2T Sensitivity to changes in significant unobservable
inputs
FHRI3AREFEZETEATE The sensitivity to changes in significant unobservable inputs
g A\ RUE v BEIIT for Level 3 fair value measurements are as follows:
DABER
TEEAEE
2k

WEg  DAEER
Impact on fair ~ RAEEAEE

R=Z-mE valueand ~ BEFIHFE
TZA=t-H TAERBANERY the Group' s Impact on
ZARE MMEENHBE other fair value and
Fair value at (BRELRZRETE) comprehensive  the Group's
31 December Sensitivity of fair value to income for profit for
2014 fEHRE TUEEEA changes in unobservable BT HEE the year the year
Hik F#7  Valuation  Unobservable inputs (assuming other Reasonably FET FE£T
Description US§'000  techniques  input factors remain unchanged)  possible range Us§ 000 Us§000
AftHESHEE
Available-for-sale financial assets
REES 50708 TAXEH  FEEHERE  FEESERIES. +-10% +-1,051 =
ERAEHR  R2HA:
Investment funds P/E multiple  Expected annual The higher the expected annual
growth rates growth rate, the higher the fair
value and vice versa :
AHRAFZ A BAR PATREES - +-26% +-3,975 =
THmBRE ERAEBEER  R2HA:
Average P/E ratio The higher average P/E ratio
of comparable of comparable companies, the
companies higher the fair value and
vice versa :
RRBER  HRX nRENE  ARA(EE +-1% 11/4116 =
ot BIE - RZIA
Discounted Discount rate The higher the discount rate,
cash flow the lower the fair value and
vice versa.
21 6 AatizRARAS TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP e —— —— —
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41. DAEBEEE) 41. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)
(@) UAAEEIBNEREERS (a) Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
&E(E) (Continued)
TELRTEHEGASRE S Sensitivity to changes in significant unobservable
() inputs (Continuea)
DMEER
FREREE
A2 E K
2 DMEER
Impact on fair ~ RAEEAEE
RoB-mE valueand  BFIHFE
TZA=t-H TAEZBANERY the Group's Impact on
ZARE RABENSRE other fair value and
Fair value at (RREMRERETE) comprehensive  the Group's
31 December Sensitivity of fair value to income for profit for
2014 fEHE FAEEEAE changes in unobservable BT HEE the year the year
it F#7  Valuation  Unobservable inputs (assuming other Reasonably FET FET
Description US$'000  techniques  input factors remain unchanged)  possible range Us$ 000 Us§ 000
Efb N
Other payables
fESRIR 314 RERERE HHAEERKD HAWAEERRB(ET) +-5% - +207/-105
—%{THE (B7) e HArEESR
RZIA
Derivative financial Monte Carlo Volatility of the The higher the volatility of the
instruments Simulation underlying asset's  underlying asset' s price in HKS,
-Issued Option Model price in HK$ the higher the fair value and
vice versa;
REEEMN BHEENAABESS +-5% = +192/-138
RifEE ERABEES  R2MHA-
Fair value of the The higher the fair value of the

underlying assets underlying assets, the higher
the fair value and vice versa.
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4. DRAEEHEE) 41. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)
(a) LUAABEIENERMEERE (a) Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
B (Continued)
TELRTEHEGASRBRE S Sensitivity to changes in significant unobservable
(& inputs (Continuea)
RREER
FEEAEE
Rfr2mEKE

WEg  DABER
Impact on fair ~ RAEEAEE

W-g-=% valueand  HFNFE
TZA=t-H TAEZBANERY the Group's Impact on
ZARE MEEBHRRE other  fair value and
Fair value at (RREMRERETE) comprehensive  the Group's
31 December Sensitivity of fair value to income for profit for
2013 fEHE FAEEBEAE changes in unobservable BT HEE the year the year
Hit F#7  Valuation  Unobservable inputs (assuming other Reasonably FET FE£T
Description US$'000  techniques  input factors remain unchanged)  possible range Us$ 000 Us§ 000
At ESREE
Available-for-sale financial assets
REES 225 TEREY  FERHERE  FEEBEHERIUS. +-10% +68/-72 =
ERAESR  R2HA:
Investment funds P/E multiple  Expected annual The higher the expected annual
growth rates growth rate, the higher the fair
value and vice versa ;
AERRAZ AEBRARZ PEATREES - +-31% +528/-540 =
THmAE ERABESR  R2HA:
Average P/E ratio The higher average P/E ratio
of comparable of comparable companies, the
companies higher the fair value and
vice versa :
FRERER  RE wREEE ARAEE +-1% 42444 =
it IR K2R -
Discounted Discount rate The higher the discount rate,
cash flow the lower the fair value and
vice versa.
21 8 AetiziAmRAT TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) Howmehr_
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41. DAEBEEE) 41. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)
(@) UAAEEIBNEREERS (a) Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
&E(E) (Continued)
TELRTEHEGASRE S Sensitivity to changes in significant unobservable
() inputs (Continuea)
DMEER
FREREE
A2 E K
2 DMEER
Impact on fair ~ RAEEAEE
WoB-=% value and BANEE
TZA=t-H TAEZBANERY the Group's Impact on
ZARE RABENSRE other fair value and
Fair value at (RREMRERETE) comprehensive  the Group's
31 December Sensitivity of fair value to income for profit for
2013 fEH FAEEEAE changes in unobservable BT HEE the year the year
it F#7  Valuation  Unobservable inputs (assuming other Reasonably FET FET
Description US$'000  techniques  input factors remain unchanged)  possible range Us$ 000 Us§ 000
Efb N
Other payables
fTESRIA 6893 SATERY HHEEEHRKY HHAEERRI(EN) +-5% = +2,244/
—E{7HE (&) B5 EAREELR -2,201
RZIA
Derivative financial Monte Carlo Volatility of the The higher the volatility of the
instruments Simulation underlying asset's  underlying asset' s price in HKS,
-Issued Option Model price in HK$ the higher the fair value and
vice versa;
HEEEMN BEEENAABELS +-5% = 2,022/
AR ERREEES R2HA - -1,864
Fair value of the The higher the fair value of the

underlying assets underlying assets, the higher
the fair value and vice versa.
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(a)

AediziERAT TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

UARBEIRNEREERA
&)

RBIBAAEETENGERE

A ESERAAIRSH TS A
BERRIB A SRBIERRIZA
MEENABZAREBE &
AR B ATRERE - NEE[[
BRAESKENEREEAR
"REZSZHE - HRITE
TRITHE AREZBELA
BREXRMLEMETTRE -

7R 5% [ H B 755 P B 1A — [ [ B
BERMAREESNRELE
HEFEEEARBILEERIA
MBRERBNETOMRE -
ZEFREENGEERER
FoMEEE REEZETHER
BRENETEREARBILG
EMHNFEERENEREE
FELBRIT Rl - BBED
SHESRMBFERKREES
MEEREREEETEARSE
YEEMEZEIEARELA BN
BERMNEAGEERL - &
EFIBEXENTAIBREA
B EFEERERSEH MG
BEHYEKEZSNREL
By (E R E IR A RIB G ERD

0 -

(a)

Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
(Continued)

Valuation processes used in Level 3 fair value
measurement

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability within
Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy, the Group uses market
observable-data to the extent it is available. Where Level 1
inputs are not available, the Group obtains the valuations
provided by the respective investment managers or trust
administrator for the investment funds. For the derivative
financial instrument, the Group engages independent
qualified professional valuer to perform the valuation.

The Group’s finance department includes a team that
reviews the valuations performed by the investment
managers or trust administrator of the investment funds
and the independent valuer for financial reporting purposes.
The team reports directly to the senior management.
Discussions of valuation processes and results are held
between the management, investment managers or trust
administrator of the investment funds and independent
valuer at least once every year. At each financial year end,
the finance department works closely with the investment
managers or trust administrator of the investment funds and
independent valuer to establish the appropriate valuation
techniques and inputs to the valuation models, verifies
all major unobservable inputs in the valuations, assesses
valuations movements when compared to the prior year
valuation report and holds discussions with the investment
managers or trust administrator of the investment funds and
independent valuer.
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HE2014F 128318 1LFE
For the year ended 31 December 2014

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

(b) Fair values of financial assets and liabilities carried at
other than fair value

In the opinion of the directors, except for the Notes as
described in the note 32 to the financial statements, no
other financial assets and liabilities of the Group’s and the
Company are carried at amount materially different from
their fair values as at 31 December 2014 and 2013.

COMMITMENTS

In addition to the commitments disclosure elsewhere in the
financial statements, the Group has the commitments as follow:

(a) Capital expenditure commitments

Group
2014 2013
EETAB R Contracted but not provided for: US$°000 Us$'000
EEMRR Expenditures on properties, plant and
REFHX equipment 280,056 235,442
REES® Investment funds 28,026 27,464
308,082 262,906

(b) EBHORE
REER - BRETAIREZZ
EYRERY  AEBRREK
ERENFEEIIRMAT

(b) Commitments under operating leases

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases for premises, which are payable as follows:

Group

2014 2013

Us$’000 Us$000

1R Within one year 47,235 43,723
MRE2FEES5FEM In the second to fifth years inclusive

(BFEER2%) 75,865 82,719

5 E A 1E After five years 42,214 50,172

165,314 176,614
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43,

44,

HBHF 43. COMPARATIVE FIGURES
HERAKEENZEY S4B L5 Conforming to current year's presentation, the comparative
ERATHFBRITER  BEIETT information of proceeds from bank borrowings, repayments
EFUAREMBHEE 2 &5 %58 of bank borrowings and net movement of other short-term
MRS FEET - B4 M 275 borrowings as shown in the consolidated statement of cash
FREMRRELEIEANLEE - 2 flows has been restated. The revised presentation reflects more
LETE B R E S AR EE R B BN appropriately the nature of these items. These restatements have
REELRHTE o no effect on the reported financial position and results of the
Group.

KEEE 44. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
RNEEHRN KREEARSHE X During the reporting period, the Group announced a voluntary
BHEASHATRAETIRE BFEER retirement plan (the “Plan”) for its employees as a result of an
F2([3Z:12))  EZtEIhARE integration programme of its Pepsi beverage business. The Group
ERHATETXZENETL X% has made an offer of the Plan to the affected employees who
ZETNUATERSE UK can decide to accept the offer of benefits in exchange for the
B RAREA termination of their employments.
W& E E - 73,017,000 7T HY The termination benefits of US$73,017,000 have been recognised
BN ILHECHERAER - WA as expenses during the reporting period. The estimated possible
EAEREREBEIESZTE K& obligation of termination benefits is about US$70,000,000 which
fi 51201522016 F & 78 Hf 7] is expected to be settled between 2015 and 2016 if all the offers
EREESNRIEHENESENA are accepted by qualified employees.
70,000,000 37T °

AedzRERAT TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDINGML—_
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45. FEMEAT 45. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
Ty BIERAARIEENEEES The following included the principal subsidiaries directly or
ZEEMMBAR, EERAEZE AR indirectly held by the Company and, in the opinion of directors,
HWARFEEEBEEEXNBR, siAEK are significant to the turnover for the year or form a substantial
NEBHREENEEISND - EFR portion of total assets of the Group. The directors consider that
BN EMMBARINERNEHE giving details of other subsidiaries would result in particulars of
BITE o excess length.
FEMRL
S
Place of AMER BRIRA FE 1 R AE L
#8 incorporation/ Registered capital/issued Proportion of TBER
Name operation share capital ownership interest Principal activity
E# Lk
Directly Indirectly
FREESERMBVIERAR EBRETHES Us$2 100% —  REAER
Master Kong Instant Foods (BVI) Co., Ltd. BVI Investment holding
REEHRMARAR HE US$72,000,000 — 100% BEERHERRME
Tianjin Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of instant noodles
EMNERRmBRAR hE US$31,000,000 — 100% SBEERHEHEME
Guangzhou Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of instant noodles
* MNERRRERAR e US$131,500,000 — 100% BUEREEHFEE
* Hangzhou Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of instant noodles
BEBRRMARAF HE US$22,000,000 — 100% SEREEHFEE
Chongging Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of instant noodles
EGEGRAERAR i US$17,000,000 — 100% BUERHEHRE
Shenyang Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of instant noodles
RERHZRMARAR i US$17,800,000 — 100% SEERHEHRME
Wuhan Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of instant noodles
ARRREmERAA i US$44,300,000 — 100% SEERHEHRME
Xian Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of instant noodles
EBRHERMARAT i US$5,000,000 — 100% HEREEHFME
Qingdao Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale

of instant noodles
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45, FEMBAR(E)

45. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

T
EEHE
Place of AMER BRTRE FEAR B RE L I
&8 incorporation/ Registered capital/issued Proportion of TEER
Name operation share capital ownership interest Principal activity
HE B
Directly Indirectly
RRERRRMERAH FEl US$11,200,000 = 100% BERHEAFEA
Harbin Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of instant noodles
BREGRAARAR HE US$4,500,000 — 100% BUEREEHFE
Fujian Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of instant noodles
* HERGRMARAR 2l US$3,000,000 — 100% BERHEEHRE
* Xinjiang Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of instant noodles
* MREGERAERAT HE US$14,000,000 — 100% BEREEHRE
* Nanling Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of instant noodles
* RN (R EREBRAR HE US$6,000,000 — 100% SEREEHEE
* Master Kong (Shenyang) Convenient PRC Manufacture and sale
Food Co., Ltd. of instant noodles
* BABERRRERAR FE US$17,000,000 — 100% SHEREEHEE
* Chengdu Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of instant noodles
* REE(EE)AERRERAF HE US$5,000,000 — 100% SERHEEREE
* Master Kong (Chongging) Convenient PRC Manufacture and sale
Food Co., Ltd. of instant noodles
* RBRRSREERAT HE US$5,000,000 — 100% BUEREEHFE
* Xianyang Fumanduo Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of instant noodles
* BNEERMBRAA FE US$50,000,000 = 100% BERHEHFER
* Zhengzhou Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of instant noodles
eI RERE (PE)ERAR HE US$102,000,000 100% —  REERK
Master Kong Instant Noodle Investment PRC Investment holding

(China) Co., Ltd.
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45, PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

ML,
EXBHY
Place of AMER BRIRE FEAR B RELL B
a8 incorporation/ Registered capital/issued Proportion of TEER
Name operation share capital ownership interest Principal activity
Hf G
Directly Indirectly
FREDEBEERE (BV) BRAF] KBRLRS Us$1 100% — RARK
Master Kong Bakery (BVI) Co., Ltd. BVI Investment holding
FEEARRARE (PE)BRAF e US$90,900,000 — 100% REZRK
Master Kong Instant Foods Investment PRC Investment holding
(China) Co., Ltd.
RERERMARAA H US$37,000,000 — 100% HERHELERT
Tianjin Tingyuan Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of instant food
MHEERRERAF FE US$18,400,000 — 100% SERHEEFERR
Hangzhou Ting Yuan Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of instant food
FEE B M (BV) BR A RBRARS US$55,263 90.50% — RAER
Master Kong Beverages (BVI) Co., Ltd. BVI Investment holding
RERRERERAF REHS US$10,528 = 4751%  REER
Tingyi-Asahi Beverages Holding Co., Ltd. Cayman Islands Investment holding
* RREERMARAR HE US$60,840,000 — 4751% BERHERR
* Tianjin Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
BEMERRBARAR H US$20,000,000 — 4751% SHERHEERR
Guangzhou Tingjin Food Co., Ltd PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
* MNERRBERAT HE US$38,100,000 — 4751% BEERFEER®
* Hangzhou Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
* RN (M) R BR AT HE US$28,350,000 — 4751% BERHERR
* Master Kong (Hangzhou) Beverage Co., Ltd*  PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
* REEZRRERAH HE US$51,000,000 — 4751% HERHEERR
* Wuhan Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale

of beverages
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45. TEMBAR(E) 45. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
T
EEHE
Place of AMER BRTRE FEAR B RE L I
&8 incorporation/ Registered capital/issued Proportion of TEER
Name operation share capital ownership interest Principal activity
HE B
Directly Indirectly
ERRERMBRAF HE US$24,000,000 — 4751% BERHERR
Chongging Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. * PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
* EEEERMARAR HE US$15,000,000 — 4751% BHEREERD
* Qingdao Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
BREZRMARAR 2l US$13,700,000 = 4751% BERHERS
Fujian Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
* RREEERBEB AT HE US$33,000,000 — 4751% BEERHEERR
* Harbin Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. * PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
* BREZRGERAH HE US$12,000,000 — 4751% BERHERR
* Kunming Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
* GMTEERAERAR el US$24,000,000 — 4751% HERHERR
* Zhengzhou Tlngjln Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
* BNTEERMERAR HE US$16,000,000 — 4751% SHERHERE
* Lanzhou Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. * PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
* REEOFR) RmERRE HE US$41,000,000 — 4751% SHERHEERR
* Master Kong (Shenyang) Beverage Co. Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
* REE(AR)AmERAT 2l US$48,500,000 = 4751% BERHERS
* Master Kong (Xi'an) Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
* REE(RR)RmERAT HE US$31,800,000 — 4751% BEERHEERR
* Master Kong (Tianjin) Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale

of beverages
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45. FENBAR(E 45. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
ML,
EEBE
Place of AMER BRIRE FEAR B RELL B
a8 incorporation/ Registered capital/issued Proportion of TEER
Name operation share capital ownership interest Principal activity
Hf G
Directly Indirectly
* BNRRREERAH HE US$36,500,000 — 4751% BERHERR
* Yangzhou Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
* BNERSRERAR HE US$59,300,000 — 4751% SHERFEERR
* Guangzhou Tingjin Beverage Co., Ltd. # PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
* RBERRBERAT HE US$23,500,000 — 4751% SEERFEER®
* Chengdu Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
* EE(SEAE)RRERAR HE US$12,000,000 — 4751% BHERFEERR
* Master Kong (Wulumugj) Beverage Co., Ltd. *  PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
* BREZRRERAH HE US$12,000,000 — 4751% HERHERR
* Baotou Tingjin Food Co., Ltd PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
BORRRRERAR HE US$28,500,000 — 4751% BERHERR
Langfang Tingjin Food Co., Ltd PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
* HMNRRREERAA HE US$41,500,000 — 4751% HERHERR
* Suzhou Ting Jin Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
* BEEERMARAR il US$14,000,000 — 4751% SHERHEERR
* NanchangTingjin Food Co., Ltd PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
FEBRRERE (PE)ERAR il US$87,702,000 — 4751% REER
Master Kong Beverage Investment (China) PRC Investment holding
Co., Ltd
PERRAR(BE)ERAA BE US$10,000/US$2 = 4751%  RAER
China Bottlers (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong Investment holding
* BE(RE)REBBR AR HE US$358,216,517 — 4751%  REER

* PepsiCo Investment (China) Limited PRC Investment holding




BI#$R R MI5F Notes to the Financial Statements

228

HE2014F12A3181LEE

For the year ended 31 December 2014

45. TEMBEAT(E)

45. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

T
EEHE
Place of AMER BRETRA FEAR B RE L I
&8 incorporation/ Registered capital/issued Proportion of TEER
Name operation share capital ownership interest Principal activity
HE B
Directly Indirectly
* BERBEM)ERAR HE US$197,800,000 — 4751% BUEREERR
* PepsiCo Beverages (Guangzhou) Limited * PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
* BNAETEBHERAR HE US$66,650,000 — 4751% BHEREERD
* Guangzhou Pepsi-Cola Beverage PRC Manufacture and sale
Company Limited of beverages
S RBENERNBERRA HE US$14,119,449 — 30.88% BERHEHM
* Beijing Pepsi-Cola Beverage PRC Manufacture and sale
Company Limited of beverages
* REASUERHERAR HE US$20,000,000 — 27.32% BERHEHR
* Changchun Pepsi-Cola Beverage PRC Manufacture and sale
Company Limited of beverages
* REAEWERHERAR HE RMB100,000,000 — 1.81% BERHEERD
* Tianjin Pepsi-Cola Beverage PRC Manufacture and sale
Company Limited of beverages
* RBAEHHERAA HE US$6,600,000 — 3326% REREERM
* Chengdu PepsiCo Beverages PRC Manufacture and sale
Company Limited of beverages
* BMNEEHHERRA HE US$1,350,000 — 4751% BUEREERR
* Lanzhou PepsiCo Beverages PRC Manufacture and sale
Company Limited # of beverages
* EEASANARERAH FE US$17,845,000 = 44.85% BEREERD
* Chongging Pepsi-Tianfu Beverage PRC Manufacture and sale
Company Limited of beverages
* R BETEBRRERAR HE US$12,250,000 = 4751% BERHERS
* Shenzhen Pepsi-Cola Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
* BERAEUERHERAR HE US$57,600,000 — 4751% BEERHEERR
* Shenyang Pepsi-Cola Beverage PRC Manufacture and sale
Company Limited of beverages
* ROBENERHERAR HE US$28,000,000 — 4751% BERHERR
* Changsha Pepsi-Cola Beverage PRC Manufacture and sale

Company Limited #
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45. FEMBAR(E) 45. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
H e
EXBHY
Place of TMERBRETRE FEA5 BR A LL 1
a8 incorporation/ Registered capital/issued Proportion of TEER
Name operation share capital ownership interest Principal activity
=t G
Directly Indirectly
* BINEETLEBHERDA HE RMB19,764,000 — 4751% HERHERR
* Fuzhou Pepsi-Cola Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
* AERH(BE)BRAA FEl US$9,000,000 = 33.26% BUERHEHRM
* Pepsi Beverage (Nanchang) Company Limited ~ PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
TBiE (BV) BRAF RERLES US$1,000 100% — ALK
Tingtong (BVI) Limited BVI Investment holding
FR(RER)ZREBRRF REEE US$2,118,334 — 50.01% REEK
Tingtong (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp Cayman Islands Investment holding
LRREMAARAR it US$5,000,000 = 50.01%  BEftMiRIRE
Shanghai Tingtong Logistics Co., Ltd. PRC Logistics services
Ex(RBRLS)HRERAR RBRLRS US$50,000 100% —  AREZREBEARE
Tingyi (BVI) Int'l Co., Ltd. BVI Purchasing and sales
agent for the Group
ERREFRAF REBRLRS US$147,232,000 — 100% REZRK
Wealth City Investment Limited BVI Investment holding
hEERERER A RBRIAES Uss$1 100% —  RERK
China Dingya Holding Limited. BVI Investment holding
0 ZENBAAGHAERIEEL B . These subsidiaries are registered as Sino-foreign equity joint venture
ED - companies.
# BXEZEA S # English translation for identification purposes only.
HiAEBRFRERNZHE AT The other subsidiaries in the PRC are established and registered as

BRI R M AR EINERE - wholly-owned foreign enterprises.
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P.O. Box 309

Ugland House

Grand Cayman KY1-1104
Cayman Islands

FEEK U
B _EgT 201103
1Tl=

R 1688 57

BEANER

BB AEE 18597

IR ES 56125607

E:E 0 (852) 2511 1911

fH : (852) 2511 7911
4+ : info@tingyi.com

35
www.masterkong.com.cn
www.irasia.com/listco/hk/tingyi

RELETRRZ I
EEBMERFMER AT
EAARIR 0 0322

ERHFEFEFE S Level 1
RS : TCYMY

BEFLRE
EA5AmSR 0 910322

REGISTERED OFFICE
P.O. Box 309

Ugland House

Grand Cayman KY1-1104
Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
No.1688, Wuzhong Road

Minhang District

Shanghai City 201103

PRC

HONG KONG OFFICE

Suite 5607, 56th Floor, Central Plaza
18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2511-1911

Fax: (852) 2511-7911

E-mail: info@tingyi.com

WEBSITE
www.masterkong.com.cn
www.irasia.com/listco/hk/tingyi

PLACE OF LISTING OF SHARES AND TRADING CODE
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Security code: 0322

ADR Level 1 Programme
Symbol: TCYMY

Taiwan Depositary Receipts
Security Code: 910322
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FEHERNDBFETAR

Genesis Trust & Corporate Services Ltd.

2nd Floor, Compass Centre
P.O. Box 448, George Town
Grand Cayman KY1-1106
Cayman Islands

BEEROBFETIRE

BERRESFELHRAR
B

BFERRER 1835
AR 17HE
1712-1716 &

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wei Ing-Chou (Chairman)
Mr. Junichiro Ida (Vice-Chairman)
Mr. Wu Chung-Yi

Mr. Teruo Nagano

Mr. Wei Hong-Ming

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Hsu Shin-Chun
Mr. Lee Tiong-Hock
Mr. Hiromu Fukada

CAYMAN ISLANDS PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Genesis Trust & Corporate Services Ltd.

2nd Floor, Compass Centre

P.O. Box 448, George Town

Grand Cayman KY1-1106

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

Rooms 1712-1716

17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen'’s Road East, Wanchai

Hong Kong
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FEFHSZE -
Maples and Calder Asia
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PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Agricultural Bank of China

ANZ Bank

Bank of America

Bank of China

Bank of Communications

Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ

Bayerische Hypo-und Vereinsbank AG Member of UniCredit Groups
BNP PARIBAS Corporate and Investment Banking
Credit Agricole Corporate & Investment Bank
China Merchants Bank

CITI Bank

Deutsche Bank

Development Bank of Japan Inc.

Development Bank of Singapore

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
Mizuho Corporate Bank, Ltd.

Rabobank

Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
The Sumitomo Trust & Banking Co., Ltd
Westpac Banking Corporation

LEGAL ADVISERS
Sidley Austin

as to PRC law:

King & Wood Mallesons
Beijing Kangda Law Firm
Yingke Law Firm

as to Cayman Islands law:
Maples and Calder

AUDITOR
Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
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FHESEEIMBIINERAT
Incorporated in Cayman islands with limited liability
Stock Code iE45#mS%E: 0322
*# & Bl Foridentification purposes only
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